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x ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13OR 15(d)

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December30, 2011

or
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OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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None.
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and (2)has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.Yes x No ¬

Indicateby checkmarkwhethertheregistranthassubmittedelectronicallyandpostedon its corporateWebsite,if any, everyInteractive
DataFile requiredto besubmittedandpostedpursuantto Rule405of RegulationS-Tduringthepreceding12months(or for suchshorter
period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).Yes x No ¬

Indicateby checkmark if disclosureof delinquentfilers pursuantto Item405of RegulationS-K is not containedherein,andwill not
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).Yes ¬ No x

The aggregatemarketvalue of the sharesof registrant��sCommonStock,$1 par value,held by nonaffiliates of the registrantwas
approximately $1,937,888,733 as of July1, 2011.

At February17, 2012, 33,059,077 shares of registrant��s Common Stock, $1 par value, were outstanding.

Documents Incorporated by Reference:
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

(a) General Development of Business

Anixter InternationalInc., foundedin 1957 and headquarterednear Chicago,tradeson the New York Stock Exchangeunder
the symbol AXE and is engagedin the distribution of communicationand securityproducts,electricalwire and cableproductsand
fastenersandothersmallparts(��C�� Classinventorycomponents)throughAnixter Inc. andits subsidiaries(collectively��Anixter�� or the
��Company��).TheCompanywasformerly knownasItel Corporation,which wasincorporatedin Delawarein 1967.TheCompanyadds
valueto the distributionprocessby providing its customersaccessto innovativeinventorymanagementprograms,morethan450,000
productsandover$1.0billion in inventory, over220warehouseswith 7 million squarefeetof space,andlocationsin over260cities in
more than 50 countries.

For thefiscal yearendedDecember30,2011, Anixter reportedsalesof $6.1billion. In 2011, 52.8%of theCompany��ssaleswereto
theenterprisecablingandsecuritymarket,31.7%wereto theelectricalandelectronicwire & cablemarketand15.5%werefastenersand
othersmallpartssold to theOriginal EquipmentManufacturing(��OEM��) market.TheCompanyderived57.8%of its 2011 salesfrom
the U.S., 18.7% from Europe, 12.2% from Canada and 11.3% from Emerging Markets (Asia Pacific and Latin America).

TheCompany��soperatingphilosophyis built on the ideathat its customersandthesuppliersit representsin themarketplacevalue
a partnerwith consistentglobalproductofferings,technicalproductandapplicationsupportandsupplychainserviceofferingsthatare
supportedby a commonoperatingsystemandbusinesspracticesthatensurethe��samelook, touchandfeel�� to doingbusinesswith the
Company wherever it supports them in the world.

TheCompany��sgrowthstrategyis built on a foundationof organicgrowthdrivenby constantrefreshandexpansionof its product
offering to meetchangingmarketplaceneeds.Thisorganicgrowthapproachextendsto aconstantlyevolvingsetof supplychainservices
thataredesignedto lower thecustomer��stotal costof procuring,owninganddeployingtheproductstheCompanysells.Organicgrowth
will periodicallybesupplementedwith acquisitionswherethebenefitsassociatedwith geographicexpansion,marketpenetrationor new
product line additions are weighted in favor of ��buying versus building.��

The Companylooks to drive nearterm growth throughthe executionof its threekey strategicinitiatives.First, the Companywill
continueto focusonproductline expansionespeciallyin foreignmarketswherethereareopportunitiesto expandandlocalizetheproduct
offering to createlargeraddressablemarketopportunities.Secondly, theCompanywill work to drive internationalexpansionthroughthe
developmentof saleslocationsin additionalcitieswithin countrieswheretheCompanyhasanestablishedpresence.Lastly, theCompany
will seekto expandthegeographicfootprintof its presencein theelectricalwire & cablemarketandOEM supplymarketto includemore
countrieswhereit hasanestablishedcountrypresencein theenterprisecablingmarket.Theseeffortsareanticipatedto provideadditional
growth over and above the growth that is expected to come from a recovering global economy.

Anixter hashistorically useda balancedapproachto capitalizingits businessandsupportingthe capital requirementsfor growth.
With a target debt-to-totalcapital ratio of 45% to 50% that seeksto optimize the weightedaveragecostof capital, the Companyhas
balancedtheneedsfor working capitalinvestmentto supportorganicgrowth,investin acquisitionsand,whenappropriate,returncapital
to shareholdersby way of sharerepurchasesandspecialdividends.During thelast threefiscal years,theCompanyspentapproximately
$183.6million to repurchaseandretire4 million of its outstandingshares.In 2011, theCompanyretiredtheremainderof its Convertible
Notesdue2033(��Notesdue2033��)andsold its AerospaceHardwarebusiness(��Aerospace��)for $155.0million which resultedin net
proceeds of $143.6 million. During 2010, the Company declared a
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specialdividendof $3.25percommonshare,or approximately$113.7million, in aneffort to reduceexcessliquidity in thebusinessand
maintainreasonablelevelsof financial leverageto optimizecostsof capital.During thefourth quarterof 2010,theCompanycompleted
anacquisitionof adistributorof securityproductsandlocksmithsuppliesfor $36.4million (offsetby $1.6million whichwasreturnedto
the Company during 2011 as a result of net working capital adjustments).

(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments

The Companyis engagedin the distribution of communicationsand specialtywire and cableproductsand ��C�� Classinventory
componentsfrom top suppliersto contractorsandinstallers,andalsoto endusersincludingmanufacturers,naturalresourcescompanies,
utilities andoriginal equipmentmanufacturerswho usethe Company��sproductsasa componentin their endproduct.The Company
is organizedby geographicregions,andaccordingly, hasidentified North America(United StatesandCanada),EuropeandEmerging
Markets(Asia Pacific andLatin America)as reportablesegments.The Companyobtainsandcoordinatesfinancing, tax, information
technology, legalandotherrelatedservices,certainof whicharerebilledto its subsidiaries.Certaincorporateexpensesareallocatedto the
segmentsbasedprimarily on specificidentification,projectedsalesandestimateduseof time. Interestexpenseandothernon-operating
items are not allocated to the segments or reviewed on a segment basis.

Within eachgeographicsegment,the Companyorganizesits salesteamsbasedon the anticipatedcustomeruse or application
of the productssold. Currently, the Companyhasenterprisecabling and security salesspecialists(primarily copperand fiber data
cabling,connectivity, securityproductsandrelatedsupportandsupplyproducts),electricalwire andcablesalesspecialists(primarily
power, controlandinstrumentationcabling)andOEM supplysalesspecialists(primarily directproductionline feedprogramsof small
componentsto OEMs).All salesteamshaveaccessto the full arrayof productsandservicesofferedby theCompanyandall salesare
serviced by the same operations, systems and support functions of the Company.

For certainfinancial informationconcerningtheCompany��sbusinesssegments,seeNote10. ��BusinessSegments��in theNotesto
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(c) Narrative Description of Business

Overview

TheCompanyis a leaderin theprovisionof advancedinventorymanagementservicesincludingprocurement,just-in-timedelivery,
quality assurancetesting,advisoryengineeringservices,componentkit production,small componentassemblyand e-commerceand
electronicdatainterchangeto a broadspectrumof customers.The Company��scomprehensivesupplychainmanagementsolutionsare
designedto reducecustomerprocurementandmanagementcostsandenhanceoverall productionor installationefficiencies.Inventory
managementservicesare frequentlyprovidedundercustomercontractsfor periodsin excessof oneyearand include the interfacing
of Anixter and customerinformation systemsand the maintenanceof dedicateddistribution facilities. Theseservicesare provided
exclusivelyin connectionwith the salesof products,andassuch,the price of suchservicesare includedin the price of the products
delivered to the customer.

Througha combinationof its servicecapabilitiesanda portfolio of productsfrom industry-leadingmanufacturers,the Company
is a leadingglobal distributor of data,voice, video and securitynetwork communicationproductsand the largestNorth American
distributorof specialtywire andcableproducts.In addition,Anixter is a leadingdistributorof ��C�� Classinventorycomponentswhichare
incorporatedinto a wide varietyof end-useapplicationsandincludescrews,bolts,nuts,washers,pins,rings,fittings, springs,electrical
connectors and similar small parts, the majority of which are specialized or highly engineered for particular customer applications.

2
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Customers

The Companysells productsto over 100,000active customers.Thesecustomersare international,national, regional and local
companiesthat include end users,installers, integratorsand resellersof the Company��sproductsas well as OEMs who use the
Company��sproductsasacomponentof theirendproduct.TheCompany��scustomerscoverall industrygroupsincludingmanufacturing,
resourceextraction,telecommunications,internetserviceproviders,finance,education,healthcare,transportation,utilities, aerospaceand
defenseandgovernmentaswell ascontractors,installers,systemintegrators,value-addedresellers,architects,engineersandwholesale
distributors. The Company��s customer base is well-diversified with no single customer accounting for more than 3% of sales.

Products

TheCompanysellsover450,000products.Theseproductsincludecommunications(voice,data,videoandsecurity)productsused
to connectpersonalcomputers,peripheralequipment,mainframeequipment,securityequipmentandvariousnetworksto eachother.
Theseproductsconsistof anassortmentof transmissionmedia(copperandfiber optic cable),connectivityproducts,supportandsupply
products,and securitysurveillanceand accesscontrol products.Theseproductsare incorporatedinto enterprisenetworks,physical
securitynetworks,centralswitchingoffices,webhostingsitesandremotetransmissionsites.In addition,Anixter provideselectricalwire
andcableproducts,includingelectricalandelectronicwire andcable,controlandinstrumentationcableandcoaxialcablethatareused
in a wide variety of maintenance,repairandconstruction-relatedapplications.The Companyalsoprovidesa wide variety of electrical
andelectronicwire andcableproducts,fastenersandothersmallcomponentsthatareusedby OEMsin manufacturinga wide varietyof
products.

Suppliers

The Companysourcesproductsfrom approximately6,500 suppliers.However, approximately30% of Anixter��s dollar volume
purchasesin 2011 were from its five largest suppliers.An important elementof Anixter��s overall businessstrategyis to develop
and maintaincloserelationshipswith its key suppliers,which include the world��s leadingmanufacturersof communicationcabling,
connectivity, supportandsupplyproducts,electricalwire andcableandfasteners.Suchrelationshipsemphasizejoint productplanning,
inventorymanagement,technicalsupport,advertisingandmarketing.In supportof thisstrategy, Anixter generallydoesnotcompetewith
its suppliersin productdesignor manufacturingactivities.Anixter alsogenerallydoesnotsellprivatelabelproductsthatcarrytheAnixter
name or a brand name exclusive to Anixter.

The Company��s typical distribution agreement includes the following significant terms:

�� a non-exclusive right to resell products to any customer in a geographical area (typically defined as a country);
�� usually cancelable upon 90 days notice by either party for any reason;
�� no minimum purchase requirements, although pricing may change with volume on a prospective basis; and
�� the right to pass through the manufacturer��s warranty to Anixter��s customers.

Distribution and Service Platform

The Companycost-effectively servesits customers��needsthroughits proprietarycomputersystems,which connectmost of its
warehousesand salesoffices throughoutthe world. The systemsare designedfor salessupport,order entry, inventory status,order
tracking,creditreviewandmaterialmanagement.CustomersmayalsoconductbusinessthroughAnixter��se-commerceplatform,oneof
the most comprehensive, user-friendly and secure websites in the industry.
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The Companyoperatesa seriesof large,modern,regionalwarehousesin key geographiclocationsin North America,Europeand
Emerging Marketsthat provide for cost-effective, reliable storageand delivery of productsto its customers.Anixter hasdesignated
14 warehousesasregionalwarehouses.Collectively thesefacilities storeover one-thirdof Anixter��s inventory. In certaincities,some
smallerwarehousesare also maintainedto maximizetransportationefficiency and to provide for the local needsof customers.This
networkof warehousesandsalesofficesconsistsof 156 locationsin theUnitedStates,17 in Canada,33 in theUnitedKingdom,37 in
Continental Europe, 30 in Latin America, 18 in Asia and 5 in Australia/New Zealand.

TheCompanyhasalsodevelopedcloserelationshipswith certainfreight, packagedeliveryandcourierservicesto minimize transit
times betweenits facilities and customerlocations.The combinationof its information systems,distribution network and delivery
partnershipsallowsAnixter to providea high level of customerservicewhile maintaininga reasonablelevel of investmentin inventory
and facilities.

Employees

At December30, 2011, theCompanyemployedapproximately8,200people.Approximately43%of theemployeesareengagedin
salesor sales-relatedactivities,37%areengagedin warehousinganddistributionoperationsand20%areengagedin supportactivities,
includinginventorymanagement,informationservices,finance,humanresourcesandgeneralmanagement.TheCompanydoesnothave
any significant concentrations of employees subject to collective bargaining agreements within any of its geographic segments.

Competition

Given the Company��srole as an aggregatorof many different typesof productsfrom many different sourcesandbecausethese
productsaresold to manydifferentindustrygroups,thereis no well-definedindustrygroupagainstwhich theCompanycompetes.The
Companyviews the competitiveenvironmentashighly fragmentedwith hundredsof distributorsandmanufacturersthat sell products
directly or throughmultiple distributionchannelsto endusersor otherresellers.Thereis significantcompetitionwithin eachendmarket
andgeographyservedthatcreatespricingpressureandtheneedfor constantattentionto improveservices.Competitionis basedprimarily
on breadthof products,quality, services,priceandgeographicproximity. Anixter believesthatit hasa significantcompetitiveadvantage
dueto its comprehensiveproductandserviceofferings,highly-skilledworkforceandglobaldistributionnetwork.TheCompanybelieves
its globaldistributionplatformprovidesa competitiveadvantageto servingmultinationalcustomers��needs.TheCompany��soperations
andlogisticsplatformgivesit theability to shipordersfrom inventoryfor deliverywithin 24 to 48 hoursto all majorglobalmarkets.In
addition,theCompanyhascommonsystemsandprocessesthroughoutmostof its operationsin morethan50 countriesthatprovideits
customers and suppliers with global consistency.

Anixter enhancesits value propositionto both key suppliersand customersthrough its specificationsand testing facilities and
numerousqualityassurancecertificationprogramssuchasISO9001:2008andISOTEC17025.TheCompanyusesits testingfacilities in
conjunctionwith suppliersto developproductspecificationsandto testquality compliance.At its datanetwork-testinglab locatedat the
Company��ssuburbanChicagoheadquarters,theCompanyalsoworkswith customersto designandtestvariousproductconfigurations
to optimize network designand performancespecific to the customers��needs.At its strategicallypositionedtechnicalcentersand
laboratoriesandthroughvariousregionalquality labs,theCompanyoffersOEMsa comprehensiverangeof dimensional,performance
and mechanical testing and materials characterization for product testing and failure investigation.

Most of the Company��s competitors are privately held, and as a result, reliable competitive information is not available.

Contract Sales and Backlog

The Companyhas a number of customerswho purchaseproductsunder long-term (generally three to five year) contractual
arrangements. In such circumstances, the relationship with the customer typically involves a
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high degreeof materialrequirementsplanningandinformationsystemsinterfacesand,in somecases,mayrequirethemaintenanceof a
dedicateddistributionfacility or dedicatedpersonnelandinventoryat,or in closeproximity to, thecustomersiteto meettheneedsof the
customer. Suchcontractsdonotgenerallyrequirethecustomerto purchaseanyminimumamountof goodsfrom theCompany, butwould
requirethatmaterialsacquiredby Anixter asa resultof joint materialrequirementsplanningbetweentheCompanyandthecustomerbe
purchased by the customer.

Generally, backlogorders,excludingcontractualcustomers,representapproximatelyfour weeksof salesandshipto customerswithin
30 to 60 daysfrom orderdate.The Company��soperationsandlogisticsplatform givesit the ability to ship ordersfrom inventoryfor
delivery within 24 to 48 hours to all major global markets.

Seasonality

The operatingresultsarenot significantly affectedby seasonalfluctuationsexceptfor the impact resultingfrom variationsin the
numberof billing daysfrom quarterto quarter. Consecutivequartersalesfrom thethird to fourth quartersaregenerallylower dueto the
holidaysandlower numberof billing daysascomparedto otherconsecutivequartercomparisons.As theCompany��sfastenerbusiness
grows, the Companyexpectsseasonalfluctuationsto increaseslightly, as the first and secondquarterare somewhatstrongerin the
fastener business, due to third and fourth quarter seasonal and holiday plant shutdowns among OEM customers.

(d) Financial Information about Geographic Areas

For informationconcerningforeignanddomesticoperationsandexportsalesseeNote7. ��IncomeTaxes��andNote10. ��Business
Segments�� in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(e) Available Information

The Companymaintainsan Internetwebsiteat http://www.anixter.com that includeslinks to the Company��sAnnual Reporton
Form 10-K, QuarterlyReportson Form 10-Q, CurrentReportson Form 8-K and all amendmentsto thesereports.Theseforms are
availablewithoutchargeassoonasreasonablypracticalfollowing thetimetheyarefiled with or furnishedto theSecuritiesandExchange
Commission(��SEC��). Shareholdersand other interestedpartiesmay requestemail notificationsof the postingof thesedocuments
through the Investor Relations section of the Company��s website.

TheCompany��sInternetwebsitealsocontainscorporategovernanceinformationincludingcorporategovernanceguidelines;audit,
compensationandnominationandgovernancecommitteecharters;nominationprocessfor directors;andtheCompany��sbusinessethics
and conduct policy.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following factorscould materially adverselyaffect the Company��soperatingresultsand financial condition. Although the
Companyhastried to discusskey factors,pleasebe awarethat other risks may prove to be importantin the future. New risks may
emergeatanytime,andtheCompanycannotpredictthoserisksor estimatetheextentto which theymayaffect theCompany��sfinancial
performance.

A change in salesstrategyor financial viability of the Company����s supplierscould adverselyaffect the Company����s salesor
earnings.

Most of the Company��sagreementswith suppliersare terminableby either party on short notice for any reason.The Company
currentlysourcesproductsfrom approximately6,500suppliers.However, approximately30%of theCompany��sdollarvolumepurchases
in 2011 were from its five largestsuppliers.If any of thesesupplierschangedits salesstrategyto reduceits relianceon distribution
channels, or decided to terminate its
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businessrelationshipwith the Company, salesand earningscould be adverselyaffected until the Companywas able to establish
relationshipswith suppliersof comparableproducts.AlthoughtheCompanybelievesits relationshipswith thesekey suppliersaregood,
theycouldchangetheir strategiesasa resultof a changein control,expansionof their directsalesforce,changesin themarketplaceor
other factors beyond the Company��s control, including a key supplier becoming financially distressed.

The Company has risks associated with the sale of nonconforming products and services.

Historically, the Companyhasexperienceda small numberof casesin which the Company��svendorssuppliedthe Companywith
productsthat did not conform to the agreeduponspecificationswithout the knowledgeof the Company. Additionally, the Company
may inadvertentlysell a productnot suitablefor a customer��sapplication.TheCompanyaddressesthis risk throughits quality control
processes,by seekingto limit liability andits warrantyin its customercontracts,by obtainingindemnificationrightsfrom vendorsandby
maintaininginsuranceresponsiveto theserisks.However, therecanbeno assurancethattheCompanywill beableto includeprotective
provisionsin all of its contracts,thatvendorswill havethefinancialcapabilityto fulfill their indemnificationobligationsto theCompany,
or that insurance can be obtained with sufficiently broad coverage or in amounts sufficient to fully protect the Company.

The Company����s foreign operations are subject to political, economic and currency risks.

TheCompanyderivesover40%of its revenuesfrom salesoutsideof theUnitedStates.Economicandpolitical conditionsin some
of thesemarketsmay adverselyaffect the Company��sresultsof operations,cashflows andfinancial condition in thesemarkets.The
Company��sresultsof operationsandthevalueof its foreignassetsareaffectedby fluctuationsin foreigncurrencyexchangerates,and
different legal, tax, accounting and regulatory requirements.

The Company has risks associated with inventory.

The Companymust identify the right productmix andmaintainsufficient inventoryon handto meetcustomerorders.Failure to
do socouldadverselyaffect theCompany��ssalesandearnings.However, if circumstanceschange(for example,anunexpectedshift in
marketdemand,pricing or customerdefaults)therecouldbea materialimpacton thenet realizablevalueof theCompany��sinventory.
To guardagainstinventoryobsolescence,theCompanyhasnegotiatedvariousreturnrightsandpriceprotectionagreementswith certain
key suppliers.The Companyalsomaintainsan inventoryvaluationreserveaccountagainstdiminution in the valueor salability of the
Company��sinventory. However, thereis no guarantythat thesearrangementswill be sufficient to avoid write-offs in excessof the
Company��s reserves in all circumstances.

The Company����s operating results are affected by copper prices.

The Company��soperatingresultshavebeenaffectedby changesin copperprices,which is a major componentin a portion of the
electricalwire andcableproductssoldby theCompany. As theCompany��spurchasecostswith supplierschangeto reflectthechanging
copperprices,its mark-upto customersremainsrelativelyconstant,resultingin higheror lowersalesrevenueandgrossprofit depending
upon whether copper prices are increasing or decreasing.

The degreeto which price changesin the coppercommodityspotmarketcorrelateto productprice changesis a factor of market
demandlevels for products.When demandis strong,there is a high degreeof correlationbut when demandis weak, therecan be
significant time lags between spot price changes and market price changes.

The Company has risks associated with the integration of acquired businesses.

In connectionwith recentandfutureacquisitions,it is necessaryfor theCompanyto continueto createa cohesivebusinessfrom the
various acquired properties. This requires the establishment of a common
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managementteamto guidethe acquiredbusinesses,the conversionof numerousinformationsystemsto a commonoperatingsystem,
theestablishmentof a brandidentity for theacquiredbusinesses,thestreamliningof theoperatingstructureto optimizeefficiency and
customerserviceanda reassessmentof the inventoryandsupplierbaseto ensuretheavailability of productsat competitiveprices.No
assurancecanbegiventhatthesevariousactionscancontinueto becompletedwithoutdisruptionto thebusiness,thatthevariousactions
can be completed in a short period of time or that anticipated improvements in operating performance can be achieved.

The Company����s debt agreements could impose restrictions on its business.

The Company��sdebtagreementscontaincertainfinancial andoperatingcovenantsthat limit its discretionwith respectto certain
businessmatters.Thesecovenantsrestrict the Company��sability to incur additionalindebtednessaswell asthey limit the amountof
dividendsor sharerepurchasestheCompanymaymake.As a resultof theserestrictions,theCompanyis limited in how it mayconduct
business and may be unable to compete effectively or take advantage of new business opportunities.

The Company has risks associated with accounts receivable.

Althoughno singlecustomeraccountsfor morethan3% of theCompany��ssales,a paymentdefaultby oneof its largercustomers
couldhavea short-termimpacton earnings.Giventhecurrenteconomicenvironment,constrainedaccessto capitalandgeneralmarket
contractions may heighten exposure to customer defaults.

The Company has near term funding needs.

TheCompanybelievesthatexpectedfutureearnings,cashflow generatedfrom operationsandavailable,committed,unusedcredit
lines will be sufficient to fund operationsanddebtmaturities,including the repaymentof $300million aggregateprincipal amountof
convertiblenotesasa resultof maturity or conversion.In the eventthesesourcesarenot sufficient to supportthe Company��sfunding
needs,theCompanymayneedto accessthecapitalmarketsandtherecanbeno assurancethat,whentheCompanyaccessesthecapital
markets,funding will be availableor will be availableon favorableterms.This could result in a materialincreasein interestexpense,
decrease in profitability or more restrictive covenants.

For informationconcerningthe Company��sconvertiblenotesandotherdebt,seeNote 5. ��Debt�� in the Notesto the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

A decline in project volume could adversely affect the Company����s sales and earnings.

While mostof theCompany��ssalesandearningsaregeneratedby comparativelysmallerandmorefrequentorders,the fulfillment
of large ordersfor capitalprojectsgeneratessignificantsalesandearnings.Slow macro-economicgrowth rates,difficult credit market
conditionsfor our customers,weakdemandfor our customers��productsor othercustomerspendingconstraintscanresult in project
delays or cancellations, potentially having a material adverse effect on the Company��s financial results.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

TheCompany��sdistributionnetworkconsistsof over220warehousesin morethan50countrieswith approximately7 million square
feet.Thereare14 regionaldistributioncenters(100,000�� 575,000squarefeet),33 local distributioncenters(35,000�� 100,000square
feet) and175 servicecenters.Additionally, the Companyhas74 salesoffices throughoutthe world. All but two of thesefacilities are
leased.No one facility is material to operations,and the Companybelievesthereis amplesupply of alternativewarehousingspace
available on similar terms and conditions in each of its markets.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

In April 2008, the Companyvoluntarily disclosedto the U.S. Departmentsof Treasuryand Commercethat one of its foreign
subsidiariesmay haveviolatedU.S. export control laws and regulationsin connectionwith re-exportsof goodsto prohibitedparties
or destinationsincluding Cubaand Syria, countriesidentified by the StateDepartmentas statesponsorsof terrorism.The Company
performeda thoroughreviewof its exportandre-exporttransactionsanddid not identify anyotherpotentiallysignificantviolations.The
Companydeterminedandtook appropriatecorrectiveactions.TheCompanysubmittedtheresultsof its reviewandits correctiveaction
planto theapplicableU.S.governmentagencies.OnNovember1, 2011, theCompanyreceivedawarningletterfrom theU.S.Commerce
Departmentandon December20, 2011, theCompanyreceiveda cautionaryletter from theU.S.TreasuryDepartmentstatingthateach
department was officially closing the matter without fines, penalties or other consequences to the Company.

In May 2009, RaytheonCo. filed for arbitration againstone of the Company��ssubsidiaries,Anixter Inc., alleging that it had
suppliednon-conformingpartsto Raytheon.Raytheonsoughtdamagesof approximately$26million. Thearbitrationhearingconcluded
in October2010andthearbitrationpanelrenderedits decisionat theendof 2010.Thearbitrationpanelenteredaninterim awardagainst
theCompanyin theamountof $20.8million. In April 2011, thearbitrationpanelentereda final awardthat reiteratedthe$20.8million
liability andaddedadditionalliability of $1.5million in favor of Raytheonfor certainof its attorneys��feesandcostsin thearbitration
proceeding.In thefourthquarterof 2010,theCompanyrecordedapre-taxchargeof $20.0million whichapproximatestheexpectedcost
of theawardafterconsiderationof insuranceproceeds,fees,costsandintereston theawardat 10%perannumuntil paid.As a resultof
theCompany��ssaleof its Aerospacebusinessin thethird quarterof 2011 thechargerelatedto thismatterwasreclassifiedto discontinued
operationsin theCompany��sConsolidatedStatementof Operationsfor theyearendedDecember31,2010.Assetsandliabilities related
to theRaytheonmatterwereretainedby theCompanyandwerenotreclassifiedto assetsandliabilities of discontinuedoperations.In June
2011, theCompanyfiled amotionto vacatethearbitrationawardin theSuperiorCourtof MaricopaCounty, Arizona.In November2011,
the court deniedthe Company��smotion andconfirmedthe arbitrationawardin full. During the fourth quarterof 2011, the Company
recordedanadditional$2.5million in discontinuedoperationsto coverexpectedinterestassociatedwith furtherappealproceedings.In
February2012,theCompanyappealedto theArizonaCourtof AppealstheMaricopaCountySuperiorCourt judgmentconfirming the
arbitrationaward.As part of the appellateprocess,the Companyhaspostedcollateralby tendering$10.0million to Raytheonin cash
andpostinga bondin favor of Raytheonin theamountof $12.4million. In theeventthe judgmentis upheld,Raytheonhasagreedthat
post-judgmentinterestwill not accrueon $10.0million of the judgmentfrom thedatethat theCompanytenderedthecashcollateral.In
the event the judgment is not upheld, the Company will receive a return of the cash and the bond.

In September2009,theGardenCity Employees��RetirementSystemfiled apurportedclassactionunderthefederalsecuritieslawsin
theUnitedStatesDistrict Court for theNorthernDistrict of Illinois againsttheCompany, its currentandformerchief executiveofficers
and its former chief financial officer. In November2009, the Court enteredan order appointingthe IndianaLaborersPensionFund
asleadplaintiff andappointingleadplaintiff��s counsel.In January2010,the leadplaintiff filed an amendedcomplaint.The amended
complaint principally allegesthat the Companymademisleadingstatementsduring 2008 regardingcertain aspectsof its financial
performanceandoutlook.Theamendedcomplaintseeksunspecifieddamageson behalfof personswho purchasedthecommonstockof
theCompanybetweenJanuary29andOctober20,2008.In March2011, theCourtdismissedthecomplaintbutallowedtheleadplaintiff
theopportunityto re-pleadits complaint.Theplaintiff did soin April 2011. TheCompanyandtheotherdefendantsintendto continueto
defendthemselvesvigorouslyagainsttheallegations.Basedon factsknown to managementat this time, theCompanycannotestimate
the amount of loss, if any, and, therefore, has not made any accrual for this matter in these financial statements.

In October2009, the Companydisclosedto the U.S. Governmentthat it may have violated laws and regulationsrestricting
entertainment of government employees. The Inspector General of the relevant federal

8

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


agencyis investigatingthe disclosureand the Companyis cooperatingin the investigation.Civil and or criminal penaltiescould be
assessedagainsttheCompanyin connectionwith anyviolationsthataredeterminedto haveoccurred.In January2012,theCompanywas
informedby theDepartmentof Justice,Civil Division, thatit is investigatingthismatterandthataqui tamactionhasbeenfiled underthe
FalseClaimsAct, which remainsundersealpursuantto statute.TheDepartmentof Justicehasreceivedanorderpartially lifting theseal
to permitthegovernmentto discussthematterwith theCompany;however, thegovernmenthasinstructedAnixter that it mustmaintain
theconfidentialityof thematter. Basedon factsknownto managementat this time, theCompanycannotestimatetheamountof loss,if
any, and, therefore, has not made any accrual for this matter in these financial statements.

Fromtime to time, in theordinarycourseof business,theCompanyandits subsidiariesbecomeinvolvedasplaintiffs or defendants
in variousotherlegalproceedingsnot enumeratedabove.Theclaimsandcounterclaimsin suchotherlegalproceedings,includingthose
for punitivedamages,individually in certaincasesandin theaggregate,involveamountsthatmaybematerial.However, it is theopinion
of theCompany��smanagement,basedontheadviceof its counsel,thattheultimatedispositionof thoseproceedingswill notbematerial.
As of December30, 2011, theCompanydoesnot believethereis a reasonablepossibility thatanymateriallossexceedingtheamounts
alreadyrecognizedfor theseproceedingsand mattershasbeenincurred.However, the ultimate resolutionsof theseproceedingsand
mattersareinherentlyunpredictable.As such,theCompany��sfinancialconditionandresultsof operationscouldbeadverselyaffectedin
any particular period by the unfavorable resolution of one or more of these proceedings or matters.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following tablelists the name,ageasof February27, 2012,position,offices andcertainotherinformationwith respectto the
executiveofficersof theCompany. Thetermof office of eachexecutiveofficer will expireupontheappointmentof his successorby the
Board of Directors.

Robert J. Eck, 53

Director of the Company since 2008; President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Companysince July 2008; Executive
Vice-President�� Chief OperatingOfficer of the Companyfrom
September 2007 to July 2008; Executive Vice-President ��
EnterpriseCablingandSecuritySystemsof Anixter from January
2004to September2007;SeniorVice-President�� PhysicalSecurity
and IntegratedSupply Solutionsof Anixter from 2003 to 2004;
Director of Ryder System, Inc. since 2011.

Theodore A. Dosch, 52

ExecutiveVice-President�� Financeand Chief Financial Officer
of the CompanysinceJuly 2011; SeniorVice-President�� Global
Finance of the Company from January 2009 to June 2011;
Corporate Vice President �� Global Productivity at Whirlpool
Corporation from April 2008 to January2009; CFO �� North
America and Vice President�� Maytag Integrationat Whirlpool
Corporationfrom November2006to March2008;CorporateVice
President�� Maytag IntegrationTeam at Whirlpool Corporation
from January2006 to October 2006; CorporateController at
Whirlpool Corporationfrom September2004 to December2005;
CFO �� North Americaat Whirlpool Corporationfrom November
1999to August2004.Mr. DoschalsocurrentlyservesontheBoard
of Directors of Habitat for Humanity International.

Terrance A. Faber, 60 Vice-President �� Controller of the Company since October 2000.

Philip F. Meno, 53 Vice-President �� Taxes of the Company since May 1993.

Mary Kate Powell, 39

Vice-President�� InternalAudit sinceNovember2011; Directorof
Audit Services�� Illinois Tool Works Inc. from March 2008 to
November2011; ChiefAudit Executive- Sun-TimesMediaGroup,
Inc. from March 2006to March 2008;SeniorManager�� Deloitte
from July 1998 to March 2006.

Rodney A. Shoemaker, 54 Vice-President �� Treasurer of the Company since July 1999.

Rodney A. Smith, 54
Vice-President�� HumanResourcesof the CompanysinceAugust
2006;Vice-President�� HumanResourcesat UOP, LLC from July
2000 to August 2006.

10

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT ����S COMMON EQUITY , RELATED STOCKHOLDER MA TTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Anixter InternationalInc.��s CommonStock is tradedon the New York Stock Exchangeunder the symbol AXE. Stock price
information,dividendinformationandshareholdersof recordaresetforth in Note12. ��SelectedQuarterlyFinancialData(Unaudited)��
in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. There have been no sales of unregistered securities.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graphsetsforth the annualchangesfor the five-yearperiod indicatedin a theoreticalcumulativetotal shareholder
returnof aninvestmentof $100in Anixter��scommonstockandeachcomparisonindex,assumingreinvestmentof dividends.Thisgraph
reflectsthecomparisonof shareholderreturnon theCompany��scommonstockwith thatof abroadmarketindexandapeergroupindex
consistentwith the prior year. The Company��sPeerGroupIndex for 2011 consistsof the following companies:Agilysys Inc., Arrow
ElectronicsInc., AvnetInc., FastenalCompany, W.W. GraingerInc., HoustonWire andCableCompany, IngramMicro, MSC Industrial
DirectCo.Inc.,ParkOhioHoldingsCorp.,RichardsonElectronicsLtd., TechDataCorp,andWESCOInternational,Inc. Thispeergroup
wasselectedbasedon a reviewof publicly availableinformationaboutthesecompaniesandtheCompany��sdeterminationthattheyare
engaged in distribution businesses similar to that of the Company.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DA TA.

(In millions, except per share amounts) Fiscal Year

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Selected Income Statement Data:
Net sales $6,146.9 $5,274.5 $4,779.6 $5,891.0 $5.661.5
Operating incomea 362.8 267.2 84.8 341.5 402.7
Interest expense and other, netb (59.3 ) (55.1 ) (85.3 ) (87.0 ) (54.0 )
Early retirement of debtc ���� (31.9 ) (1.1 ) �� ��
Net income (loss) from continuing operationsa, b, c, d 200.7 109.5 (41.4 ) 153.8 222.4
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, nete (12.5 ) (1.0 ) 12.1 34.1 23.1
Net income (loss) $188.2 $108.5 $(29.3 ) $187.9 $245.5

Income (loss) per share
Basic:

Continuing operations $5.87 $3.21 $(1.17 ) $4.34 $5.96
Discontinued operations $(0.37 ) $(0.03 ) $0.34 $0.96 $0.62

Net income $5.50 $3.18 $(0.83 ) $5.30 $6.58

Diluted:
Continuing operations $5.71 $3.08 $(1.17 ) $3.98 $5.27
Discontinued operations $(0.35 ) $(0.03 ) $0.34 $0.89 $0.54

Net income $5.36 $3.05 $(0.83 ) $4.87 $5.81

Dividend declared per common sharef $���� $3.25 $�� $�� $��

Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Total assetsb $ 3,034.0 $ 2,933.3 $ 2,671.7 $ 3,062.4 $ 2,981.4
Total short-term debtg $3.0 $203.4 $8.5 $249.3 $83.9
Total long-term debtc, g $806.8 $688.7 $821.1 $852.1 $858.5
Stockholders�� equityf $1,001.2 $1,010.8 $1,024.1 $1,072.8 $1,092.5
Book value per diluted share $28.50 $28.45 $29.17 $27.77 $25.88
Weighted-average diluted shares 35.1 35.5 35.1 38.6 42.2
Year-end outstanding shares 33.2 34.3 34.7 35.3 36.3

Other Financial Data:
Working capital $1,376.0 $1,233.1 $1,381.0 $1,350.9 $1,439.0
Capital expenditures $26.4 $19.6 $21.9 $32.4 $36.1
Depreciation and amortization of intangibles $33.5 $33.8 $37.1 $34.6 $30.8

In Decemberof 2010,theCompanyacquiredClark SecurityProducts,Inc andGeneralLock, LLC (collectively ��Clark��) for $36.4
million (which wasoffsetby $1.6million during2011 asa resultof networking capitaladjustments).As theacquisitionof Clark closed
during the latter part of December2010,salesandoperatingincomefrom the dateof acquisitionwereinsignificantto 2010results.In
August,SeptemberandOctoberof 2008,theCompanyacquiredQSNIndustries,Inc. (��QSN��),QualityScrewdeMexicoSA (��QSM��),
SofrasarSA (��Sofrasar��),CamilleGergenGmbH& Co,KG andCamilleGergenVerwaltungsGmbH(collectively��Gergen��)andWorld
ClassWire & CableInc. (��World Class��)for $76.1million, $4.5million, $20.7million, $19.4million and$61.4million, respectively,
inclusiveof legal andadvisoryfees.In May andApril of 2007, the CompanyacquiredEurofastSAS (��Eurofast��)andTotal Supply
SolutionsLimited (��TSS��) for $26.9million and $8.3 million, respectively, inclusive of legal and advisoryfees.As a result of the
acquisitionsdescribedabove,saleswere favorably affectedin 2011, 2009,2008 and 2007 by $120.1million, $109.8million, $87.7
million and$125.5million, respectively, ascomparedto the prior year. Operatingincomewasunfavorablyaffectedin 2009by $2.4
million andfavorablyaffectedin 2011,2008and2007by $2.6million, $3.1million and$12.1million, respectively. Theacquisitionswere
accountedfor aspurchasesandtheresultsof operationsof theacquiredbusinessesareincludedin theconsolidatedfinancialstatements
from the dates of acquisition.
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In Augustof 2011, theCompanysoldAerospace.As a resultof thedivestiture,resultsof thebusinessarereflectedas��Discontinued
Operations��andall prior periodshavebeenrevisedto reflectthisclassification.Thesalespriceof $155.0million resultedin netproceeds
of $143.6 million after adjusting for working capital adjustments and amounts paid by the Company for legal and advisory fees.

Notes:

(a) For theyearendedDecember30,2011, theCompanyrecordedachargeof $5.3million ($0.09perdilutedshare)relatedto facility
consolidationsandheadcountreductionsin Europe.For theyearendedJanuary1, 2010,operatingincomeincludes$100.0million
($2.85per diluted share)of non-cashgoodwill impairmentcharge relatedto the Europeanoperations,$5.7 million ($0.11 per
diluted share)of severancecostsrelatedto staffing reductionsand $4.2 million ($0.07per diluted share)relatedto exchange
rate-drivenlower of costor marketadjustmenton inventoryin Venezuela.For theyearendedJanuary2, 2009,operatingincome
includes$4.2million of expense($0.07perdilutedshare)relatedto theretirementof our formerChief ExecutiveOfficer, $24.1
million ($0.38per diluted share)relatedto receivablelossesfrom customerbankruptcies,$2.0million ($0.04per diluted share)
relatedto the inventorylower of costor marketadjustmentsresultingfrom sharplylower copperpricesand$8.1million ($0.14
per diluted share) primarily related to severance costs.

(b) For theyearendedDecember31,2010,theCompanyrecognizeda foreignexchangegainof $2.1million ($0.02perdilutedshare)
associatedwith its Venezuelaoperations.In 2009,theCompanyrecognizedforeignexchangelossesof $13.8million ($0.17per
diluted share)associatedwith its Venezuelaoperationsanda lossof $2.1 million ($0.04per diluted share)associatedwith the
cancellationof interestratehedgingcontractsasa resultof therepaymentof therelatedborrowings.For theyearendedJanuary2,
2009,the Companyrecordeda pre-taxlossof $18.0million ($0.34per diluted share)relatedto foreign exchangelossesdueto
botha sharpchangein therelationshipbetweentheU.S.dollar andall of themajorcurrenciesin which theCompanyconductsits
businessand,for severalweeks,highly volatile conditionsin the foreignexchangemarkets.For theyearendedJanuary2, 2009,
theCompanyalsorecordedapre-taxlossof $6.5million ($0.10perdilutedshare)relatedto thedeclinein thecashsurrendervalue
of Company owned life insurance policies associated with the Company��s deferred compensation program.

(c) In 2010and2009,theCompanyrecognizeda lossof $31.9million ($0.55perdilutedshare)and$1.1million ($0.02perdiluted
share), respectively, associated with the early retirement of debt.

(d) In 2011, theCompanyrecordednet tax benefitsof $10.8million ($0.31perdilutedshare)which includethereversalof deferred
incometax valuationallowancesof $11.3million, partially offsetby additionalprior yeartaxesof $0.5million. Together, thenet
taxbenefitsandaforementioneditem in (a)aboveincreasednetincomein 2011 by $7.5million ($0.22perdilutedshare).In 2010,
the Companyrecordeda tax benefitof $1.3million ($0.03per diluted share)relatedto the reversalof prior yearforeign taxes.
Together, thetax item andtheaforementioneditemsin (b) and(c) above,reducednetincomein 2010by $17.7million ($0.50per
dilutedshare).In 2009,net incomewasreducedby $115.0million ($3.16perdilutedshare)relatedto theaforementioneditems
in (a), (b) and(c) above.In 2009,the Companyalsorecorded$4.8 million ($0.13per diluted share)of net tax benefitsrelated
primarily to thereversalof avaluationallowance.In 2008,theCompanyrecorded$1.6million ($0.04perdilutedshare)of nettax
benefitsrelatedto thereversalof valuationallowancesassociatedwith certainforeignnetoperatinglosscarryforwards.Together,
thetax item andtheaforementioneditemsin (b) above,reducednetincomein 2008by $39.8million ($1.03perdilutedshare).In
2007,theCompanyrecorded$11.8million ($0.28perdilutedshare)of netincomeprimarily relatedto foreigntaxbenefitsaswell
as a tax settlement in the U.S.

(e) As aresultof thesaleof Aerospace,beginningin thethird quarterof 2011, theCompanybeganto recordtheresultsof thisbusiness
as��DiscontinuedOperations��andall prior periodshavebeenrevisedto reflectthisclassification.In 2010,theCompanyrecorded
a chargeof $20.0million ($0.35perdilutedshare)relatedto anunfavorablearbitrationruling which is includedin the lossfrom
discontinued operations.
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(f) Stockholders��equityreflectstreasurystockpurchasesof $107.5million, $41.2million, $34.9million, $104.6million and$244.8
million for the yearsendedDecember30, 2011, December31, 2010,January1, 2010,January2, 2009andDecember28, 2007,
respectively, all of which havebeenretired.During 2010,the Companyalsodeclareda specialdividendof $3.25per common
share,andpaid$111.0million in theaggregatefor suchdividend,asa returnof excesscapitalto shareholders.During 2011, 2010
and2009,theCompanyrepurchasedaportionof its ConvertibleNotesdue2033resultingin areductionin equityof $57.4million,
$20.4 million and $34.3 million, respectively, net of tax.

(g) Prior to 2010,short-termdebtprimarily consistedof borrowingsundertheCompany��saccountsreceivablesecuritizationfacility.
In 2011, thematuritydateof theAnixter ReceivablesCorporation(��ARC��) facility wasamendedfrom July 2011 to May 2013.
As a resultof the changein maturity, the outstandingbalanceof the facility is classifiedas long-termdebtat the endof 2011.
During thefirst quarterof 2009,theCompany��sprimaryoperatingsubsidiary, Anixter Inc., issued$200million principalamount
of 10% SeniorNotesdue2014(��Notesdue2014��).In 2009,the Companyrepurchaseda portion of the Notesdue2014which
resultedin reducingthisdebtbalanceby $23.6million. Also, in 2009,theCompanyrepurchasedaportionof its ConvertibleNotes
due2033(��Notesdue2033��) resultingin a reductionof borrowingsof $60.1million ascomparedto the endof 2008.During
2010,the Companyrepurchasedanotherportion of the Notesdue2014which resultedin reducingthe debtbalancesby $133.7
million to $30.6million. Also, in 2010,theCompanyrepurchasedanotherportionof its Notesdue2033resultingin a reduction
of borrowingsof $67.0million. In 2011, theCompanyretiredtheremainingamountof its Notesdue2033resultingin a reduction
of borrowingsof $48.9million. During the first quarterof 2007,the Companyissued$300million of convertibleseniornotes
due2013(��Notesdue2013��).For moreinformationon short-termandlong-termdebt,seeNote 5. ��Debt�� in the Notesto the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ����S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESUL TS OF
OPERATIONS.

The following Management��sDiscussionand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resultsof Operationsmay contain various
��forward-lookingstatements��within the meaningof Section27A of the SecuritiesAct of 1933,asamended,andSection21E of the
SecuritiesExchangeAct of 1934,asamended.Thesestatementscanbe identified by the useof forward-lookingterminologysuchas
��believe,����expect,����intend,�� ��anticipate,����contemplate,����estimate,����plan,�� ��project,�� ��should,�� ��may,�� ��will,�� or the negative
thereofor othervariationsthereonor comparableterminologyindicatingtheCompany��sexpectationsor beliefsconcerningfutureevents.
The Companycautionsthat suchstatementsarequalified by importantfactorsthat could causeactualresultsto differ materiallyfrom
thosein theforward-lookingstatements,a numberof which areidentifiedin this reportunderItem1A. ��Risk Factors.��Theinformation
containedin this financial reviewshouldbe readin conjunctionwith theconsolidatedfinancial statements,including thenotesthereto,
on pages 40 to 82 of this Report.

This report includescertain financial measurescomputedusing non-GenerallyAcceptedAccounting Principles(��non-GAAP��)
componentsas definedby the SEC. Specifically, net sales,comparisonsto the prior correspondingperiod, both worldwide and in
relevantgeographicsegments,are discussedin this report both on a GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciple (��GAAP��) basisand
excludingacquisitionsandforeignexchangeandcopperpriceeffects(��non-GAAP��).In addition,in 2010,theCompanydiscussesthe
salescomparisonsto theprior yearexcludingthesalesimpactrelatedto theCompany��sdecisionto exit a customercontractat theend
of 2009.The Companybelievesthat by reportingorganicgrowth which excludesthe impactof acquisitions,foreignexchange,copper
pricesandtheimpactof thecustomercontractthatwasterminatedat theendof 2009,bothmanagementandinvestorsareprovidedwith
meaningfulsupplementalinformationto understandandanalyzetheCompany��sunderlyingsalestrendsandotheraspectsof its financial
performance.

Non-GAAP financialmeasuresprovideinsight into selectedfinancial informationandshouldbe evaluatedin the contextin which
they arepresented.Thesenon-GAAPfinancialmeasureshavelimitations asanalyticaltools,andshouldnot be consideredin isolation
from, or asa substitutefor, financial informationpresentedin compliancewith GAAP, andnon-financialmeasuresasreportedby the
Companymay not be comparableto similarly titled amountsreportedby othercompanies.The non-GAAPfinancial measuresshould
beconsideredin conjunctionwith theconsolidatedfinancialstatements,includingtherelatednotes,andManagement��sDiscussionand
Analysisof FinancialConditionandResultsof Operationsincludedhereinin this report.Managementdoesnot usethesenon-GAAP
financial measures for any purpose other than the reasons stated above.

Divestiture of Business

In August of 2011, the Company��sboard of directors approvedthe sale of the Company��sAerospaceHardwarebusiness
(��Aerospace��)andthe transactionclosedon August26, 2011. Although theCompany��shistoricalperformancein Aerospacehasbeen
strong,customerandsupplierconsolidationhasresultedin a businessmodeldistinctly different thanthe Company��soverall strategy.
The transactionwill enablethe Companyto focusits attentionandresourceson its coreoperationsandstrategicinitiatives.The sales
priceof $155.0million resultedin netproceedsof $143.6million afteradjustingfor working capitaladjustmentsandamountspaidby
theCompanyfor legalandadvisoryfees.TheCompanyreportedanetlossfrom discontinuedoperationsin 2011 of $12.5million, which
includeda netlosson thesaleof $21.0million primarily dueto thewrite off of goodwill of $19.0million. Beginningin thethird quarter
of 2011, theCompanybeganto recordtheresultsof this businessas��DiscontinuedOperations��andall prior periodshavebeenrevised
to reflect this classification.North AmericaandEuropesegmentinformationhasalsobeenrevisedfrom the prior yearpresentationto
reflect the discontinued operations.

15

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


An additional$30.0million will bepaid to theCompanyif certainfinancial targetsareachievedon or beforeDecember31, 2013.
Thecontingentpaymentof $30.0million wasnot recorded,nor wasit includedin thecalculationof thelosson thesaleof Aerospaceas
it is theCompany��spolicy to recognizecontingentreceivablesin connectionwith a divestitureon thedatethecontingentreceivableis
realized.

Acquisition of Business

In Decemberof 2010,theCompanyacquiredall theoutstandingsharesof Clark SecurityProducts,Inc andtheassetsandoperations
of GeneralLock, LLC (collectively ��Clark��). Clark, basedin SanDiego,California, is a distributorof securityproductsandlocksmith
suppliesto commercial,industrialandgovernmententitiesthroughoutthe United States,with major distributioncentersin SanDiego,
California;Dallas,Texas;Sacramento,California;Denver, Colorado;Lexington,Kentucky;Silver Spring,Maryland;Phoenix,Arizona;
and Kent, Washington.Clark��s broadarray of productsincludeslocking hardware,accesscontrol devices,closedcircuit television
systems,alongwith varioustechnicalsupportservices.TheCompanypaidapproximately$36.4million for the two companiesin 2010
(offset in 2011 by $1.6 million which was returned to the Company as a result of net working capital adjustments).

As a result of the acquisitionof Clark, salesand operatingincomewere favorably affectedin 2011 by $120.1million and $2.6
million, respectively. As theacquisitionof Clarkclosedduringthelatterpartof December2010,salesandoperatingincomein 2010were
insignificant.

The Clark acquisitionwas accountedfor as a purchaseand its respectiveresultsof operationsare included in the consolidated
financial statementsfrom the dateof acquisition.Had the acquisitionoccurredat the beginningof the year of the acquisition,the
Company��s operating results would not have been significantly different.

Intangibleamortizationexpenserelatedto all of theCompany��sintangibleassetsof $69.9million at December30,2011 is expected
to be approximately $10.1 million per year for the next five years.

Financial Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

As a distributor, the Company��suseof capital is largely for working capital to supportits revenuebase.Capital commitments
for property, plantandequipmentarelimited to informationtechnologyassets,warehouseequipment,office furnitureandfixturesand
leaseholdimprovements,sincetheCompanyoperatesalmostentirelyfrom leasedfacilities.Therefore,in anygivenreportingperiod,the
amountof cashconsumedor generatedby operationsotherthanfrom netearningswill primarily bedueto changesin working capitalas
a result of the rate of increases or decreases to sales.

In periodswhensalesareincreasing,theexpandedworkingcapitalneedswill befundedfirst by cashfrom operations,secondlyfrom
additionalborrowingsandlastly from additionalequityofferings.In periodswhensalesaredecreasing,theCompanywill haveimproved
cashflows dueto reducedworkingcapitalrequirements.Duringsuchperiods,theCompanywill usetheexpandedcashflow to reducethe
amountof leveragein its capitalstructureuntil suchtimeastheoutlookfor improvedeconomicconditionsandgrowthareclear. Also, the
Companywill, from time to time, issueor retireborrowingsor equityin aneffort to maintaina cost-effectivecapitalstructureconsistent
with its anticipated capital requirements.

The Companybelievesit hasa strongliquidity position,sufficient to meetits liquidity requirementsfor the next twelve months.
TheCompanygenerated$144.4million of cashfrom operationsduringfiscal2011 despitetheincreasedworkingcapitalrequirementsto
supportthe10.4%organicsalesgrowth.In 2011, theCompanyspent$26.4million on capitalexpenditures.Usingsomeof theproceeds
from thesaleof Aerospace,theCompanyrepurchased2.0million sharesof commonstockin theopenmarketfor $107.5million in 2011.
Using

16

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


proceedsfrom borrowingsundertheCompany��slong-termcreditfacility theCompanyretiredtheremainderof its ConvertibleNotesdue
2033(��Notesdue2033��)for $93.8million. In 2010,cashflow generatedfrom operationswas$195.2million aslower working capital
wasrequiredto supportthe revenuegrowthduring thatperiod.TheCompanyspent$36.4million for Clark in 2010(offset in 2011 by
$1.6million which wasreturnedto the Companyasa resultof net working capitaladjustments).In 2010,$19.6million wasspenton
capitalexpenditures,1.0million sharesof commonstockwererepurchasedin theopenmarketfor $41.2million andtheCompanyretired
a portionof its SeniorNotesdue2014(��Notesdue2014��)andNotesdue2033for a total of $285.1million. Also in 2010,theCompany
declared a special dividend for $3.25 per share that was payable on October28, 2010 to shareholders of record on October15, 2010.

With a year-endcashbalanceof $106.1million andavailablecommittedcredit facilities, theCompanywill continueto evaluatethe
optimaluseof thesefunds.TheCompanymayfrom time to time repurchaseadditionalamountsof theCompany��soutstandingsharesor
outstandingdebtobligations.TheCompanymaintainsthe flexibility to utilize futurecashflows to investin thegrowthof thebusiness,
andit believesthat thecurrentleverageon thebalancesheetpositionstheCompanyto effectively capitalizeon the improvedeconomic
environmentaswell asadditionalacquisitionopportunitieswhentheybecomeavailable.TheCompanywill continueto balanceits focus
on salesandearningsgrowthwith continuingefforts in costcontrolandworking capitalmanagement.Maintaininga strongandflexible
financial position continues to be vital to funding investment in strategic long-term growth initiatives.

Cash Flow

Year endedDecember30,2011: Net cashprovidedby operatingactivitieswas$144.4million in 2011 comparedto $195.2million in
2010.Thedecreasein cashflow providedby operatingactivitiesis dueto achangein workingcapitalrequirementsto supportthe10.4%
organic sales growth.

Consolidatednet cashprovided by investing activities was $118.8 million primarily due to the net proceedsfrom the sale of
Aerospaceof $143.6million offsetby capitalexpendituresof $26.4million. Thiscomparesto netcashusedin investingactivitiesduring
2010of $56.0million for theacquisitionof Clark andcapitalexpenditures.Capitalexpendituresareexpectedto beapproximately$40
million in 2012as the Companycontinuesto invest in the consolidationof certainacquiredfacilities in North AmericaandEurope,
information system upgrades and new software to support its infrastructure and warehouse equipment.

Net cashusedin financingactivitieswas$235.5million in 2011 comparedto $172.3million in 2010.Using availableborrowings
undertheCompany��slong-termrevolvingcredit facility, theCompanyretiredtheremainderof its Notesdue2033for $93.8million in
2011.During2011, theCompanyrecordeddeferredfinancingcostsof $4.2million relatedto therefinancingof its revolvingcreditfacility
andaccountsreceivablesecuritizationfacility. Usingaportionof theproceedsfrom the2011 saleof Aerospace,theCompanyrepurchased
2.0million sharesof commonstock in the openmarketfor $107.5million. In 2010,usingnet cashgeneratedfrom operations,short-
termborrowingsundertheaccountsreceivablesecuritizationfacility andnetproceedsfrom otherborrowings,theCompanyrepurchased
1.0million sharesof commonstockin theopenmarketfor $41.2million andretireda portionof its Notesdue2014andNotesdue2033
for a total of $165.5 million and $119.6 million, respectively.

Year endedDecember31, 2010:Net cashprovidedby operatingactivitieswas$195.2million in 2010comparedto $440.9million
in 2009. The decreasein cashprovidedby operatingactivities comparedto the prior year is due to the changein working capital
requirementsto supportgrowth in 2010comparedto the reductionin working capital requirementsin 2009resultingfrom significant
sales declines in that period.

Consolidatednet cashusedin investing activities increasedto $56.0 million in 2010 comparedto $23.7 million in 2009. The
Companyspent$36.4million for Clark in 2010(offset in 2011 by $1.6million which wasreturnedto the Companyasa resultof net
working capital adjustments). Capital expenditures decreased to $19.6
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million in fiscal 2010from $21.9million in 2009.TheCompanycontinuedto investin theconsolidationof certainacquiredfacilities in
North America and Europe, information system upgrades and new software to support its infrastructure and warehouse equipment.

Netcashusedfor financingactivitieswas$172.3million in fiscal2010comparedto $371.0million in 2009.Usingnetcashgenerated
from operations,short-termborrowingsunderthe accountsreceivablesecuritizationfacility and net proceedsfrom other borrowings
during2010,theCompanyrepurchased1.0million sharesof commonstockin theopenmarketfor $41.2million andretireda portionof
its Notesdue2033andNotesdue2014for a totalof $285.1million. Theretirementof debtresultedin therecognitionof apre-taxlossof
$31.9million in fiscal2010.In 2009,theCompanyreceivednetproceedsof $180.4million from theissuanceof theNotesdue2014(net
of deferredfinancingcostsof $4.8million associatedwith theoffering).Usingtheproceedsfrom theissuanceof theNotesdue2014and
aportionof the$440.9million of cashgeneratedfrom operationsin 2009,theCompanyreducedborrowingsby $400.2million (primarily
short-termborrowings),repurchased1.0million sharesof commonstockin theopenmarketfor $34.9million andretireda portionof its
Notes due 2014 and Notes due 2033 for a total of $117.3 million.

Financings

Retirement of Debt

During 2011, the Companyretired its Notesdue2033asa resultof repurchasesandbondholderconversions.The Companypaid
approximately$93.8 million in cashand $14.9 million was settledin stock. Available borrowingsunder the Company��slong-term
revolving credit facility wereusedto retire thesenotes.In connectionwith the retirementof debt,the Companyreducedthe accreted
value of debt by $48.9 million and recorded a gross reduction to stockholders�� equity of $44.9 million.

During 2010,the Company��sprimary operatingsubsidiary, Anixter Inc., retired$133.7million of accretedvalueof its Notesdue
2014for $165.5million. Availablecashandotherborrowingswereusedto retirethesenotes.TheCompanyalsoretired$67.0million of
accretedvalueof its Notesdue2033for $119.6million. Long-termrevolvingcreditborrowingswereusedto repurchasethesenotes.In
connectionwith theserepurchases,theCompanyreducedtheaccretedvalueof debtby $200.7million andrecordeda grossreductionto
stockholders�� equity of $54.0 million.

During 2009,Anixter Inc. retired$23.6million of accretedvalueof its Notesdue2014for $27.7million ($1.2million of which was
accruedat year-end2009).Availablecashwasusedto retirethesenotes.TheCompanyalsoretired$60.1million of accretedvalueof its
Notesdue2033for $90.8million. Long-termrevolvingcreditborrowingswereusedto repurchasethesenotes.In connectionwith these
repurchases,theCompanyreducedtheaccretedvalueof debtby $83.7million andrecordeda grossreductionto stockholders��equityof
$34.3 million.

Theretirementof debtin 2011 did nothaveasignificantimpactontheCompany��sConsolidatedStatementof Operations.As aresult
of the retirement of debt in 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $31.9 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

Revolving Lines of Credit

At theendof fiscal 2011, theCompanyhadapproximately$313.0million in available,committed,unusedcredit lineswith financial
institutionsthat haveinvestment-gradecredit ratings.As such,the Companyexpectsto haveaccessto this availability basedon its
assessmentof theviability of theassociatedfinancial institutionswhich areparty to theseagreements.Long-termborrowingsunderthe
committed credit facilities totaled $120.4 million and $145.4 million at December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, respectively.
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In thesecondquarterof 2011, Anixter Inc. refinancedits seniorunsecuredrevolvingcreditfacility. At December30,2011, long-term
borrowingsunderthisagreement,whichis guaranteedby theCompany, were$111.0million ascomparedto $131.1million of outstanding
long-term borrowings at the end of fiscal 2010. The following are the key terms to the revolving credit agreement:

�� The size of the credit facility is $400 million (or the equivalent in Euros) and matures in April 2016.
�� Thepricing grid is a leverage-basedpricing grid. Basedon Anixter Inc.��scurrentleverageratio, theapplicablemargin is Libor plus

200 basis points.
�� As of theendof 2011, theconsolidatedfixed chargecoverageratio(asdefinedin therevolvingcreditagreement)requiresaminimum

coverage 2.50 times. As of December30, 2011, the consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio was 4.51.
�� Theconsolidatedleverageratio (asdefinedin the revolvingcreditagreement)limits themaximumleverageallowedto 3.25.As of

December30, 2011, the consolidated leverage ratio was 1.35.
�� Anixter Inc. will bepermittedto directfundsto theCompanyfor paymentof dividendsandsharerepurchasesto amaximumof $175

million plus50 percentof Anixter Inc.��scumulativenet incomefrom theeffectivedateof thenewagreement.As of December30,
2011, Anixter Inc. has the ability to distribute $152.7 million of funds to the Company.

�� Anixter Inc. will beallowedto prepay, purchaseor redeemindebtednessof theCompany, providedthat its proformaleverageratio
(asdefinedin the agreement)is lessthanor equalto 2.75 to 1.00andthat its unrestricteddomesticcashbalanceplus availability
under the revolving credit agreement and the accounts receivable securitization facility is equal to or greater than $175 million.

TheCompanyis in compliancewith all of thecovenantratiosandbelievesthatthereis adequatemargin betweenthecovenantratios
andthe actualratiosgiven the currenttrendsof the business.As of December30, 2011, the total availability of all revolving lines of
credit at Anixter Inc. would be permitted to be borrowed.

Excluding the primary revolving credit facility at December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,certainsubsidiarieshad long-term
borrowingsunderotherbankrevolvinglinesof creditandmiscellaneousfacilities of $9.4million and$14.3million, respectively, which
mature beyond twelve months of the Company��s fiscal year end December30, 2011.

Senior Notes Due 2014

In March 2009,the Company��sprimary operatingsubsidiary, Anixter Inc., issued$200million in principal of its Notesdue2014
whichwerepricedatadiscountto parthatresultedin ayield to maturityof 12%.TheNotesdue2014payinterestsemiannuallyata rate
of 10%perannumandmatureon March15,2014.In addition,beforeMarch15,2012,Anixter Inc. mayredeemup to 35%of theNotes
due2014at theredemptionpriceof 110%of their principalamountplusaccruedinterest,usingthenetcashproceedsfrom public sales
of theCompany��sstock.Netproceedsfrom thisofferingwereapproximately$180.4million afterdeductingdiscounts,commissionsand
expensesof $4.8million which arebeingamortizedthroughMarch2014.At December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,theNotesdue
2014outstandingwere$31.1million and$30.6million, respectively. TheCompanyfully andunconditionallyguaranteestheNotesdue
2014, which are unsecured obligations of Anixter Inc.

Convertible Debt

Convertible Senior Notes Due 2013

In February2007,theCompanycompleteda privateplacementof $300.0million principalamountof Notesdue2013(��Notesdue
2013��).In May 2007,theCompanyregisteredtheNotesdue2013andsharesof theCompany��scommonstockissuableuponconversion
of theNotesdue2013for resaleby certainsellingsecurityholders.TheNotesdue2013arestructurallysubordinatedto theindebtedness
of Anixter.
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The Notesdue2013pay interestsemiannuallyat a rateof 1.00%per annum.The Notesdue2013areconvertible,at the holders��
option,at a conversionrateof 16.727sharesper $1,000principal amountof Notesdue2013(for an aggregateof 5.0million shares),
equivalent to a conversion price of $59.78 per share. The Company has sufficient authorized shares to settle such conversion.

In periodsduringwhich theNotesdue2013areconvertible,anyconversionwill besettledin cashup to theprincipalamount,and
anyexcessconversionvaluewill bedelivered,at theCompany��selectionin cash,commonstockor a combinationof cashandcommon
stock. Based on the Company��s stock price at the end of fiscal 2011, the Notes due 2013 are not currently convertible.

In connectionwith the issuanceof the Notesdue2013,the Companypurchaseda call option that covers5.0million sharesof its
commonstock,subjectto customaryanti-dilutionadjustments.Thepurchasedcall optioncurrentlyhasanexercisepriceof $59.78per
share.

Concurrentlywith purchasingthecall option,theCompanysoldto thecounterpartyawarrantto purchasesharesof its commonstock,
subjectto customaryanti-dilutionadjustments.Thesoldwarrantcurrentlyhasanexercisepriceof $77.98andmaynotbeexercisedprior
to the maturity of the notes. The shares related to the warrant are 5.0million shares.

Convertible Notes Due 2033

The Companyretired its Notesdue2033 in 2011. At the endof 2010,the Notesdue2033hadan aggregateprincipal amountat
maturityof $100.2million anda bookvalueof $48.5million. AlthoughtheNotesdue2033wereconvertibleat theendof 2010andthe
holderscould requirethe Companyto purchasetheir noteson July7, 2011, they wereclassifiedaslong-termasthe Companyhadthe
intent and ability to refinance the accreted value under existing long-term financing agreements.

Senior Notes Due 2015

Anixter Inc. alsohasthe $200.0million 5.95%SeniorNotesdue2015(��Notesdue2015��),which are fully andunconditionally
guaranteedby theCompany. Interestof 5.95%ontheNotesdue2015is payablesemi-annuallyonMarch1 andSeptember1 of eachyear.

Other Borr owings

As of December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,theCompany��sshort-termdebtoutstandingwas$3.0million and$203.4million,
respectively. At December31, 2010,short-termdebtconsistedprimarily of the funding relatedto theAnixter ReceivablesCorporation
(��ARC��) facility which wasamendedin the secondquarterof 2011 by the Anixter Inc. The following key changesweremadeto the
program:

�� The size of the program increased from $200 million to $275 million.
�� The liquidity termination date of the program will be May 2013 (formerly the termination date was July 2011).
�� Therenewedprogramcarriesanall-in drawnfundingcostof CommercialPaper(��CP��)plus90basispoints(previouslyCP

plus 115 basis points).
�� Unusedcapacityfeesdecreasedfrom a rangeof 57.5 to 60 basispointsto a rangeof 45 to 55 basispointsdependingon

utilization.

All othermaterialtermsandconditionsremainunchanged.As a resultof thechangein maturity, the$175.0million outstandingat
year-end2011 is classifiedaslong-termon theCompany��sConsolidatedBalanceSheetat December30,2011 (formerly short-termdebt
as of December31, 2010).
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UnderAnixter��s accountsreceivablesecuritizationprogram,the Companysells,on an ongoingbasiswithout recourse,a majority
of the accountsreceivableoriginating in the United Statesto ARC, which is considereda wholly-owned,bankruptcy-remotevariable
interestentity (��VIE��). TheCompanyhastheauthorityto directtheactivitiesof theVIE and,asaresult,theCompanyhasconcludedthat
it maintainscontrolof theVIE andis theprimarybeneficiaryasdefinedby accountingguidanceand,therefore,consolidatestheaccount
balancesof ARC. As of December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,$524.6million and$407.8million of theCompany��sreceivables
weresold to ARC, respectively. ARC in turn sellsan interestin thesereceivablesto a financial institution for proceedsup to $275.0
million. Theassetsof ARC arenotavailableto Anixter until all obligationsof ARC aresatisfiedin theeventof bankruptcyor insolvency
proceedings.

Inter est Expense

Consolidatedinterestexpensewas $50.1 million, $53.6 million and $66.1 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. The
decreasein interestexpenseis drivenby a lower averagecostof debtthanin 2010and2009andlower averageoutstandingborrowings.
The Company��saveragecostof debtwas5.1%,6.3% and6.7% in 2011, 2010and2009,respectively. Approximately66.0%of the
Company��s outstanding debt had fixed interest rates either by the terms of the debt or through hedging contracts in 2011.

Special Dividend

OnSeptember23,2010,theCompany��sBoardof Directorsdeclaredaspecialdividendof $3.25percommonshare,or approximately
$113.7million, asa returnof excesscapitalto shareholders.Thedividenddeclaredwasrecordedasa reductionto retainedearningsasof
the end of the third quarter of 2010 and was paid on October28, 2010 to shareholders of record on October15, 2010.

In accordancewith the antidilution provisionsof the Company��sstock incentiveplans,the exerciseprice andnumberof options
outstandingwereadjustedto reflect the specialdividend.The averageexerciseprice of outstandingoptionsdecreasedfrom $43.88to
$41.16,andthenumberof outstandingoptionsincreasedfrom 1.3million to 1.4million. In addition,thedividendwill bepaidto holders
of stock units upon vesting of the units. These changes resulted in no additional compensation expense.

The conversionrateof the Notesdue2013wasadjustedin October2010to reflect the specialdividend.Holdersof the Notesdue
2013mayconverteachNoteinto 16.727shares,comparedto 15.753sharesbeforetheadjustment,of theCompany��scommonstockfor
which the Company has reserved 5.0million of its authorized shares, compared to 4.7million shares before the adjustment.

For further information regardingthe specialdividend,seethe Note 9. ��Stockholders��Equity�� in the Notesto the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments

The Company has the following contractual cash obligations as of December30, 2011:

Payments due by period

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Beyond

2016 Total

(In millions)

Debta $3.0 $475.0 $32.3 $200.0 $120.4 $�� $830.7

Contractual Interestb 24.4 21.4 17.2 9.6 1.0 �� 73.6

Purchase Obligationsc 535.1 2.2 2.6 �� �� �� 539.9

Operating Leases 61.8 49.0 39.6 28.5 20.4 43.7 243.0

Deferred Compensation Liabilityd 3.7 5.1 2.8 1.8 2.7 28.0 44.1

Pension Planse 23.4 �� �� �� �� �� 23.4

Total Obligations $ 651.4 $ 552.7 $ 94.5 $ 239.9 $ 144.5 $ 71.7 $ 1,754.7

Liabilities relatedto unrecognizedtaxbenefitsof $24.2million wereexcludedfrom thetableabove,aswecannotreasonablyestimate
the timing of cashsettlementswith taxing authorities.We do not expectthe total amountof our unrecognizedtax benefitsto change
significantlyduringthenexttwelvemonths.SeeNote7. ��IncomeTaxes��in thenotesto theconsolidatedfinancialstatementsfor further
information related to unrecognized tax benefits.

Notes:
(a) The$175.0million outstandingundertheaccountsreceivablesecuritizationfacility will mature in 2013.Thebookvalueof the

Notesdue2013was$280.3million at December30, 2011 andwill accreteto $300.0million throughmaturity. Thebookvalue
of theNotesdue2014was$31.1million at December30,2011 andwill accreteto $32.3million in 2014.Borrowingsunderthe
Company��s long-term revolving credit facilities of $120.4 million mature in 2016. The Notes due 2015 are $200.0 million.

(b) Interestpaymentson debtoutstandingat December30, 2011 throughmaturity. For variable rate debt,theCompanycomputed
contractual interest payments based on the borrowing rate at December30, 2011.

(c) Purchaseobligationsprimarily consistof purchaseordersfor productssourcedfromunaffiliatedthird partysuppliers,in addition
to commitmentsrelatedto variouscapital expenditures.Manyof theseobligationsmaybecancelledwith limited or no financial
penalties.

(d) A non-qualifieddeferred compensationplan was implementedon January1, 1995. The plan providesfor benefit payments
uponretirement,death,disability, terminationor other scheduleddatesdeterminedby the participant.At December30, 2011,
the deferred compensationliability was $44.1 million. In an effort to ensure that adequateresourcesare available to fund
thedeferredcompensationliability, theCompanyhaspurchasedvariable,separateaccountlife insurancepolicieson theplan
participantswith benefitsaccruing to the Company. At December30, 2011, the cashsurrendervalue of thesecompanylife
insurance policies was $33.9 million.

(e) The majority of the Company��s various pensionplans are non-contributoryand cover substantiallyall full-time domestic
employeesandcertainemployeesin othercountries.Retirementbenefitsare providedbasedon compensationasdefinedin the
plans.TheCompany��s policy is to fund theseplansas required by the EmployeeRetirementIncomeSecurityAct, the Internal
RevenueServiceand local statutorylaw. At December30, 2011, the current portion of the Company��s net pensionliability of
$145.4million was$0.8million. TheCompanycurrentlyestimatesthat it will berequiredto contribute$23.4million to its foreign
anddomesticpensionplansin 2012.Dueto thefuture impactof variousmarketconditions,ratesof returnandchangesin plan
participants, the Company cannot provide a meaningful estimate of its future contributions beyond 2012.
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Income Taxes

Variousforeignsubsidiariesof theCompanyhadaggregatecumulativenetoperatingloss(��NOL��) carryforwardsfor foreignincome
tax purposesof approximately$110.0million at December30,2011, which aresubjectto variousprovisionsof eachrespectivecountry.
Approximately $12.0 million of this amount expires between 2012 and 2021, and $98.0 million of the amount has an indefinite life.

Results of Operations

2011 Executive Overview

The Companycompeteswith distributorsand manufacturerswho sell productsdirectly or throughexisting distribution channels
to endusersor otherresellers.The Company��srelationshipwith the manufacturersfor which it distributesproductscould be affected
by decisionsmadeby thesemanufacturersasthe resultof changesin managementor ownershipaswell asotherfactors.Although the
Companyhasstrongrelationshipswith its suppliers,thelossof amajorsuppliercouldhaveatemporaryadverseeffectontheCompany��s
business, but would not have a lasting impact since comparable products are available from alternate sources.

TheCompany��soperatingresultscanbeaffectedby changesin pricesof commodities,primarily copper, which arecomponentsin
someof theproductssold.Generally, asthecostsof inventorypurchasesincreasedueto highercommodityprices,theCompany��smark-
up percentageto customersremainsrelativelyconstant,resultingin highersalesrevenueandgrossprofit. In addition,existinginventory
purchasedat previouslylower pricesandsold aspricesincreasemay result in a highergrossprofit margin. Conversely, a decreasein
commoditypricesin a shortperiodof time would havethe oppositeeffect, negativelyaffecting financial results.The degreeto which
spotmarketcopperpriceschangeaffectsproductpricesandthe amountof grossprofit earnedwill be affectedby endmarketdemand
andoveralleconomicconditions.Importantly, however, thereis no exactmeasureof theeffect of changesin copperprices,asthereare
thousandsof transactionsin anygivenquarter, eachof which hasvariousfactorsinvolvedin theindividual pricing decisions.Therefore,
all references to the effect of copper prices are estimates.

The Companyreportedsalesof $6,146.9million in 2011, an increaseof $872.4million, or 16.5%,over salesof $5,274.5million
in 2010. Favorableeffects of foreign exchangeratesincreasedsalesby $97.4 million while an increasein copperprices and the
acquisitionof Clark increasedsalesin 2011 by $104.3million and$120.1million, respectively, ascomparedto 2010.Excludingthese
favorableeffects,theCompany��snetsalesincreased$550.6million, or approximately10.4%.TheCompany��sexecutionof its strategic
initiatives are helping to fuel its salesgrowth in eachof its end marketsaroundthe world. Theseefforts haveonceagaindelivered
well-balancedsalesperformanceacrossthe Company��sgeographicreportingsegmentswith North America, Europeand Emerging
Marketsall deliveringexcellentyear-on-yearsalesincreasesrangingbetween14%and23%.Salesgrowthby endmarketwasalsorobust,
with ElectricalWire & CableandOEM Supplyendmarketsdeliveringa 21.7%and25.3%improvementyear-on-year, respectively. In
addition,theEnterpriseCablingandSecurityendmarketgrewby 11.4%,with approximatelyone-fourthof thatgrowthcomingfrom the
Clark acquisition.

Operatingexpensesin 2011 of $1,044.6million were17.0%of salescomparedto 17.8%in 2010.Excludingtheimpactof theClark
acquisitionof $33.7million andexchangeratesof $20.6million, year-on-yearoperatingexpensesincreasedby only $49.9million, or
5.3%,on a 10.4%organicincreasein sales,demonstratingthe leveragein theCompany��soperatingstructure.Expenseincreaseswere
primarily dueto highervolume.However, theCompanyreachedfavorablesettlementof severalcustomerbankruptcyanddisputeswhich
resulted in lower than normal operating expenses in 2011.

Themomentumthathasbeenbuilding throughoutthis recoveryis reflectedin theCompany��sstrongoperatingprofit performance.
Specifically, operatingmargin in 2011 improvedto 5.9%from 5.1%in 2010.Thisperformanceresultedin anincrementaloperatingprofit
leverageof 11.0%ontheincreasedyear-on-yearsales.Thestrongoperatingmargin improvementwasdrivenby betteroperatingleverage
on higher sales.
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Continuedstrongsalesshouldpositionthe Companyvery well to further leverageits global supplychainplatform in 2012.While
growingglobalmarketswill positively impactthebusiness,marketpressureson sovereigndebt,governmentfiscal policiesandunclear
U.S. tax policiescreateuncertaintyfor futurelevelsof corporatespending.Nevertheless,theCompanybelievesthat its strategicgrowth
initiativespositionit well to achievecontinuedsalesgrowthandoperatingleverage.Overall, theCompanybelievesthat thesestrategic
growth initiativeshavedriven improvedmarketshare.We expectfuturegrowth to be fueledby addingnewproductsandtechnologies
to the Company��sportfolio whereappropriate;developingan endmarketpresencein eitherElectricalWire & Cableor OEM Supply
in countrieswheretheCompany��scurrentpresenceis largebut limited primarily to theEnterpriseCablingandSecuritySolutionsend
market; and selectively expanding the Company��s geographic presence.

2011 versus 2010

Consolidated Results

Years Ended

(In millions) December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $ 6,146.9 $ 5,274.5 16.5 %
Gross profit $1,407.4 $1,207.6 16.5 %
Operating expenses $1,044.6 $940.4 11.1 %
Operating income $362.8 $267.2 35.8 %

NetSales:TheCompany��snetsalesduring2011 increased$872.4million, or 16.5%,from theprior year. Favorableeffectsof foreign
exchangeratesincreasedsalesby $97.4million while an increasein copperpricesandthe fourth quarterof 2010acquisitionof Clark
increasedsalesin 2011 by $104.3million and$120.1million, respectively, ascomparedto 2010.Excluding the favorableeffectsof
foreign exchangerates,copperpricesandthe Clark acquisition,the Company��snet salesincreased$550.6million, or approximately
10.4%,in 2011 ascomparedto 2010.All geographicsegmentsaswell asall worldwideendmarkets(EnterpriseCablingandSecurity,
Electrical Wire and Cable and OEM Supply) reported year-on-year organic sales growth.

Gross Margin: Grossmargin was 22.9% in 2011 and 2010. The effects of higher copperprices did not impact grossmargin
percentagessignificantly;however, theeffectsof copperpricesdid increasegrossprofit dollarsby $21.2million in 2011 ascomparedto
theprior year. Grossmargin continuesto benegativelyimpactedby costpressuresin theCompany��sEuropeanOEM Supplybusinessdue
to significantunilateralcostincreasesfrom European-basedfastenermanufacturers.TheCompanycontinuesto makeprogressrecovering
costincreasesthroughprice increasesto its customers.However, theCompanyhasnot fully recoveredto the level of its secondquarter
2010 grossmargin in this end market.The Company��slevel of successin negotiatingcustomerpricing in the contextof long-term
contractualagreements,while selectivelyresourcingsomeof thesecomponentsto lower costmanufacturers,will determinetheextentto
which the Company can offset these gross margin pressures over time.

OperatingExpenses:Operatingexpensesincreased11.1% from $940.4million in 2010 to $1,044.6million in 2011. Operating
expensesin 2011 includeanincremental$33.7million relatedto theClarkacquisition,$20.6million dueto changesin foreignexchange
ratesand$5.3million for a restructuringcharge to rationalizethe Europeancoststructure.Excludingtheseitems,operatingexpenses
increased$44.6million, or 4.7%,on a 10.4%organicincreasein sales.Thecurrentperiodincreasein operatingexpensesreflectshigher
variable costs associated with the increase in organic sales, including higher variable incentive costs.

OperatingIncome:Operatingincomeincreasedby $95.6million, or 35.8%,to $362.8million in 2011 ascomparedto $267.2million
in 2010.Highercopperprices,theClarkacquisitionandtheeffectsof foreignexchangeratechangesincreasedoperatingincomeby $21.2
million, $2.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively.
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Theoperatingmargin of 5.9%in 2011 increasedfrom 5.1%in 2010.ExcludingtheEuropeanrestructuringcharge,operatingmargin was
6.0%. The strong operating margin improvement was primarily due to lower operating expenses as a percent of sales.

InterestExpense:Consolidatedinterestexpensewas$50.1million and$53.6million in 2011 and2010,respectively. Thedecrease
in interestexpensewasdriven by a lower averagecostof debtthanin 2010.The Company��saveragecostof debtwas5.1%in 2011,
down from 6.3%in 2010,primarily dueto the retirementof highercostdebtin the first quarterof 2010.Approximately66.0%of the
Company��soutstandingdebthadfixed interestrateseitherby thetermsof thedebtor throughhedgingcontractsin 2011.TheCompany��s
debt-to-total capitalization at December30, 2011 and December31, 2010 was 44.7% and 46.9%, respectively.

Early Retirementof Debt: TheyearendedDecember30,2011 includeda pre-taxgainof $0.1million relatedto theearlyretirement
of theremainingNotesdue2033.This gainwasfully offsetby a pre-taxlossrelatedto therefinancingof certaincreditfacilities.During
2010,theCompanyretiredaportionof its Notesdue2014andNotesdue2033.As aresultof theretirementof debtin 2010,theCompany
recognized a pre-tax loss of $31.9 million.

Other, net: The following representsthe componentsof ��Other, net�� as reflectedin the Company��sCondensedConsolidated
Statements of Operations for years ended December30, 2011 and December31, 2010:

Years Ended

(In millions) December

30, 2011

December 31,

2010

Foreign exchange $ (7.1) $(2.5 )
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies (0.9) 3.0
Other (1.2) (2.0 )

$ (9.2) $(1.5 )

Dueto thesharpincreaseof theU.S.dollar at theendof thethird quarterof 2011 againstcertainforeigncurrencies,primarily in the
Emerging Marketswheretherearefew cost-effectivemeansof hedging,theCompanyrecordeda foreignexchangelossof $7.1million
in 2011. In 2010,the Companyrecordeda foreign exchangelossof $4.6million which wasoffset by a foreign exchangegain of $2.1
million relatedto the remeasurementof the Venezuelanbolivar. The combinedeffect of declinesin both the equity andbondmarkets
resultedin a $0.9million declinein the cashsurrendervalueof Companyownedlife insurancepoliciesassociatedwith the Company
sponsoreddeferredcompensationprogramin 2011. Thiscomparesto a$3.0million increasein thecashsurrendervalueof life insurance
policies in the prior year.

IncomeTaxes:The tax provisionfor 2011 was$102.8million comparedto $70.7million 2010.The Company��seffective tax rate
for 2011 was 33.9%as comparedto 39.2%in the prior year. The lower rate is primarily the result of recordingnet tax benefitsof
$10.8million which includethe changesin tax valuationallowancesof $11.3 million, partially offset by additionalprior yeartaxesof
$0.5million. Approximately$7.4million, net, of the tax benefitswasa correctionof an error from prior periodsto reversevaluation
allowancesfor deferredtaxassetsin certainjurisdictionswheresufficient evidenceexistedto supporttherealizationof thesedeferredtax
assetsatamorelikely thannot level.TheCompanyhasdeterminedtheerroris notmaterialto previouslyissuedfinancialstatements,and
thecorrectionof theerroris notmaterialto theresultsof operationsfor thefiscalyearendedDecember30,2011. The2010taxprovision
includesa reversalof $1.3million for prior yearsforeigntaxes.Excludingthe$10.8million of net tax benefits,thefull yearratewould
havebeen37.4%in 2011 comparedto 39.5%in 2010after excludingthe losson the repurchaseof debt,the foreign exchangegain in
Venezuela and the reversal of prior years foreign taxes.
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NetIncomefromContinuingOperations:For theyearendedDecember30,2011, theCompanyreportednetincomefrom continuing
operationsof $200.7million, or $5.71perdilutedshare,comparedto $109.5million, or $3.08perdilutedshare,in theyearagoperiod,
representing an increase of 83.4%. The year-on-year comparisons were impacted by the following:

�� In 2011, thetaxvaluationallowanceadjustmentof $10.8million ($0.31perdilutedshare)andtheEuropeanrestructuringcharge
of $5.3million ($3.3million net of tax, or $0.09per diluted share).Theseitemsincreased2011 net incomefrom continuing
operations by a combined $7.5 million ($0.22 per diluted share).

�� In 2010,thepre-taxlosson theearly retirementof debtof $31.9million ($19.8million netof tax, or $0.55perdilutedshare),
the foreign exchangegain in Venezuelaof $2.1million ($0.8million net of tax, or $0.02per diluted share)andthe reversal
of prior yearsforeigntaxesof $1.3million ($0.03perdilutedshare).Theseitemsdecreased2010net incomefrom continuing
operations by a combined $17.7 million ($0.50 per diluted share).

After adjustingfor theseitems,net incomeincreasedto $193.2million in 2011 from $127.2million in 2010while dilutedearnings
per share increased to $5.49 in 2011 from $3.58 in 2010.

North America Results

Years Ended

(In millions) December 30,

2011

December 31,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $ 4,302.5 $ 3,701.2 16.2%
Gross profit $993.1 $852.2 16.5%
Operating expenses $685.4 $617.1 11.1%
Operating income $307.7 $235.1 30.9%

Net Sales:Whencomparedto 2010,North Americanet salesin 2011 increased16.2%to $4,302.5million from $3,701.2million.
Excludingfavorableeffectsof foreignexchangeratechanges,theimpactof theacquisitionof Clark andcopperpricesof $33.5million,
$120.1million and$93.4million, respectively, North Americanet saleswere$4,055.5million in 2011, which representsan organic
increase of $354.3 million, or approximately 9.6%, as compared to 2010. This growth is driven by higher sales in all end markets.

GrossMargin: Grossmargin wasto 23.1%in 2011 and23.0%in 2010.The effectsof highercopperpricesdid not impactgross
margin percentagessignificantly; however, the effects of copperpricesdid increasegrossprofit dollars by $18.2million in 2011 as
compared to 2010.

OperatingExpenses:Operatingexpensesincreased$68.3million, or 11.1%,in 2011 from 2010.Theacquisitionof Clarkandforeign
exchangerate changesincreasedoperatingexpensesby $33.7million and $6.3 million, respectively, in 2011 as comparedto 2010.
Excludingtheacquisitionof Clark andforeignexchange,operatingexpensesincreased$28.3million, or 4.6%,primarily dueto variable
costs associated with the 9.6% organic growth in sales and higher variable compensation related costs.

OperatingIncome:The operatingmargin of 7.2%in 2011 comparedto 6.4%in 2010.The improvementin operatingmargin was
driven by salesmix andoperatingexpenseleverage.Operatingincomeincreasedby $72.6million, or 30.9%,in 2011 ascomparedto
2010.Favorableforeign exchangeratechanges,the acquisitionof Clark andhighercopperpricesincreasedoperatingincomeby $0.9
million, $2.6 million and $18.2 million, respectively.
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Europe Results

Years Ended

(In millions) December 30,

2011

December 31,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $ 1,150.0 $ 1,008.4 14.0%
Gross profit $271.7 $235.3 15.5%
Operating expenses $256.0 $236.2 8.4%
Operating income (loss) $15.7 $(0.9 ) nm

nm �� not meaningful

Net Sales:Whencomparedto 2010,Europenet salesincreased14.0%to $1,150.0million in 2011, including $10.9million dueto
highercopperprices.Favorableforeignexchangeratesincreasednetsalesby $48.0million in 2011. Excludingcopperpriceeffectsand
the favorableeffectsof foreign exchangeratechanges,Europenet saleswere$1,091.1million in 2011, which representsan organic
increaseof $82.7million, or approximately8.2%,over2010.Thisgrowthis drivenby highersalesin theOEM Supplyendmarketdueto
the increasedmanufacturingproductionin mostverticalmarkets,togetherwith solid growth in theEnterpriseCablingandSecurityend
market.

GrossMargin: Grossmargin in 2011 was23.6%comparedto 23.3%in 2010.Theincreasein grossmargin is primarily dueto stronger
salesof the highermargin OEM Supplyproductsascomparedto the salesgrowth in the otherendmarkets.However, grossmargin
continuesto be negativelyimpactedby costpressuresin the Company��sEuropeanOEM Supplybusinessdueto significantunilateral
costincreasesfrom European-basedfastenermanufacturers.TheCompanycontinuesto makeprogressrecoveringcostincreasesthrough
price increasesto its customers.However, theCompanyhasnot fully recoveredto the level of its secondquarter2010grossmargin in
this endmarket.The Company��slevel of successof negotiatingcustomerpricing in the contextof long-termcontractualagreements,
while selectivelyresourcingsomeof thesecomponentsto lowercostmanufacturers,will determinetheextentto which theCompanycan
offsetthesegrossmargin pressuresovertime.Theeffectsof highercopperpricesdid not impactgrossmargin percentagessignificantly;
however, the effects of higher copper prices increased gross profit dollars by $3.0 million in 2011 as compared to 2010.

OperatingExpenses:Operatingexpensesincreased$19.8million, or 8.4%, in 2011 comparedto 2010.The restructuringcharge
andforeignexchangeratechangesincreasedoperatingexpensesby $5.3million and$11.7million, respectively, in 2011. Excludingthe
restructuringchargeandforeignexchange,operatingexpensesincreased$2.8million, or 1.2%,primarily dueto variablecostsassociated
with the 8.2% organic growth in sales in 2011.

OperatingIncome:Operatingprofit was$15.7million in 2011, including the$5.3million restructuringcharge,which comparedto
anoperatinglossof $0.9million in 2010.CopperpricesincreasedEurope��soperatingincomeby $3.0million in 2011. Foreignexchange
ratechangesdid not impactoperatingincomeduring 2011. Europeoperatingmargin, excludingthe restructuringcharge,was1.8%in
2011 comparedto negative0.1% in 2010.The strongyear-on-yearoperatingmargin improvementwas driven by the 30 basispoint
improvementin grossmargin combinedwith a 160basispoint improvementin operatingexpensesasa percentof sales,excludingthe
restructuring charge.
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Emerging Markets Results

Years Ended

(In millions)

December 30,

2011

December 31,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $ 694.4 $ 564.9 22.9%
Gross profit $142.6 $120.1 18.7%
Operating expenses $103.2 $87.1 18.5%
Operating income $39.4 $33.0 19.3%

Net Sales:Emerging Markets(Asia Pacific andLatin America)net salesin 2011 increased22.9%to $694.4million from $564.9
million in 2010.Excludingthe favorableimpactfrom changesin foreign exchangeratesof $15.9million, Emerging Marketsnet sales
increased20.1%.All endmarketscontributedto theincreasein salesin 2011 ascomparedto 2010.TheCompanycontinuesto investin
initiatives to increase market penetration and expand product lines to drive growth in selected countries within Emerging Markets.

GrossMargin: During 2011, Emerging Marketsgrossmargin decreasedto 20.5%from 21.3%in 2010.This declinewasprimarily
driven by a changein the mix of salesamongvariouscountriesandendmarketscombinedwith lessfavorableproductmix. As the
Companycontinuesto grow its salesfrom theinitiative to expandtheCompany��sElectricalWire andCableendmarket,a largeportion
of the sales increase is related to lower margin project business.

OperatingExpenses:Operatingexpensesincreased$16.1 million in 2011, or 18.5%,comparedto 2010. Foreignexchangerate
changesincreasedoperatingexpensesby $2.6million ascomparedto theyearagoperiod.Excludingtheeffectsof foreignexchangerate
changes,operatingexpensesincreased15.4%ascomparedto 2010.This increasein operatingexpensesis in partdueto investmentsto
expand the Company��s presence in the Electrical Wire and Cable end market and the addition of new Emerging Markets locations.

OperatingIncome:Emerging Marketsoperatingincomeincreased$6.4million, or 19.3%,in 2011 comparedto 2010.The impact
of foreignexchangeratesincreasedoperatingincomeby $0.5million. Operatingmargin in 2011 was5.7%comparedto 5.8%in 2010
mainly due to the lower gross margin.

2010 versus 2009

Consolidated Results

Years Ended

(In millions)

December 31,

2010

January 2,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $5,274.5 $4,779.6 10.4%
Gross profit $ 1,207.6 $ 1,077.1 12.1%
Goodwill impairment $�� $100.0 nm
Operating expenses $940.4 $892.3 5.4%
Operating income $267.2 $84.8 nm

nm �� not meaningful

Net Sales:The Company��snet salesduring 2010 increased$494.9million, or 10.4%,comparedto 2009. Favorableeffects of
foreignexchangeratesandcopperpricesincreasedsalesby $51.4million and$70.0million, respectively, in 2010ascomparedto 2009.
Excludingthefavorableeffectsof foreignexchangeratesandcopperprices,theCompany��snetsalesincreased$373.5million in 2010,
or approximately 7.8%, compared to 2009.
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Excludingthedeclinein salesdueto theCompany��sdecisionto exit a customercontract,which contributed$112.7million of salesin
2009,organicsalesincreasedby 10.4%.All geographicsegmentsandworldwideendmarkets(EnterpriseCablingandSecurity, Electrical
Wire and Cable and OEM Supply) reported year-on-year organic sales growth during 2010.

GrossMargin: Grossmargin increasedin 2010to 22.9%comparedto 22.5%in 2009mainly dueto a changein themix of salesby
geographicsegmentsandendmarkets.In 2009,theCompanyrecordeda $4.2million reductionto grossprofit dueto anexchangerate-
driven inventorylower of costor marketadjustmentin Venezuelawhich reducedgrossmargin by 10 basispoints.Theeffectsof higher
copperpricesdid not impactgrossmargin; however, theeffectsof copperdid increasegrossprofit dollarsby $15.8million in 2010as
compared to 2009.

OperatingExpenses:In 2009,theCompanyrecordeda $100.0million non-cashgoodwill impairmentcharge in thesecondquarter
relatedto its Europeanoperations.The impairmentchargewasdueto continuedoperatinglossesduring thatquarteranda reductionin
theprojectedfuturecashflows from thisoperatingsegmentbasedontheCompany��sforecastof aweakerEuropeaneconomy. Excluding
thegoodwill impairmentof $100.0million from the2009results,theCompanyreportedayear-on-yearincreasein operatingexpensesof
5.4%from $892.3million in 2009to $940.4million in 2010.The2009resultsalsoincludedaseverancechargeof $5.7million. Excluding
the severancecharge in 2009and$8.4million of unfavorableforeign currencyeffectsin 2010,operatingexpensesincreasedby $45.4
million, or 5.1%,ascomparedto a 10.4%increasein organicsales.Operatingexpensesin 2010reflect highervariablecompensation
relatedcostsandothervariablecostsassociatedwith theincreasein organicsales.However, theseincreaseshavebeenpartiallyoffsetby
the cost reduction initiatives the Company implemented throughout 2009.

OperatingIncome:Operatingincomeof $267.2million increasedby $182.4million in 2010comparedto $84.8million in 2009.
Excluding the goodwill impairment,exchangerate driven inventory lower of cost or marketadjustmentin Venezuelaand severance
charges,operatingincomefor 2010and2009was$267.2million and$194.7million, respectively. The$72.5million increaserepresented
a37.2%improvementyear-on-yearin operatingincomeandresultedin a5.1%and4.1%operatingmargin in 2010and2009,respectively.
Favorableforeign exchangerate changesand higher copperprices increasedoperatingincome by $2.8 million and $15.8 million,
respectively.

Interest Expense:Consolidatedinterestexpensewas $53.6million in 2010 comparedto $66.1million in 2009.The decreasein
interestexpensein 2010wasdrivenby both lower averageborrowingsoutstandinganda lower averagecostof debtthan2009.While
interestrateson approximately67.2%of theCompany��sborrowingswerefixed (eitherby their termsor throughhedgingcontracts)at
theendof 2010,theCompany��sweighted-averagecostof borrowingsdecreasedto 6.3%at theendof 2010from 6.7%at theendof 2009
dueto repurchasesof highercostdebt.TheCompany��sdebt-to-totalcapitalizationatDecember31,2010andJanuary1, 2010was46.9%
and 44.8%, respectively.

Early Retirementof Debt: During 2010and2009,theCompanyretireddebtandrecognizeda pre-taxlossof $31.9million and$1.1
million, respectively.
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Other, net: The following representsthe componentsof ��Other, net�� as reflectedin the Company��sConsolidatedStatementsof
Operations for 2010 and 2009:

Years Ended

(In millions)

December 31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Foreign exchange $(2.5 ) $(23.2 )
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies 3.0 3.4
Settlement of interest rate swaps �� (2.1 )
Other (2.0 ) 2.7

$(1.5 ) $(19.2 )

In 2010,theCompanyrecognizeda foreignexchangegainof $2.1million associatedwith theremeasurementof Venezuela��sbolivar
denominatedmonetaryassetson the Venezuelanbalancesheetat the parallel exchangerate. The Companyalso recordeda foreign
exchangelossof $13.8million in 2009dueto therepatriationof cashfrom Venezuelaandtheremeasurementof monetaryitemson the
Venezuelanbalancesheetat the parallelexchangerate.Due to the strengtheningof the U.S. dollar primarily againstcurrenciesin the
Emerging Markets,wheretherearefew cost-effectivemeansof hedging,theCompanyrecordedotherforeignexchangelossesof $4.6
million and$9.4million in 2010and2009,respectively. The valueof Company-ownedlife insurancepoliciesincreasedresultingin a
gainof $3.0million and$3.4million in 2010and2009,respectively. In 2009,theCompanyrecordeda lossof $2.1million associated
with the cancellationof interestratehedgingcontractsresultingfrom the repaymentof the relatedborrowings.In 2009,the Company
also recorded other income of $3.4 million related to the expiration of liabilities associated with a prior asset sale.

IncomeTaxes: The consolidatedtax provisionof $70.7million in 2010increasedfrom $39.8million in 2009primarily dueto an
increasein incomebeforetaxes.TheCompany��seffective tax ratewas39.2%in 2010comparedto a 2009effective tax rateof 40.5%
afterexcludingthenon-deductibleimpairmentchargeto goodwill. The2010taxprovisionincludesareversalof $1.3million for previous
yearsforeign taxes.The 2009tax provisionreflectsthe impactof $4.8million of tax benefitsasa resultof the reversalof a valuation
allowance.Excludingthe losson therepurchaseof debt,the foreignexchangegain in Venezuelaandthereversalof prior yearsforeign
taxes,theCompany��s2010effective tax ratewas39.5%comparedto 45.1%in 2009afterexcludingthe tax effectsof the impairment
charge, severancecosts,lossesdue to cancellationof interestrateswaps,early retirementof debt, foreign exchangerelatedlossesin
Venezuela and the tax benefits.

NetIncomefromContinuingOperations:TheCompanyreportednetincomefrom continuingoperationsof $109.5million, or $3.08
per diluted share,comparedto a lossof $41.4million, or a lossof $1.17per diluted share,reportedin 2009.Thesecomparisonshave
been impacted by the following:

�� In 2010,the pre-taxlosson the early retirementof debtof $31.9million ($19.8million net of tax, or $0.55per diluted
share),theforeignexchangegain in Venezuelaof $2.1million ($0.8million netof tax,or $0.02perdilutedshare)andthe
reversalof prior yearsforeigntaxesof $1.3million ($0.03perdilutedshare).Theseitemsdecreased2010netincomefrom
continuing operations by a combined $17.7 million ($0.50 per diluted share).

�� In 2009,theimpairmentchargeof $100.0million ($2.85perdilutedshare),severancechargeof $5.7million ($3.9million
netof tax,or $0.11 perdilutedshare),lossesdueto thecancellationof interestrateswapsof $2.1million ($1.5million net
of tax, or $0.04per diluted share),early retirementof debtof $1.1million ($0.7million net of tax, or $0.02per diluted
share)andforeignexchangerelatedlossesin Venezuelaof $18.0million ($9.0million netof tax,or $0.24perdilutedshare),
which werepartially offset by the tax benefitsof $4.8million ($0.13per diluted share).Theseitemsdecreased2009net
income from continuing operations by a combined $110.2 million ($3.06 per diluted share).
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After adjustingfor theseitems,netincomefrom continuingoperationsin 2010wouldhavebeen$127.2million, or $3.58perdiluted
share. This compares favorably to an adjusted net income in 2009 of $68.8 million, or $1.89 per diluted share.

North America Results of Operations

Years Ended

(In millions) December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $ 3,701.2 $3,397.8 8.9%
Gross profit $ 852.2 $756.3 12.7%
Operating expenses $ 617.1 $581.2 6.2%
Operating income $ 235.1 $175.1 34.3%

NetSales:North Americanetsalesin 2010increased8.9%to $3,701.2million from $3,397.8million in 2009.Excludingfavorable
effectsof foreignexchangeratechangesof $53.9million andfavorableeffectsof copperpricesof $60.6million, NorthAmericanetsales
were$3,586.7million in 2010,which representsan increaseof $188.9million, or approximately5.6%,comparedto 2009.Excluding
$107.9million of salesin 2009relatedto acontractterminatedby theCompanyin late2009,salesincreasedorganicallyby 9.0%in 2010.

GrossMargin: Grossmargin increasedto 23.0%in 2010from 22.3%in 2009mainly dueto favorableendmarketsalesmix andthe
Company��sdecisionto exit a low margin customercontract.Theeffectsof highercopperpricesdid not impactgrossmargin percentages;
however, the effects of copper prices increased gross profit dollars by $12.9 million in 2010 compared to 2009.

OperatingExpenses:Operatingexpensesincreased$35.9million, or 6.2%,in 2010comparedto 2009.Foreignexchangeratechanges
increasedoperatingexpensesby $10.4million in 2010while severancechargesincreasedoperatingexpensesby $4.4million in 2009.
Excludingforeignexchangeandthe2009severancecharge,operatingexpensesincreased5.2%in 2010comparedto 2009dueto higher
variablecompensationrelatedcostsandvariablecostsassociatedwith the9.0%increasein organicsales.However, theseincreaseshave
been partially offset by the cost reduction initiatives the Company implemented last year.

OperatingIncome:Excludingtheseverancechargein 2009of $4.4million, operatingincomeincreasedby $64.4million, or 37.8%,
in 2010ascomparedto 2009.Excludingthechargesabove,operatingmargin was6.0%in 2010comparedto 4.8%in 2009.Favorable
foreign exchange rate changes and higher copper prices increased operating income by $1.5 million and $12.9 million, respectively.

Europe Results of Operations

Years Ended

(In millions)

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $1,008.4 $887.9 13.6%
Gross profit $235.3 $212.5 10.7%
Goodwill impairment $�� $100.0 nm
Operating expenses $236.2 $232.5 1.6%
Operating loss $(0.9 ) $(120.0 ) 99.2%

nm �� not meaningful
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Net Sales:Whencomparedto 2009,Europenet salesincreased13.6%to $1,008.4million in 2010,which includesa decreaseof
$22.4million dueto unfavorableforeignexchangeratechangesandan increaseof $9.4million dueto highercopperprices.Excluding
copperpriceeffectsandtheunfavorableeffectsof foreignexchangeratechanges,Europenetsaleswere$1,021.4million in 2010which
representsanincreaseof $133.5million, or approximately15.0%,over2009.Excluding$4.8million of salesin 2009relatedto acontract
terminatedby the Companyin late 2009,salesincreasedorganically by 15.7%in 2010.As a result of the increasedmanufacturing
productionin manyindustries,the Companyhasbeenableto continueto grow its salesin the OEM Supplymarketsignificantly over
2009, although overall sales in this end-market were well below the run rates of early 2008.

GrossMargin: Grossmargin in 2010was23.3%comparedto 23.9%in 2009.The declinein grossmargin is primarily dueto an
unfavorablecustomersalesmix, the effects of weakerlocal currencieson the value of dollar basedcost of goodsand productcost
increasesin theOEM Supplyendmarketgreaterthanwhat theCompanywasableto recoverfrom customersin theshortterm.Higher
copper prices increased gross profit dollars by $2.9 million in 2010 as compared to 2009.

OperatingExpenses:Excludingthegoodwill impairmentfrom the2009results,operatingexpensesincreased$3.7million, or 1.6%,
in 2010. Foreignexchangerate changesdecreasedoperatingexpensesby $5.1 million in 2010 while a severancecharge increased
operatingexpensesby $1.1 million in 2009. Excluding the foreign exchangeimpact and the severancecharge, operatingexpenses
increased $9.9 million, or 4.3%, primarily due to an increase in variable costs associated with the organic sales growth of 15.7%.

OperatingLoss: Operatinglossesof $0.9 million in 2010 comparesto operatinglossesof $18.9million in 2009,excludingthe
goodwill impairmentandseverancecharge. Excluding the goodwill impairmentandseverancecharge from the 2009 results,Europe
operatingmargin improvedfrom a negative2.1%in 2009to a negative0.1%in 2010.This year-on-yearimprovementreflectedbetter
coststructureleveragefrom the15.7%organicsalesgrowth.CopperpricesdecreasedEurope��soperatinglossby $2.9million in 2010.
Foreign exchange rate changes had a minimal impact on operating income in 2010.

Emerging Markets Results of Operations

Years Ended

(In millions) December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Percent

Change

Net sales $ 564.9 $493.9 14.4%
Gross profit $ 120.1 $108.3 10.9%
Operating expenses $ 87.1 $78.6 10.9%
Operating income $ 33.0 $29.7 10.8%

Net Sales:Emerging Markets(Asia Pacific andLatin America)net salesin 2010increased14.4%to $564.9million from $493.9
million in 2009.Excludingthe favorableimpactfrom changesin foreign exchangeratesof $19.9million, Emerging Marketsnet sales
increased10.4%.Theincreasein salesis primarily theresultof an increasein OEM supplysalesover2009aswell ashigherenterprise
cablingsales,bothasa resultof moreprojectactivity in 2010comparedto 2009.In 2010,theCompanycontinuedto investin initiatives
to increase market penetration and expand product lines to drive growth in selected countries within Emerging Markets.

GrossMargin: During 2010,Emerging Marketsgrossmargin decreasedto 21.3%from 21.9%in 2009,primarily dueto unfavorable
productsalesmix andsignificantly lower salesin Venezuela.In 2009,salesin Venezuelawereat a high grossmargin to compensatefor
the foreign exchange risk while in 2010 sales to Venezuela were at a much lower gross margin and primarily dollar denominated.

OperatingExpenses:Operatingexpensesincreased$8.5million in 2010,or 10.9%,comparedto 2009.Foreignexchangeratechanges
increased operating expenses by $3.1 million as compared to 2009. Excluding the
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effectsof foreignexchangeratechanges,operatingexpensesincreased$5.4million, or 6.9%,comparedto 2009dueto highervariable
compensation related costs and variable costs associated with the 10.4% increase in organic sales.

OperatingIncome:Emerging Marketsoperatingincomeincreased$3.3million, or 10.8%,in 2010comparedto 2009.Theimpactof
foreignexchangeratesincreasedoperatingincomeby $1.1million. Operatingmargin in 2010was5.8%comparedto 6.0%in 2009.In
2009,salesin Venezuelawereat a high grossmargin to compensatefor theforeignexchangerisk while in 2010salesto Venezuelawere
at a much lower gross margin and primarily dollar denominated.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

TheCompanybelievesthat thefollowing arecritical areasof accountingthateitherrequiresignificantjudgmentby managementor
maybeaffectedby changesin generalmarketconditionsoutsidethecontrolof management.As aresult,changesin estimatesandgeneral
marketconditionscouldcauseactualresultsto differ materiallyfrom futureexpectedresults.Historically, theCompany��sestimatesin
these critical areas have not differed materially from actual results.

Allowancefor DoubtfulAccounts:At December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,theCompanyreportednetaccountsreceivableof
$1,151.0million and$1,069.9million, respectively. TheCompanycarriesits accountsreceivableat their faceamountslessanallowance
for doubtful accountswhich was $19.5million and $23.7million at the end of 2011 and 2010, respectively. On a regularbasis,the
Companyevaluatesits accountsreceivableand establishesthe allowancefor doubtful accountsbasedon a combinationof specific
customercircumstances,aswell ascreditconditionsandhistoryof write-offs andcollections.EachquartertheCompanysegregatesthe
doubtful receivable balances into the following major categories and determines the bad debt reserve required as outlined below:

�� Customers that are no longer paying their balances are reserved based on the historical write-off percentages;
�� Risk accountsare individually reviewedand the reserveis basedon the probability of potentialdefault.The Company

continuallymonitorspaymentpatternsof customers,investigatespastdueaccountsto assessthe likelihood of collection
and monitors industry and economic trends to estimate required allowances; and

�� The outstandingbalancefor customerswho have declaredbankruptcyis reservedat the outstandingbalanceless the
estimated net realizable value.

If circumstancesrelatedto theabovefactorschange,theCompany��sestimatesof therecoverabilityof amountsdueto theCompany
could be reduced or increased by a material amount.

InventoryObsolescence:At December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,theCompanyreportedinventoryof $1,070.7million and
$870.3million, respectively(net of inventory reservesof $61.2million and $66.8million, respectively).Eachquarterthe Company
reviewsfor excessinventoriesandmakesanassessmentof thenetrealizablevalue.Therearemanyfactorsthatmanagementconsidersin
determining whether or not or the amount by which a reserve should be established. These factors include the following:

�� Return or rotation privileges with vendors;
�� Price protection from vendors;
�� Expected future usage;
�� Whether or not a customer is obligated by contract to purchase the inventory;
�� Current market pricing;
�� Historical consumption experience; and
�� Risk of obsolescence.

If circumstances related to the above factors change, there could be a material impact on the net realizable value of the inventories.
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PensionExpense:Accountingrulesrelatedto pensionsandthe policiesusedby the Companygenerallyreducethe recognitionof
actuarialgainsandlossesin thenetbenefitcost,asanysignificantactuarialgains/lossesareamortizedover theremainingservicelives
of theplanparticipants.Theseactuarialgainsandlossesaremainly attributableto thereturnon planassetsthatdiffer from thatassumed
and differences in the obligation due to changes in the discount rate, plan demographic changes and other assumptions.

A significantelementin determiningthe Company��snet periodicbenefitcostin accordancewith GenerallyAcceptedAccounting
Principles(��U.S.GAAP��) is theexpectedreturnonplanassets.For2011, theCompanyhadassumedthattheweighted-averageexpected
long-termrateof returnon planassetswould be6.91%.This expectedreturnon planassetsis includedin thenetperiodicbenefitcost
for the fiscal yearended2011. As a resultof the combinedeffect of valuationchangesin both the equity andbondmarkets,the plan
assetsproducedanactualgainof approximately4.6%in 2011 ascomparedto a gainof 11.8%in 2010.As a result,thefair valueof plan
assetsis $335.1million at the endof fiscal 2011, comparedto $313.8million at the endof fiscal 2010.Whenthe differencebetween
theexpectedreturnandtheactualreturnon planassetsis significant,thedifferenceis amortizedinto expenseover theservicelives of
the plan participants.Theseamountsare reflectedon the balancesheetthroughchargesto ��OtherComprehensiveIncome(Loss),��a
component of ��Stockholders�� Equity�� in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The measurementdatefor all plansof the Companyis December31st. Accordingly, at the endof eachfiscal year, the Company
determinesthe discountrateto be usedto discountthe plan liabilities to their presentvalue.The discountratereflectsthe currentrate
at which the pensionliabilities could be effectively settledat the endof the year. In estimatingthis rateat the endof 2011 and2010,
the Companyreviewedratesof returnon relevantmarketindices(i.e., the Citigroup pensionliability index).Theseratesareadjusted
to matchthedurationof the liabilities associatedwith thepensionplans.At December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,theCompany
determinedthe consolidatedweighted-averagerateof all plansto be 4.56%and5.49%,respectively, andusedthis rateto measurethe
projectedbenefitobligationat theendof eachrespectivefiscal yearend.As a resultof thechangein thediscountrateaswell aschanges
in foreignexchangerates,theprojectedbenefitobligationincreasedto $480.5million at theendof fiscal2011 from $400.0million at the
endof fiscal2010.As aresultof thechangein assetvaluesandtheprojectedbenefitobligation,theCompany��sconsolidatednetpension
liability was $145.4 million at the end of fiscal 2011 compared to $86.2 million at the end of 2010.

Basedon theconsolidatedweighted-averagediscountrateat thebeginningof 2011 and2010(5.49%and5.88%,respectively),the
Companyrecognizeda consolidatedpre-taxnetperiodiccostof $16.4million in 2011, downfrom $16.7million in 2010.TheCompany
estimates its 2012 net periodic cost to increase by over 37% primarily due to higher interest costs as a result of lower discount rates.

Dueto its longduration,thepensionliability is verysensitiveto changesin thediscountrate.As asensitivitymeasure,theeffectof a
50-basis-pointdeclinein theassumeddiscountratewouldresultin anincreasein the2012pensionexpenseof approximately$3.9million
andanincreasein theprojectedbenefitobligationsat December30,2011 of $44.1million. A 50-basis-pointdeclinein theassumedrate
of return on assets would result in an increase in the 2012 expense of approximately $1.1 million.

Goodwill and Indefinite-LivedIntangibleAssets:On anannualbasis,theCompanytestsfor goodwill impairmentusinga two-step
process,unlessthereis a triggeringevent,in which casea testwould be performedat the time that suchtriggeringeventoccurs.The
first stepis to identify a potentialimpairmentby comparingthe fair valueof a reportingunit with its carryingamount.For all periods
presented,theCompany��sreportingunitsareconsistentwith its operatingsegmentsof North America,Europe,Latin AmericaandAsia
Pacific.Theestimatesof fair valueof areportingunit aredeterminedusingtheincomeapproachbasedonadiscountedcashflow analysis.
A discountedcashflow analysisrequirestheCompanyto makevariousjudgmentalassumptions,includingassumptionsaboutfuturecash
flows, growthratesanddiscountrates.Theassumptionsaboutfuturecashflows andgrowthratesarebasedonmanagement��sforecastof
eachreportingunit. Discountrateassumptionsarebasedon anassessmentof therisk inherentin thefuturecashflows of therespective
reporting
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units from theperspectiveof marketparticipants.TheCompanyalsoreviewsmarketmultiple informationto corroboratethe fair value
conclusionsrecordedthroughtheaforementionedincomeapproach.If steponeindicatesa carryingvalueabovetheestimatedfair value,
thesecondstepof thegoodwill impairmenttestis performedby comparingthe implied fair valueof thereportingunit��sgoodwill with
the carryingamountof that goodwill. The implied fair valueof goodwill is determinedin the samemannerasthe amountof goodwill
recognized in a business combination.

The Companyperformedits 2011 annualimpairmentanalysisduring the third quarterof 2011 andconcludedthat no impairment
existed. The Company expects the carrying amount of remaining goodwill to be fully recoverable.

Due to businessandeconomicconditionsthat existedin 2009,the Companyconcludedthat therewereimpairmentindicatorsfor
theNorth America,EuropeandAsia Pacific reportingunits that requiredaninterim impairmentanalysisbeperformedunderGenerally
Accepted Accounting Principles (��U.S. GAAP��) during the second fiscal quarter of that year.

In the first stepof the impairmentanalysis,theCompanyperformedvaluationanalysesutilizing the incomeapproachto determine
the fair valueof its reportingunits.The Companyalsoconsideredthe marketapproachasdescribedin U.S. GAAP. Underthe income
approach,theCompanydeterminedthefair valuebasedonestimatedfuturecashflows discountedby anestimatedweighted-averagecost
of capital,which reflectsthe overall level of inherentrisk of the reportingunit andthe rateof returnan outsideinvestorwould expect
to earn.The inputsusedfor the incomeapproachweresignificantunobservableinputs,or Level 3 inputs, in the fair valuehierarchy
describedin recentlyissuedaccountingguidanceonfair valuemeasurements.Estimatedfuturecashflows werebasedontheCompany��s
internalprojectionmodels,industryprojectionsandotherassumptionsdeemedreasonableby managementasthosethatwould bemade
by a marketparticipant.Basedon theresultsof theCompany��sassessmentin stepone,it wasdeterminedthat thecarryingvalueof the
Europe reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value while North America and Asia Pacific��s fair value exceeded the carrying value.

Therefore,theCompanyperformeda secondstepof theimpairmenttestto estimatetheimplied fair valueof goodwill in Europe.In
thesecondstepof theimpairmentanalysis,theCompanydeterminedtheimplied fair valueof goodwill for theEuropereportingunit by
allocatingthefair valueof thereportingunit to all of Europe��sassetsandliabilities,asif thereportingunit hadbeenacquiredin abusiness
combinationandthepricepaidto acquireit wasthefair value.Theanalysisindicatedthattherewouldbeanimpliedvalueattributableto
goodwill of $12.1million in theEuropereportingunit andaccordingly, in thesecondquarterof 2009,theCompanyrecordeda non-cash
impairment charge related to the write-off of the remaining goodwill of $100.0 million associated with its Europe reporting unit.

DeferredTax Assets:At December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,theCompany��sallowancefor deferredtax assetswere$20.3
million and$18.8million, respectively. TheCompanymaintainsvaluationallowancesto reducedeferredtaxassetsif it is morelikely than
not thatsomeportionor all of thedeferredtaxassetwill notberealized.Changesin valuationallowancesareincludedin theCompany��s
tax provisionin the periodof change.In determiningwhethera valuationallowanceis warranted,managementevaluatesfactorssuch
asprior earningshistory, expectedfutureearnings,carrybackandcarryforwardperiodsandtax strategiesthatcouldpotentiallyenhance
the likelihood of realizationof a deferredtax asset.Assessmentsaremadeat eachbalancesheetdateto determinehow muchof each
deferredtax assetis realizable.Theseestimatesaresubjectto changein the future, particularly if earningsof a particularsubsidiary
aresignificantlyhigheror lower thanexpected,or if managementtakesoperationalor tax planningactionsthatcould impactthe future
taxable earnings of a subsidiary.

UncertainTax Positions:In thenormalcourseof business,theCompanyis auditedby federal,stateandforeigntax authorities,and
is periodicallychallengedregardingthe amountof taxesdue.Thesechallengesrelateto the timing andamountof deductionsandthe
allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions.

35

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


ManagementbelievestheCompany��staxpositionscomplywith applicabletax law andtheCompanyintendsto defendits positions.The
Companyrecognizesthebenefitof tax positionswhena benefitis morelikely thannot (i.e., greaterthan50%likely) to besustainedon
its technicalmerits.Recognizedtax benefitsaremeasuredat the largestamountthat is morelikely thannot to be sustained,basedon
cumulativeprobability, in final settlementof theposition.TheCompany��seffectivetax ratein agivenperiodcouldbeimpactedif, upon
final resolutionwith taxingauthorities,theCompanyprevailedin positionsfor which reserveshavebeenestablished,or wasrequiredto
pay amounts in excess of established reserves.

As of December30,2011, theaggregateamountof globaluncertaintaxpositionliabilities andrelatedinterestandpenaltiesrecorded
wasapproximately$24.2million. The uncertaintax positionscovera rangeof issues,in particular, certainfinancingrelatedactivities
related to the Company, intercompany charges and withholding taxes, and involve numerous different taxing jurisdictions.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For informationaboutrecentlyissuedaccountingpronouncements,seeNote1. ��Summaryof SignificantAccountingPolicies��in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 7A.QUANTIT ATIVE AND QUALIT ATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

TheCompanyis exposedto theimpactof fluctuationsin foreigncurrenciesandinterestratechanges,aswell aschangesin themarket
valueof its financial instruments.TheCompanyperiodicallyentersinto derivativesin orderto minimizetheserisks,but not for trading
purposes.TheCompany��sstrategyis to negotiatetermsfor its derivativesandotherfinancial instrumentsto beperfectlyeffective,such
that thechangein thevalueof thederivativeperfectlyoffsetsthe impactof theunderlyinghedgeditem (e.g.,variousforeigncurrency
denominatedaccounts).The Company��scounterpartiesto its derivativecontractshaveinvestment-gradecredit ratings.The Company
expectsthecreditworthinessof its counterpartiesto remainintactthroughthetermof thetransactions.TheCompanyregularlymonitors
thecreditworthinessof its counterpartiesto ensureno issuesexistwhich couldaffect thevalueof thederivatives.Any resultinggainsor
lossesfrom hedgeineffectivenessarereflecteddirectly in ��Other, net��in theCompany��sConsolidatedStatementsof Operations.During
periodsof volatility in foreignexchangerates,theCompanycanbesubjectto significantforeignexchangegainsandlossessincethere
is a time lag betweenwhentheCompanyincurstheforeignexchangeexposureandwhentheCompanyhasthe informationto properly
hedge the exposure.

Foreign Exchange Risk

TheCompany��sforeigncurrency-denominatedsaleswere35%in 2011, 35%in 2010and34%in 2009.TheCompany��sexposure
to currencyratefluctuationsprimarily relateto Europe(EuroandBritish Pound)andCanada(Canadiandollar). TheCompanyalsohas
exposureto currencyratefluctuationsrelatedto morevolatile marketssuchasArgentina(Peso),Australia(Dollar), Brazil (Real),Chile
(Peso), Colombia (Peso), Mexico (Peso) and Venezuela (Bolivar).

TheCompany��sinvestmentsin severalsubsidiariesarerecordedin currenciesotherthantheU.S.dollar. As theseforeigncurrency
denominatedinvestmentsaretranslatedat theendof eachperiodduringconsolidationusingperiod-endexchangerates,fluctuationsof
exchangeratesbetweentheforeigncurrencyandtheU.S.dollar increaseor decreasethevalueof thoseinvestments.Thesefluctuations
andtheresultsof operationsfor foreignsubsidiaries,wherethefunctionalcurrencyis not theU.S.dollar, aretranslatedinto U.S.dollars
using the averageexchangeratesduring the year, while the assetsand liabilities are translatedusingperiodendexchangerates.The
assetsandliabilities-relatedtranslationadjustmentsarerecordedasa separatecomponentof Stockholders��Equity, ��Foreigncurrency
translation,��which is a componentof accumulatedothercomprehensiveincome/lossin the Company��sConsolidatedBalanceSheets.
In addition,asthe Company��ssubsidiariesmaintaininvestmentsdenominatedin currenciesotherthanlocal currencies,exchangerate
fluctuations will occur. Borrowings are raised in certain foreign currencies to minimize the exchange rate translation adjustment risk.

Severalof theCompany��ssubsidiariesconductbusinessin a currencyotherthanthelegalentity��sfunctionalcurrency. Transactions
may producereceivablesor payablesthat arefixed in termsof the amountof foreign currencythat will be receivedor paid.A change
in exchangeratesbetweenthe functionalcurrencyandthe currencyin which a transactionis denominatedincreasesor decreasesthe
expectedamountof functionalcurrencycashflows uponsettlementof the transaction.That increaseor decreasein expectedfunctional
currencycashflows is a foreign exchangetransactiongain or loss that is includedin ��Other, net�� in the ConsolidatedStatementsof
Operations.

The Companypurchasesforeign currencyforward contractsto minimize the effect of fluctuating foreign currency-denominated
accountson its reportedincome. The foreign currency forward contractsare not designatedas hedgesfor accountingpurposes.
At December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, the notional amount of the foreign currency forward contractsoutstandingwas
approximately$161.3million and $223.0million, respectively. The Companypreparedsensitivity analysesof its foreign currency
forward contractsassuminga 10% adversechangein the value of foreign currencycontractsoutstanding.The hypotheticaladverse
changeswould haveresultedin the Companyrecordinga $15.8million and$23.2million loss in fiscal 2011 and2010,respectively.
However, astheseforwardcontractsareintendedto beperfectlyeffectiveeconomichedges,theCompanywould recordoffsettinggains
as a result of the remeasurement of the underlying foreign currency denominated monetary accounts being hedged.
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Venezuela Foreign Exchange

TheCompany��sfunctionalcurrencyfor financial reportingpurposesin Venezuelais theU.S.dollar (��USD��). Inventoryis sourced
from vendorsin theUnitedStates(includingtheparentcompanyof theVenezuelansubsidiary, Anixter Inc.) andpaidfor in USD.Sales
to customersareinvoicedin thelocalbolivarcurrencyandbolivarsarecollectedfrom customersto settleoutstandingreceivables.During
2009, local government restrictions made it increasingly difficult to transfer cash out of Venezuela.

Historically, the Companyutilized the parallelmarket(which involvesusingbolivars to purchaseVenezuelansecuritiesand then
swapthosesecuritiesfor USD denominatedinvestments)to obtainUSD to settleUSD liabilities. Theuseof this parallelmarketresulted
in unfavorableforeignexchangeratesascomparedwith theofficial ratein Venezuela.In Decemberof 2009,theVenezuelaoperations
remittedcashto its U.S. parentusingtheparallelmarket,resultingin a $4.8million pre-taxforeignexchangelossrecordedduring the
fourth quarter of 2009.

At theendof 2009,asaresultof thefactorsthatledto increasedusageof theparallelmarket,includingtheDecembercashremittance
to theparent,theCompanyre-evaluatedits historicalpracticeof remeasuringbolivar-denominatedmonetaryassets(primarily cashand
accountsreceivable)into USDusingtheofficial exchangeratefor financialreportingpurposes.TheCompanydeterminedthatdueto the
changeof circumstancesdescribedabove,andthe expectedcontinueduseof the parallelmarketfor repatriatingcashfrom Venezuela,
useof theparallelratefor remeasurementpurposeswasmostappropriate.Theresultof usingtheunfavorableparallelexchangerateto
remeasure these assets was a $9.0 million pre-tax loss recorded during the fourth quarter of 2009.

In May of 2010,theVenezuelangovernmentsuspendedtradingin theparallelmarketandreplacedit with asystemcalledTransaction
Systemfor ForeignCurrencyDenominatedSecurities(��SITME��), underthecontrol of theCentralBankof Venezuela.Underthenew
regulations,the Companyis limited to convertingthe Venezuelanbolivar to USD at a rateof $50,000per day, up to a maximumof
$350,000per month,aspermittedby the CentralBank of Venezuela.The bolivar to USD exchangerateunderSITME wasadjusted
to 5.3 bolivars to oneUSD at July2, 2010.As a result,during the secondquarterof 2010, the Companyrecordeda pre-taxforeign
exchangegainof $2.1million dueto theremeasurementof Venezuela��sbolivar-denominatedmonetaryassetsat theratedeterminedby
thegovernment��snewly regulatedforeigncurrencyexchangesystem.Thebolivar to USD exchangeratewas5.53bolivarsto oneUSD
at the end of 2011 and 2010.

Therateatwhich theCompanyobtainspermissionto repatriatecashthroughSITME variesandit is determinedby theCentralBank.
Theratereflectedin theCompany��sconsolidatedfinancialstatementsis theaverageexchangerateobtainedduringthereportingperiod
for transactionsthat the CompanyexecutesthroughSITME. The Companyoften receivessmall approvalamountsfrom the regulatory
authorityin Venezuelaat a rateof 4.30;however, theCompanydoesn��tconsiderthis representativeof therateat which it canrepatriate
significant cash in a consistent manner. Therefore, the Company doesn��t use this rate for U.S. GAAP accounting.

Interest Rate Risk

TheCompanyusesinterestrateswapsto reduceits exposureto adversefluctuationsin interestrates.Theobjectiveof thecurrently
outstandinginterestrate swap (cashflow hedge)is to convert variable interestto fixed interestassociatedwith forecastedinterest
paymentsresultingfrom revolving borrowingsin the U.K. and is designatedas a hedginginstrument.The Companydoesnot enter
into interestrateswapsfor speculativepurposes.Changesin the valueof the interestrateswapis expectedto be highly effective in
offsettingthechangesattributableto fluctuationsin thevariablerates.TheCompany��scounterpartyto its interestrateswapcontracthas
aninvestment-gradecreditrating.TheCompanyexpectsthecreditworthinessof its counterpartyto remainintactthroughthetermof the
transactions.The Companyregularlymonitorsthe creditworthinessof its counterpartyto ensureno issuesexist which could affect the
valueof thederivatives.Whenenteredinto, thefinancial instrumentwasdesignateda hedgeof underlyingexposures(interestpayments
associated with the U.K.
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borrowings)attributableto changesin the respectivebenchmarkinterestrate. Currently, the fair value of the interestrate swap is
determinedby meansof a mathematicalmodel that calculatesthe presentvalue of the anticipatedcashflows from the transaction
usingmid-marketpricesandothereconomicdataandassumptions,or by meansof pricing indicationsfrom oneor moreotherdealers
selectedat the discretionof the respectivebanks.Theseinputswould be consideredLevel 2 in the fair valuehierarchydescribedin
recentlyissuedaccountingguidanceonfair valuemeasurements.At December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,interestrateswapswere
revaluedatcurrentinterestrates,with thechangesin valuationreflecteddirectly in OtherComprehensiveIncome/Lossin theCompany��s
ConsolidatedBalanceSheets.Thefair marketvalueof theCompany��soutstandinginterestrateagreements,which is theestimatedexit
pricethattheCompanywouldpayto canceltheinterestrateagreements,wasnotsignificantatDecember30,2011 or December31,2010.
TheCompanyprepareda sensitivityanalysisassuminga 10%adversechangein interestrates.Holding all othervariablesconstant,the
hypotheticaladversechangewouldhaveincreasedinterestexpenseby $0.8million and$0.6million in fiscal2011 and2010,respectively.

Fair Market Value of Debt Instruments

The fair valueof the Company��sdebt instrumentsis measuredusingobservablemarketinformationwhich would be considered
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy described in recently issued accounting guidance on fair value measurements.

Thecarryingvalueof theCompany��snonconvertiblefixed-ratedebt(specifically, Notesdue2015andNotesdue2014)was$231.1
million and$230.6million at December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,respectively. The fair valueof thenonconvertiblefixed-rate
debtinstrumentswas$240.4million and$239.3million at December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,respectively. The Company��s
Notesdue2014andNotesdue2015bearinterestat a fixed rateof 10.0%and5.95%,respectively. Therefore,changesin interestrates
do not affect interestexpenseincurredon theNotesdue2014or theNotesdue2015,but interestratesdo affect thefair value.If interest
rateswereto increaseby 10.0%,thefair marketvalueof theNotesdue2014andtheNotesdue2015would decreaseby 1.4%and2.0%
at December30, 2011 andat December31, 2010,respectively. If interestrateswereto decreaseby 10%, the fair marketvalueof the
fixed-rate debt would increase by 1.4% and 2.0% at December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, respectively.

The carryingvalueof the Company��soutstandingconvertiblefixed-ratedebt (specifically, Notesdue2013andNotesdue2033)
was$280.3million at December30, 2011 and$312.7million at December31, 2010.During 2011, the Companyretiredits Notesdue
2033asaresultof repurchasesandbondholderconversions.As theCompany��soutstandingconvertiblefixed-ratedebtmaybeconverted
into theCompany��scommonstock,thepriceof theCompany��scommonstockmayaffect thefair valueof theCompany��sconvertible
debt.Theestimatedfair valueof theCompany��soutstandingconvertibledebtdecreasedto $342.8million at December30, 2011 from
$433.5million at December31,2010.Thedeclinein theestimatedfair valueof theCompany��sconvertibledebtis primarily dueto the
retirementof theNotesdue2033duringfiscal2011. A hypothetical10%increasein thepriceof theCompany��scommonstockfrom the
priceatDecember30,2011 andDecember31,2010wouldhaveincreasedthefair valueof its thenoutstandingconvertibledebtby $34.3
million and $43.4 million, respectively.

Changesin thefair marketvalueof theCompany��sdebtdonotaffect thereportedresultsof operationsunlesstheCompanyis retiring
suchobligationsprior to their maturity. This analysisdid not considertheeffectsof a changedlevel of economicactivity thatcouldexist
in suchan environmentandcertainother factors.Further, in the eventof a changeof this magnitude,managementwould likely take
actionsto furthermitigateits exposureto possiblechanges.However, dueto theuncertaintyof thespecificactionsthatwould betaken
and their possible effects, this sensitivity analysis assumes no changes in the Company��s financial structure.

SeeNote 1. ��Summaryof Significant AccountingPolicies��(��Interestrate agreements��and ��Foreigncurrencytranslation��)and
Note5. ��Debt�� in theNotesto theConsolidatedFinancialStatementsfor furtherdetailon interestrateagreementsandoutstandingdebt
obligations.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Anixter International Inc.:

We have audited the accompanyingconsolidatedbalancesheetsof Anixter International Inc. as of December30, 2011 and
December31,2010andtherelatedconsolidatedstatementsof operations,stockholders��equityandcashflows for eachof thethreeyears
in theperiodendedDecember30, 2011. Our auditsalsoincludedthe financial statementscheduleslisted in the Indexat Item15(a)(2).
Thesefinancial statementsand schedulesare the responsibilityof the Company��smanagement.Our responsibilityis to expressan
opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on our audits.

Weconductedourauditsin accordancewith thestandardsof thePublicCompanyAccountingOversightBoard(UnitedStates).Those
standardsrequirethat we plan andperformthe audit to obtainreasonableassuranceaboutwhetherthe financial statementsarefree of
materialmisstatement.An audit includesexamining,on a testbasis,evidencesupportingthe amountsanddisclosuresin the financial
statements.An audit alsoincludesassessingthe accountingprinciplesusedandsignificantestimatesmadeby management,aswell as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In ouropinion,thefinancialstatementsreferredto abovepresentfairly, in all materialrespects,theconsolidatedfinancialpositionof
Anixter InternationalInc. atDecember30,2011 andDecember31,2010,andtheconsolidatedresultsof its operationsandits cashflows
for eachof the threeyearsin the periodendedDecember30, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generallyacceptedaccountingprinciples.
Also, in our opinion, the relatedfinancial statementschedules,whenconsideredin relationto the basicfinancial statementstakenasa
whole, present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

Wealsohaveaudited,in accordancewith thestandardsof thePublicCompanyAccountingOversightBoard(UnitedStates),Anixter
InternationalInc.��s internalcontrol over financial reportingasof December30, 2011, basedon criteria establishedin InternalControl
�� IntegratedFrameworkissuedby the Committeeof SponsoringOrganizationsof the TreadwayCommissionand our report dated
February27, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST& YOUNG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February27, 2012
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Net sales $6,146.9 $5,274.5 $4,779.6
Cost of goods sold 4,739.5 4,066.9 3,702.5

Gross profit 1,407.4 1,207.6 1,077.1

Operating expenses 1,044.6 940.4 892.3
Goodwill impairment �� �� 100.0

Operating income 362.8 267.2 84.8
Other expense:

Interest expense (50.1 ) (53.6 ) (66.1 )
Net loss on retirement of debt �� (31.9 ) (1.1 )
Other, net (9.2 ) (1.5 ) (19.2 )

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 303.5 180.2 (1.6 )
Income tax expense 102.8 70.7 39.8

Net income (loss) from continuing operations 200.7 109.5 (41.4 )
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax (12.5 ) (1.0 ) 12.1

Net income (loss) $188.2 $108.5 $(29.3 )

Income (loss) per share:
Basic:

Continuing operations $5.87 $3.21 $(1.17 )
Discontinued operations $(0.37 ) $(0.03 ) $0.34

Net income (loss) $5.50 $3.18 $(0.83 )

Diluted:
Continuing operations $5.71 $3.08 $(1.17 )
Discontinued operations $(0.35 ) $(0.03 ) $0.34

Net income (loss) $5.36 $3.05 $(0.83 )

Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 34.2 34.1 35.1
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and units 0.4 0.5 ��
Convertible notes due 2033 0.2 0.9 ��
Convertible notes due 2013 0.3 �� ��

Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 35.1 35.5 35.1

Dividend declared per common share $���� $3.25 $����

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except share amounts)

ASSETS

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Curr ent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $106.1 $78.4
Accounts receivable (Includes $524.6 and $407.8 at December30, 2011 and December31,

2010, respectively, associated with securitization facility) 1,151.0 1,069.9
Inventories 1,070.7 870.3
Deferred income taxes 37.7 50.3
Other current assets 37.4 50.2
Assets of discontinued operations �� 186.8

Total current assets 2,402.9 2,305.9
Property and equipment, at cost 291.0 278.8
Accumulated depreciation (202.7 ) (195.6 )

Net property and equipment 88.3 83.2
Goodwill 351.7 355.3
Other assets 191.1 188.9

Total Assets $3,034.0 $2,933.3

LIABILITIES AND ST OCKHOLDERS ���� EQUITY

Curr ent liabilities:
Accounts payable $706.5 $639.3
Accrued expenses 317.4 215.5
Short-term debt (Includes $200.0 at December31, 2010 associated with securitization

facility) 3.0 203.4
Liabilities of discontinued operations �� 14.6

Total current liabilities 1,026.9 1,072.8
Long-term debt (Includes $175.0 at December30, 2011 associated with securitization facility) 806.8 688.7
Other liabilities 199.1 161.0

Total liabilities 2,032.8 1,922.5
Stockholders���� equity:
Common stock �� $1.00 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,228,049 and 34,323,061

shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 2010, respectively 33.2 34.3
Capital surplus 196.5 230.1
Retained earnings 857.0 774.2
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Foreign currency translation (0.5 ) 16.8
Unrecognized pension liability (85.3 ) (43.9 )
Unrealized loss on derivatives, net 0.3 (0.7 )

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss (85.5 ) (27.8 )

Total stockholders���� equity 1,001.2 1,010.8

Total liabilities and stockholders���� equity $3,034.0 $2,933.3

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $188.2 $108.5 $(29.3 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Loss on retirement of debt �� 31.9 1.1
Loss on sale of business 22.6 �� ��
Goodwill impairment �� �� 100.0
Depreciation 22.1 22.5 24.1
Accretion of debt discount 17.1 18.8 21.1
Stock-based compensation 11.1 16.7 15.2
Amortization of intangible assets 11.4 11.3 13.0
Deferred income taxes 7.2 21.6 (1.6 )
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2.5 2.7 2.9
Excess income tax benefit from employee stock plans (6.9 ) (5.4 ) (0.7 )
Changes in current assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (98.3 ) (136.0 ) 149.4
Inventories (200.4 ) (63.6 ) 264.8
Accounts payable and other current assets and liabilities, net 171.6 166.1 (107.3 )

Other, net (3.8 ) 0.1 (11.8 )

Net cash provided by operating activities 144.4 195.2 440.9
Investing activities:

Net proceeds from sale of business 143.6 �� ��
Capital expenditures, net (26.4 ) (19.6 ) (21.9 )
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 1.6 (36.4 ) (1.8 )

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 118.8 (56.0 ) (23.7 )
Financing activities:

Proceeds from borrowings 1,023.7 1,029.2 316.5
Repayment of borrowings (1,073.1 ) (778.0 ) (716.7 )
Purchases of common stock for treasury (107.5 ) (41.2 ) (34.9 )
Retirement of Convertible Notes due 2033 �� debt component (48.9 ) (65.6 ) (56.5 )
Retirement of Convertible Notes due 2033 �� equity component (44.9 ) (54.0 ) (34.3 )
Proceeds from stock options exercised 13.4 8.7 2.5
Excess income tax benefit from employee stock plans 6.9 5.4 0.7
Deferred financing costs (4.2 ) (0.3 ) (6.7
Payment of cash dividend (0.9 ) (111.0 ) (0.3
Retirement of Notes due 2014 �� (165.5 ) (26.5 )
Proceeds from issuance of Notes due 2014 �� �� 185.2

Net cash used in financing activities (235.5 ) (172.3 ) (371.0 )

Incr ease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 27.7 (33.1 ) 46.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 78.4 111.5 65.3

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $106.1 $78.4 $111.5
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See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS ���� EQUITY
(In millions)

Common Stock

Comprehensive

Income (Loss) Shares Amount

Capital

Surplus

Retained

Earnings

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income (Loss) Total

Balance at January2, 2009 35.3 $35.3 $243.7 $882.8 $(89.0 ) $1,072.8

Net loss $(29.3 ) �� �� �� (29.3 ) �� (29.3 )

Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation 52.7 �� �� �� �� 52.7 52.7

Changes in unrealized pension cost, net of tax of $0.9 (19.9 ) �� �� �� �� (19.9 ) (19.9 )

Changes in fair market value of derivatives, net of tax of

$0.4 0.9 �� �� �� �� 0.9 0.9

Comprehensive income $4.4

Purchase and retirement of treasury stock (see Note9.) (1.0 ) (1.0 ) �� (33.9 ) �� (34.9 )

Equity component of repurchased convertible debt (see Note

5.) �� �� (34.3 ) �� �� (34.3 )

Stock-based compensation �� �� 15.2 �� �� 15.2

Issuance of common stock and related tax benefits 0.4 0.4 0.5 �� �� 0.9

Balance at January1, 2010 34.7 $34.7 $225.1 $819.6 $(55.3 ) $1,024.1

Net income $108.5 �� �� �� 108.5 �� 108.5

Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation 13.4 �� �� �� �� 13.4 13.4

Changes in unrealized pension cost, net of tax of $3.1 12.9 �� �� �� �� 12.9 12.9

Changes in fair market value of derivatives, net of tax of

$0.9 1.2 �� �� �� �� 1.2 1.2

Comprehensive income $136.0

Dividend declared on common stock ($3.25 per share) �� �� �� (113.7 ) �� (113.7 )

Purchase and retirement of treasury stock (see Note9.) (1.0 ) (1.0 ) (40.2 ) �� (41.2 )

Equity component of repurchased convertible debt, net of tax

of $33.6 (see Note 5.) �� �� (20.4 ) �� �� (20.4 )

Stock-based compensation �� �� 16.7 �� �� 16.7

Issuance of common stock and related tax benefits 0.6 0.6 8.7 �� �� 9.3

Balance at December31, 2010 34.3 $34.3 $230.1 $774.2 $(27.8 ) $1,010.8

Net income $188.2 �� �� �� 188.2 �� 188.2

Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation (18.3 ) �� �� �� �� (18.3 ) (18.3 )

Foreign currency translation related to sale of business

recognized in net income �� �� �� �� �� 1.0 1.0

Changes in unrealized pension cost, net of tax of $21.4 (41.4 ) �� �� �� �� (41.4 ) (41.4 )

Changes in fair market value of derivatives, net of tax of

$0.4 1.0 �� �� �� �� 1.0 1.0

Comprehensive income $129.5

Dividend forfeited on common stock �� �� �� 0.1 �� 0.1

Purchase and retirement of treasury stock (see Note 9.) (2.0 ) (2.0 ) (105.5 ) �� (107.5 )
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Equity component of repurchased convertible debt, net of tax

of $6.2 (see Note 5.) �� �� (38.7 ) �� �� (38.7 )

Reversal of tax benefit on equity component of convertible

debt repurchases (see Note 7.) �� �� (18.7 ) �� �� (18.7 )

Stock-based compensation �� �� 11.1 �� �� 11.1

Issuance of common stock and related tax benefits 0.9 0.9 12.7 �� �� 13.6

Balance at December30, 2011 33.2 $33.2 $196.5 $857.0 $(85.5 ) $1,001.2

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization:Anixter InternationalInc. (��theCompany��),formerlyknownasItel Corporation,whichwasincorporatedin Delaware
in 1967,is engagedin thedistributionof communicationsandsecurityproducts,electricalwire andcableproducts,fastenersandsmall
parts through Anixter Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively ��Anixter��).

Basisof presentation:Theconsolidatedfinancialstatementsincludetheaccountsof Anixter InternationalInc. andits subsidiaries.
The Company��sfiscal yearendson the Friday nearestDecember31 andincluded52 weeksin 2011, 2010and2009.Certainamounts
havebeenreclassifiedto conformto thecurrentyearpresentation.Also, asa resultof thedivestitureof a business,describedin Note4.
��DiscontinuedOperations,��theCompanybeganrecordingtheresultsof thedivestedbusinessasdiscontinuedoperationsin 2011 andall
prior periods have been revised to reflect this classification.

Use of estimates:The preparationof financial statementsin conformity with generallyacceptedaccountingprinciples requires
managementto makeestimatesandassumptionsthat affect the amountsreportedin the financial statementsandaccompanyingnotes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cashand cashequivalents:Cashequivalentsconsistof short-term,highly liquid investmentsthat maturewithin threemonthsor
less. Such investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Receivablesand allowance for doubtful accounts:The Companycarriesits accountsreceivableat their face amountslessan
allowancefor doubtful accountswhich was$19.5million and$23.7million at the endof 2011 and2010,respectively. On a regular
basis,the Companyevaluatesits accountsreceivableandestablishesthe allowancefor doubtful accountsbasedon a combinationof
specificcustomercircumstances,aswell ascreditconditionsandhistoryof write-offs andcollections.During2011, theCompanyreached
favorablesettlementsof severalcustomerbankruptcyanddisputeswhichwerefully reservedat thebeginningof 2011. Theprovisionfor
doubtful accountswas$8.0million, $12.8million and$11.7 million in 2011, 2010and2009,respectively. A receivableis considered
pastdueif paymentshavenot beenreceivedwithin the agreeduponinvoice terms.Receivablesarewritten off anddeductedfrom the
allowance account when the receivables are deemed uncollectible.

Inventories: Inventories,consistingprimarily of finishedgoods,arestatedat the lower of costor market.Costis determinedusing
the average-costmethod.The Companyhasagreementswith someof its vendorsthat providea right to returnproducts.This right is
typically limited to a small percentageof the Company��stotal purchasesfrom that vendor. Suchrights providethat the Companycan
returnslow-movingproductandthevendorwill replaceit with faster-movingproductchosenby theCompany. Somevendoragreements
containpriceprotectionprovisionsthatrequirethemanufacturerto issueacreditin anamountsufficient to reducetheCompany��scurrent
inventorycarryingcostdown to themanufacturer��scurrentprice.TheCompanyconsiderstheseagreementsin determiningits reserve
for obsolescence.

At December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,theCompanyreportedinventoryof $1,070.7million and$870.3million, respectively
(net of inventoryreservesof $61.2million and$66.8million, respectively).Eachquarterthe Companyreviewsfor excessinventories
andmakesanassessmentof thenet realizablevalue.Therearemanyfactorsthatmanagementconsidersin determiningwhetheror not
the amount by which a reserve should be established. These factors include the following:

�� Return or rotation privileges with vendors;
�� Price protection from vendors;
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

�� Expected future usage;
�� Whether or not a customer is obligated by contract to purchase the inventory;
�� Current market pricing;
�� Historical consumption experience; and
�� Risk of obsolescence.

If circumstances related to the above factors change, there could be a material impact on the net realizable value of the inventories.

Property and equipment: At December30, 2011, net property and equipmentconsistedof $62.9 million of equipmentand
computersoftwareandapproximately$25.4million of buildingsandleaseholdimprovements.At December31,2010,netpropertyand
equipmentconsistedof $57.5million of equipmentandcomputersoftwareandapproximately$25.7million of buildingsandleasehold
improvements.Equipmentandcomputersoftwarearerecordedat costanddepreciatedby applyingthe straight-linemethodover their
estimatedusefullives,which rangefrom 3 to 10 years.Leaseholdimprovementsaredepreciatedover theusefullife or over thetermof
therelatedlease,whicheveris shorter. Uponsaleor retirement,thecostandrelateddepreciationareremovedfrom therespectiveaccounts
andany gain or loss is includedin income.Maintenanceandrepaircostsareexpensedas incurred.Depreciationexpensecharged to
operations was $22.1 million, $22.5 million and $24.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Costsfor softwaredevelopedfor internalusearecapitalizedwhenthe preliminaryprojectstageis completeandthe Companyhas
committedfundingfor projectsthatarelikely to becompleted. Coststhatareincurredduringthepreliminaryprojectstageareexpensed
as incurred.Once the capitalizationcriteria havebeenmet, externaldirect costsof materialsand servicesconsumedin developing
internal-usecomputersoftware,payroll andpayroll-relatedcostsfor employeeswho aredirectly associatedwith andwho devotetime
to the internal-usecomputersoftwareproject(to theextentof their time spentdirectly on theproject)andinterestcostsincurredwhen
developingcomputersoftwarefor internal useare capitalized.At December30, 2011 and December31, 2010,capitalizedcosts,net
of accumulatedamortization,for softwaredevelopedfor internalusewasapproximately$27.9million and$22.4million, respectively.
Interestexpenseincurredin connectionwith thedevelopmentof internalusesoftwareis capitalizedbasedontheamountsof accumulated
expendituresandthe weighted-averagecostof borrowingsfor the period.Interestcostscapitalizedfor fiscal 2011, 2010or 2009were
insignificant.

Goodwill: On an annualbasis,the Companytestsfor goodwill impairmentusinga two-stepprocess,unlessthereis a triggering
event,in which casea testwould be performedat the time that suchtriggeringeventoccurs.The first stepis to identify a potential
impairmentby comparingthefair valueof a reportingunit with its carryingamount.For all periodspresented,theCompany��sreporting
unitsareconsistentwith its operatingsegmentsof North America,Europe,Latin AmericaandAsia Pacific.Theestimatesof fair value
of a reportingunit aredeterminedusingtheincomeapproachbasedon a discountedcashflow analysis.A discountedcashflow analysis
requirestheCompanyto makevariousjudgmentalassumptions,includingassumptionsaboutfuturecashflows,growthratesanddiscount
rates.The assumptionsaboutfuture cashflows andgrowth ratesarebasedon management��sforecastof eachreportingunit. Discount
rate assumptionsare basedon an assessmentof the risk inherentin the future cashflows of the respectivereportingunits from the
perspectiveof marketparticipants.The Companyalso reviewsmarketmultiple information to corroboratethe fair valueconclusions
recordedthroughtheaforementionedincomeapproach.If steponeindicatesa carryingvalueabovetheestimatedfair value,thesecond
stepof thegoodwill impairmenttestis performedby comparingtheimplied fair valueof thereportingunit��sgoodwill with thecarrying
amountof thatgoodwill. Theimplied fair valueof goodwill is determinedin thesamemannerastheamountof goodwill recognizedin a
business combination.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

The Companyperformedits 2011 annualimpairmentanalysisduring the third quarterof 2011 andconcludedthat no impairment
existed. The Company expects the carrying amount of remaining goodwill to be fully recoverable.

Due to businessandeconomicconditionsthat existedin 2009,the Companyconcludedthat therewereimpairmentindicatorsfor
theNorth America,EuropeandAsia Pacific reportingunits that requiredaninterim impairmentanalysisbeperformedunderGenerally
Accepted Accounting Principles (��U.S. GAAP��) during the second fiscal quarter of that year.

In the first stepof the impairmentanalysis,theCompanyperformedvaluationanalysesutilizing the incomeapproachto determine
the fair valueof its reportingunits.The Companyalsoconsideredthe marketapproachasdescribedin U.S. GAAP. Underthe income
approach,theCompanydeterminedthefair valuebasedonestimatedfuturecashflows discountedby anestimatedweighted-averagecost
of capital,which reflectsthe overall level of inherentrisk of the reportingunit andthe rateof returnan outsideinvestorwould expect
to earn.The inputsusedfor the incomeapproachweresignificantunobservableinputs,or Level 3 inputs, in the fair valuehierarchy
describedin recentlyissuedaccountingguidanceonfair valuemeasurements.Estimatedfuturecashflows werebasedontheCompany��s
internalprojectionmodels,industryprojectionsandotherassumptionsdeemedreasonableby managementasthosethatwould bemade
by a marketparticipant.Basedon theresultsof theCompany��sassessmentin stepone,it wasdeterminedthat thecarryingvalueof the
Europe reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value while North America and Asia Pacific��s fair value exceeded the carrying value.

Therefore,theCompanyperformeda secondstepof theimpairmenttestto estimatetheimplied fair valueof goodwill in Europe.In
thesecondstepof theimpairmentanalysis,theCompanydeterminedtheimplied fair valueof goodwill for theEuropereportingunit by
allocatingthefair valueof thereportingunit to all of Europe��sassetsandliabilities,asif thereportingunit hadbeenacquiredin abusiness
combinationandthepricepaidto acquireit wasthefair value.Theanalysisindicatedthattherewouldbeanimpliedvalueattributableto
goodwill of $12.1million in theEuropereportingunit andaccordingly, in thesecondquarterof 2009,theCompanyrecordeda non-cash
impairment charge related to the write-off of the remaining goodwill of $100.0 million associated with its Europe reporting unit.

ConvertibleDebt:TheCompanyseparatelyaccountsfor theliability andequitycomponentsof convertibledebtinstrumentsthatmay
besettledin cashuponconversion(includingpartialcashsettlement).Theliability andequitycomponentsareaccountedfor in amanner
that reflectsan issuer��snonconvertibledebtborrowingrate.Thebifurcationof thecomponentof debt,classificationof thatcomponent
in equityandtheaccretionof theresultingdiscounton thedebtis recognizedaspartof interestexpensein theCompany��sConsolidated
Statementsof Operations.Theseprovisionsimpactthe accountingassociatedwith the Company��s$300million convertiblenotesdue
2013(��Notesdue2013��)andtheCompany��s3.25%zerocouponconvertiblenotesdue2033(��Notesdue2033��)which aredescribed
further in Note 5. ��Debt��. The Notes due 2033 were retired in the third quarter of 2011.

48

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

The following table providesadditional information aboutthe Company��sconvertibledebt instrumentsthat are subjectto these
accounting requirements:

December30,2011 December31,2010

Notesdue2013 Notesdue2013 Notesdue2033

($ and shares in millions, except conversion prices)

Carrying amount of the equity component $53.3 $53.3 $(45.7 )
Principal amount of the liability component $300.0 $300.0 $100.2
Unamortized discount of liability component(a) $(19.7 ) $(35.8 ) $(51.7 )
Net carrying amount of liability component $ 280.3 $ 264.2 $ 48.5
Remaining amortization period of discount(a) 14months (c ) (c )
Conversion price $59.78 (c ) (c )
Number of shares to be issued upon conversion 5.0 (c ) (c )
If-converted value exceeds principal amount(b) $�� (c ) (c )

(a) The Notesdue2013andNotesdue2033wereissuedin Februaryof 2007andJuly of 2003,respectively. The Notesdue2033
wereretiredin thethird quarterof 2011. Forconvertibledebtaccountingpurposes,theexpectedlife of theNotesdue2013andthe
Notes due 2033 were determined to be six years and four years
from the issuancedate,respectively. As such,the Companyis amortizingthe unamortizeddiscountthroughinterestexpense
through February of 2013 for the Notes due 2013.

(b) If-convertedvalueamountsarefor disclosurepurposesonly. The Notesdue2013areconvertiblewhenthe closingprice of the
Company��scommonstockfor at least20 tradingdaysin the 30 consecutivetradingdaysendingon the last tradingday of the
immediatelyprecedingfiscal quarteris morethan$77.71.Basedon the Company��sstockpricesduring the year, the Notesdue
2013 have not been convertible during 2011 and 2010.

(c) Data not required for comparative purposes.

The fair valueof the liability componentrelatedto the Notesdue2013wasinitially calculatedbasedon a discountrateof 7.1%,
representingtheCompany��snonconvertibledebtborrowingrateat issuancefor debtinstrumentswith similar termsandcharacteristics.
For accountingpurposes,the expectedlife for a similar instrumentwassix yearswhich wasusedto developthis nonconvertibledebt
borrowingrate.Interestcostrelatesto both thecontractualinterestcouponandamortizationof thediscounton the liability component.
Non-cashinterestcostrecognizedfor theNotesdue2013was$16.1million, $15.1million and$14.1million for fiscal years2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively. Cash interest cost recognized for the Notes due 2013 was $3.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

The fair valueof the liability componentrelatedto the Notesdue2033wasinitially calculatedbasedon a discountrateof 6.1%,
representingtheCompany��snonconvertibledebtborrowingrateat issuancefor debtinstrumentswith similar termsandcharacteristics.
For accountingpurposes,theexpectedlife for a similar instrumentwasfour yearswhich wasusedto developthis nonconvertibledebt
borrowingrate.Therefore,theamountof interestexpenseassociatedwith theinitial discountwasfully recognizedasof theendof 2007
(i.e., four yearsfrom issuanceof thesenotes).Interestcostrecognizedfor the Notesdue2033was$0.5million, $2.9million and$5.2
million for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, based on the zero-coupon rate of 3.25% associated with the Notes due 2033.

Intangible assets:Intangible assets,included in other assetson the consolidatedbalancesheets,primarily consistof customer
relationshipsthat arebeingamortizedover periodsrangingfrom 8 to 15 years.The Companycontinuallyevaluateswhethereventsor
circumstanceshaveoccurredthatwould indicatetheremainingestimatedusefullives of its intangibleassetswarrantrevisionor thatthe
remaining balance of such assets may not be
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

recoverable.The Companyusesan estimateof the relatedundiscountedcashflows over the remaininglife of the assetin measuring
whetherthe assetis recoverable.At December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,the Company��sgrosscarryingamountof intangible
assetssubject to amortizationwas $130.4 million and $130.6 million, respectively. Accumulatedamortizationwas $60.5 million
and $50.4million at December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, respectively. Intangibleamortizationexpenserelatedto all of the
Company��snet intangibleassetsof $69.9million at December30, 2011 is expectedto beapproximately$10.1million peryearfor the
next five years.

Foreign currency translation: The Company��sinvestmentsin severalsubsidiariesarerecordedin currenciesother thanthe U.S.
dollar. As theseforeigncurrencydenominatedinvestmentsaretranslatedat theendof eachperiodduringconsolidationusingperiod-end
exchangerates,fluctuationsof exchangeratesbetweenthe foreigncurrencyandtheU.S.dollar increaseor decreasethevalueof those
investments.Thesefluctuationsandtheresultsof operationsfor foreignsubsidiaries,wherethefunctionalcurrencyis not theU.S.dollar,
aretranslatedinto U.S.dollarsusingtheaverageexchangeratesduringtheyear, while theassetsandliabilities aretranslatedusingperiod-
end exchangerates.The assetsand liabilities-relatedtranslationadjustmentsare recordedas a separatecomponentof Stockholders��
Equity, ��Foreigncurrencytranslation,��which is a componentof accumulatedothercomprehensiveincome(loss). In addition,as the
Company��ssubsidiariesmaintaininvestmentsdenominatedin currenciesother than local currencies,exchangerate fluctuationswill
occur. Borrowings are raised in certain foreign currencies to minimize the exchange rate translation adjustment risk.

Severalof theCompany��ssubsidiariesconductbusinessin a currencyotherthanthelegalentity��sfunctionalcurrency. Transactions
may producereceivablesor payablesthat arefixed in termsof the amountof foreign currencythat will be receivedor paid.A change
in exchangeratesbetweenthe functionalcurrencyandthe currencyin which a transactionis denominatedincreasesor decreasesthe
expectedamountof functionalcurrencycashflows uponsettlementof the transaction.That increaseor decreasein expectedfunctional
currencycashflows is a foreign currencytransactiongain or loss that is includedin ��Other, net�� in the ConsolidatedStatementsof
Operations.TheCompanyrecognized$7.1million, $2.5million and$23.2million in netforeignexchangelossesin 2011,2010and2009,
respectively. See ��Other, net�� discussion herein for further information regarding these losses.

The Companypurchasesforeign currencyforward contractsto minimize the effect of fluctuating foreign currency-denominated
accountson its reportedincome.The foreign currencyforward contractsare not designatedas hedgesfor accountingpurposes.The
Company��sstrategyis to negotiatetermsfor its derivativesandotherfinancialinstrumentsto beperfectlyeffective,suchthatthechange
in the valueof the derivativeperfectlyoffsetsthe impactof the underlyinghedgeditem (e.g.,variousforeign currency-denominated
accounts).TheCompany��scounterpartiesto its foreigncurrencyforwardcontractshaveinvestment-gradecredit ratings.TheCompany
expectsthecreditworthinessof its counterpartiesto remainintactthroughthetermof thetransactions.TheCompanyregularlymonitors
the creditworthiness of its counterparties to ensure no issues exist which could affect the value of the derivatives.

TheCompanydoesnot hedge100%of its foreigncurrency-denominatedaccountsandresultsof thehedgingcanvary significantly
basedonvariousfactors,suchasthetiming of executingtheforeigncurrencyforwardcontractsversusthemovementof thecurrenciesas
well asthefluctuationsin theaccountbalancesthroughouteachreportingperiod.Thefair valueof theforeigncurrencyforwardcontracts
is basedonthedifferencebetweenthecontractrateandthecurrentexchangerate.Thefair valueof theforeigncurrencyforwardcontracts
is measuredusingobservablemarketinformation.TheseinputswouldbeconsideredLevel2 in thefair valuehierarchy. At December30,
2011 andDecember31,2010,foreigncurrencyforwardcontractswererevaluedat then-currentforeignexchangerates,with thechanges
in valuation reflected directly in ��Other, net�� in the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

ConsolidatedStatementsof Operationsoffsetting the transactiongain/loss recordedon the foreign currency-denominatedaccounts.
At December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, the notional amount of the foreign currency forward contractsoutstandingwas
approximately$161.3million and$223.0million, respectively. Thefair valueof theCompany��sforeigncurrencyforwardcontractswas
not significant at December30, 2011 or December31, 2010.

The following activity relatesto foreign exchangegainsand lossesreflectedin ��Other, net�� in the Company��sConsolidated
Statements of Operations (in millions):

Years Ended

Income (Loss)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Remeasurement of multicurrency balances $ (0.6 ) $ (1.7 ) $ (11.2 )
Revaluation of foreign currency forward contracts (4.0 ) 1.2 (8.1 )
Hedge costs (2.5 ) (2.0 ) (3.9 )

Total foreign exchange loss $ (7.1 ) $ (2.5 ) $ (23.2 )

Interestrateagreements:TheCompanyusesinterestrateswapsto reduceits exposureto fluctuationsin interestrates.Theobjective
of thecurrentlyoutstandinginterestrateswap(cashflow hedge)is to convertvariableinterestto fixed interestassociatedwith forecasted
interestpaymentsresultingfrom revolving borrowingsin the U.K. andaredesignatedashedginginstruments.The Companydoesnot
enterinto interestrateswapsfor speculativepurposes.Changesin thevalueof theinterestrateswapis expectedto behighly effectivein
offsettingthechangesattributableto fluctuationsin thevariablerates.TheCompany��scounterpartyto its interestrateswapcontracthas
aninvestment-gradecreditrating.TheCompanyexpectsthecreditworthinessof its counterpartyto remainintactthroughthetermof the
transaction.Whenenteredinto, the financial instrumentis designatedasa hedgeof underlyingexposures(interestpaymentsassociated
with the U.K. borrowings) attributable to changes in the respective benchmark interest rate.

As of December30,2011, theCompanyhadoneinterestrateswapagreementoutstandingwith anotionalamountof GBP15million.
The GBP swapagreementobligatesthe Companyto pay a fixed rate throughJuly 2012.The fair value of the Company��sinterest
rate swapis determinedby meansof a mathematicalmodel that calculatesthe presentvalue of the anticipatedcashflows from the
transactionusingmid-marketpricesandothereconomicdataandassumptions,or by meansof pricing indicationsfrom oneor more
otherdealersselectedat the discretionof the respectivebanks.Theseinputswould be consideredLevel 2 in the fair valuehierarchy
describedin recentlyissuedaccountingguidanceon fair valuemeasurements.At December30,2011, theinterestrateswapwasrevalued
at currentinterestrates,with thechangein valuationreflecteddirectly in ��AccumulatedOtherComprehensiveLoss��in theCompany��s
ConsolidatedBalanceSheets.Thefair marketvalueof this agreement,which is theestimatedexit pricethat theCompanywould payto
cancel the agreement, was not significant at December30, 2011.

Revenuerecognition: Salesto customers,resellersanddistributorsandrelatedcostof salesarerecognizedupontransferof title,
which generallyoccursupon shipmentof products,when the price is fixed and determinableand when collectability is reasonably
assured.Revenueis recordednetof salestaxes,customerdiscounts,rebatesandsimilar charges.TheCompanyalsoestablishesa reserve
for returnsandcreditsprovidedto customersin certaininstances.Thereserveis establishedbasedonananalysisof historicalexperience
and was $30.7 million and $29.1 million at December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, respectively.
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In connectionwith thesalesof its products,theCompanyoftenprovidescertainsupplychainservices.Theseservicesareprovided
exclusivelyin connectionwith the salesof products,andassuch,the price of suchservicesare includedin the price of the products
deliveredto thecustomer. TheCompanydoesnotaccountfor theseservicesasaseparateelement,astheservicesdonothavestand-alone
valueandcannotbeseparatedfrom theproductelementof thearrangement.Therearenosignificantpost-deliveryobligationsassociated
with these services.

In thosecaseswherethe Companydoesnot havegoodsin stock and delivery times are critical, product is purchasedfrom the
manufactureranddrop-shippedto thecustomer. TheCompanygenerallytakestitle to thegoodswhenshippedby themanufacturerand
then bills the customer for the product upon transfer of the title to the customer.

Salestaxes:Salestax amountscollectedfrom customersfor remittanceto governmentalauthoritiesarepresentedon a netbasisin
the Company��s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Advertisingand salespromotion: Advertisingandsalespromotioncostsareexpensedasincurred.Advertisingandpromotioncosts
includedin operatingexpenseson the ConsolidatedStatementsof Operationswere $12.1million, $10.0million and $9.9 million in
2011, 2010and2009,respectively. Themajority of theCompany��sadvertisingandsalespromotioncostsarerecoupedthroughvarious
cooperative advertising programs with vendors.

Shippingand handling feesand costs:TheCompanyincludesshippingandhandlingfeesbilled to customersin netsales.Shipping
andhandlingcostsassociatedwith outboundfreight areincludedin operatingexpenseson the ConsolidatedStatementsof Operations,
which were $108.4 million, $94.6 million and $84.8 million for the years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Stock-basedcompensation:In accordancewith U.S.accountingrules,theCompanymeasuresthecostof all employeeshare-based
paymentsto employees,includinggrantsof employeestockoptions,usinga fair-value-basedmethod.Compensationcostsfor theplans
havebeendeterminedbasedon thefair valueat thegrantdateusingtheBlack-Scholesoptionpricingmodelandamortizedonastraight-
line basis over the respective vesting period representing the requisite service period.

Other, net: The following representsthe componentsof ��Other, net�� asreflectedin the Company��sConsolidatedStatementsof
Operations for the fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years Ended

(In millions)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Other, net loss:
Foreign exchange $ (7.1 ) $ (2.5 ) $ (23.2 )
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies (0.9 ) 3.0 3.4
Settlement of interest rate swaps �� �� (2.1 )
Other (1.2 ) (2.0 ) 2.7

$ (9.2 ) $ (1.5 ) $ (19.2 )

Dueto thesharpincreaseof theU.S.dollar in 2011 againstcertainforeigncurrencies,primarily in theEmergingMarketswherethere
are few cost-effective means of hedging, the Company recorded a foreign
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exchangelossof $7.1million in 2011. In 2010,the Companyrecognizeda foreign exchangegain of $2.1million associatedwith the
remeasurementof Venezuela��sbolivar-denominatedmonetaryassetson the Venezuelanbalancesheetat the parallel exchangerate.
The Companyalsorecordeda foreign exchangelossof $13.8million in 2009dueto the repatriationof cashfrom Venezuelaandthe
remeasurementof monetaryitemson theVenezuelanbalancesheetat theparallelexchangerate.TheCompanyrecordedotherforeign
exchangelossesof $4.6 million and $9.4 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Further, the combinedeffect of declinesin both
the equity andbondmarketsresultedin a $0.9 million declinein the cashsurrendervalueof Companyownedlife insurancepolicies
associatedwith the Companysponsoreddeferredcompensationprogramin 2011. This comparesto a $3.0 million and $3.4 million
increasein thecashsurrendervalueof life insurancepoliciesin 2010and2009,respectively. In 2009,theCompanyrecordeda lossof
$2.1million associatedwith thecancellationof interestratehedgingcontractsresultingfrom therepaymentof therelatedborrowings.In
2009, the Company also recorded other income of $3.4 million related to the expiration of liabilities associated with a prior asset sale.

Income taxes:Deferredtaxesarerecognizedfor the future tax effectsof temporarydifferencesbetweenfinancial andincometax
reportingbaseduponenactedtax lawsandrates.TheCompanymaintainsvaluationallowancesto reducedeferredtax assetsif it is more
likely thannot thatsomeportionor all of thedeferredtaxassetwill notberealized.TheCompanyrecognizesthebenefitof taxpositions
whena benefitis morelikely thannot (i.e., greaterthan50%likely) to besustainedon its technicalmerits.Recognizedtax benefitsare
measuredat the largestamountthat is morelikely thannot to be sustained,basedon cumulativeprobability, in final settlementof the
position.

Net income(loss)per share:Diluted netincome(loss)persharereflectsthepotentialdilution thatwould occurif securitiesor other
contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock.

In 2011 and2010,0.4million and0.5million additionalshares,respectively, relatedto stockoptionsandstockunitswereincluded
in thecomputationof dilutedearningspersharebecausetheeffectof thosecommonstockequivalentsweredilutive duringtheseperiods.
The Companyexcludesantidilutive stock optionsandunits from the calculationof weighted-averagesharesfor diluted earningsper
share.The Companyexcluded0.4million, 0.4million, and0.5million antidilutive stockoptionsandunits for 2011, 2010and2009,
respectively.

Due to the Company��sobligation to settle the outstandingpar value of the Notesdue 2013 and Notesdue 2033 in cashupon
conversion,the Companyis not requiredto includeany sharesunderlyingthe convertiblenotesin its diluted weightedaverageshares
outstandinguntil theaveragestockpricepersharefor theperiodexceedstheconversionpriceof therespectiveinstruments.Althoughthe
Notesdue2033wereretiredduring2011, theyweredilutive duringtheperiodaswell asthecorrespondingperiodin 2010.At suchtime
thattheaveragestockpricepersharefor theperiodexceedstheconversionpriceof theconvertiblenotes,only thenumberof sharesthat
would bepotentiallyissuable(underthetreasurystockmethodof accountingfor sharedilution) would beincludedin thedilutive share
calculation, which is based upon the amount by which the average stock price exceeds the conversion price.

As a resultof the conversionvalueexceedingthe averageaccretedprincipal valueduring 2011 and2010,the Companyincluded
0.2million and0.9million additionalshares,respectively, relatedto theNotesdue2033in thedilutedweighted-averagecommonshares
outstanding.TheCompany��saveragestockpricefor 2009did not exceedtheaverageaccretedprincipalvalueand,therefore,theNotes
due 2033 were antidilutive for this period.

As a resultof theCompany��saveragestockpriceexceedingtheconversionpriceduring2011, 0.3million additionalsharesrelated
to theNotesdue2013wereincludedin thedilutedweighted-averagecommonsharesoutstanding.TheCompany��saveragestockprice
for 2010 and 2009 did not exceed the conversion price and, therefore, the Notes due 2013 were antidilutive for these periods.
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Recentlyissuedaccountingpronouncementsnot yetadopted:In May 2011, theFinancialAccountingStandardsBoard(��FASB��)
issuedguidanceto amendthe requirementsrelatedto fair value measurementwhich changesthe wording usedto describemany
requirementsin GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciples(��GAAP��) for measuringfair valueandfor disclosinginformationaboutfair
valuemeasurements.Additionally, theamendmentsclarify theFASB��s intentabouttheapplicationof existingfair valuemeasurement
requirements.The amendedguidanceis effective for interim and annualperiodsbeginningafter December15, 2011, and is applied
prospectively. Adoption of this guidanceat the beginningof fiscal 2012is not expectedto havea materialimpacton the Company��s
consolidated financial statements.

In June2011, the FASB issuedan updateto AccountingStandardsCodification(��ASC��) No. 220,Presentationof Comprehensive
Income, which eliminatesthe option to presentother comprehensiveincomeand its componentsin the statementof stockholders��
equity. TheCompanycanelectto presentthe itemsof net incomeandothercomprehensiveincomein a singlecontinuousstatementof
comprehensiveincomeor in two separate,but consecutivestatements.Undereithermethod,the statementwould needto be presented
with equalprominenceas the other primary financial statements.The amendedguidance,which must be appliedretrospectively, is
effective for fiscal years,andinterim periodswithin thoseyears,beginningafter December15, 2011, with earlieradoptionpermitted.
In December2011, theFASB deferredtherequirementsrelatedto reclassificationadjustmentsout of accumulatedothercomprehensive
income.

In September2011, theFASB issuedAccountingStandardUpdate(��ASU��) 2011-08,Intangibles- Goodwill andOther(Topic350):
TestingGoodwill for Impairment,which givescompaniestheoptionto performa qualitativeassessmentto determinewhetherit is more
likely thannot thatthefair valueof a reportingunit is lessthanits carryingamountand,in somecases,skip thetwo-stepimpairmenttest.
The ASU is effective for annualandinterim goodwill impairmenttestsperformedfor fiscal yearsbeginningafter December15, 2011
with earlyadoptionpermitted.Adoptionof this guidanceat thebeginningof fiscal 2012is not expectedto havea materialimpacton the
Company��s consolidated financial statements.

In December2011, the FASB issuedguidanceto amendthe requirementsrelatedto balancesheetoffsetting.Theseamendments
would require the Companyto discloseinformation about rights of offset and relatedarrangementsto enableusersof its financial
statementsto understandthe effect or potential effect of those arrangementson its financial position. The amendedguidanceis
effective for fiscal years,andinterim periodswithin thoseyears,beginningon or afterJanuary1, 2013with requireddisclosuresmade
retrospectivelyfor all comparativeperiodspresented.Adoptionof this guidanceat thebeginningof fiscal 2014is not expectedto havea
material impact on the Company��s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

(In millions)

Salaries and fringe benefits $ 102.5 $ 92.5
Other accrued expenses 214.9 123.0

Total accrued expenses $317.4 $215.5

Accruedexpensesincreasedto $317.4million at theendof fiscal 2011 from $215.5million at theendof fiscal 2010primarily due
to anincreasein incometaxespayableandhighervariablecosts,includingemployeeincentives,dueto thegrowthin salesduringfiscal
2011.
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NOTE 3. RESTRUCTURING CHARGE

In order to improve the profitability of the Company��sEuropeansegment,managementapproveda facility consolidationand
headcountreductionplanduringthefirst quarterof 2011 thatwill eliminatea numberof Europeanfacilities andreduceoperatingcosts.
As a result, the Companyrecordeda pre-taxcharge of $5.3 million which is includedin ��OperatingExpenses��in the Company��s
ConsolidatedStatementof Operationsfor thefiscal yearendedDecember30,2011. Thechargeincludescertainexit costsandemployee
severancechargeswhichareexpectedto befully paidby theendof fiscal2013.Additionalcostsof approximately$0.8million relatedto
moving expenses are expected to be recorded when incurred.

In 2009, the Companyundertookexpensereductionactionsthat resultedin $5.7 million of severancecostsprimarily relatedto
staffing reductionsneededto re-aligntheCompany��sbusinessin responseto currentmarketconditions.Themajorityof thesecostswere
incurredin North Americawhile thebalanceof theexpenseswasprimarily incurredin Europe.The2009obligationsfor theseexpense
reduction actions were fully paid by the end of 2010.

NOTE 4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

DiscontinuedOperations:In Augustof 2011, the Company��sboardof directorsapprovedthe saleof the Company��sAerospace
Hardwarebusiness(��Aerospace��)andthe transactionclosedon August26, 2011. Although the Company��shistoricalperformancein
Aerospacehasbeenstrong,customerandsupplierconsolidationhasresultedin abusinessmodeldistinctlydifferentthantheCompany��s
overall strategy. The transactionwill enablethe Companyto focus its attentionand resourceson its core operationsand strategic
initiatives.Beginningin thethird quarterof 2011, theCompanybeganto recordtheresultsof thisbusinessas��DiscontinuedOperations��
andall prior periodshavebeenrevisedto reflect this classification.North AmericaandEuropesegmentinformationwhich is presented
in Note 10. ��Business Segments�� has also been revised from the prior year presentation to reflect the discontinued operations.

The salesprice of $155.0million resultedin net proceedsof $143.6million after adjustingfor working capital adjustmentsand
amountspaid by the Companyfor legal andadvisoryfees.The Companyreporteda net lossfrom discontinuedoperationsin 2011 of
$12.5 million, which included a net loss on the sale of $21.0 million primarily due to the write off of goodwill of $19.0 million.

An additional$30.0million will bepaid to theCompanyif certainfinancial targetsareachievedon or beforeDecember31, 2013.
Thecontingentpaymentof $30.0million wasnot recorded,nor wasit includedin thecalculationof thelosson thesaleof Aerospaceas
it is theCompany��spolicy to recognizecontingentreceivablesin connectionwith a divestitureon thedatethecontingentreceivableis
realized.

The following representsthecomponentsof the resultsfrom DiscontinuedOperationsasreflectedin theCompany��sConsolidated
Statement of Operations (in millions):

Years Ended

December30,

2011(a)

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Net sales $ 123.2 $ 197.6 $ 202.8
Operating income (loss) 13.4 (1.0 ) 18.6
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before tax (9.3 ) (0.9 ) 18.8
Income tax expense 3.2 0.1 6.7
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax (12.5 ) (1.0 ) 12.1
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(a) Includestheresultsthroughthedateof thedivestitureon August26,2011, includingthepre-taxlosson saleof businessof $22.6
million ($21.0 million, net of tax).

As reflectedon theCompany��sConsolidatedBalanceSheetasof December31, 2010,theCompanyhasreclassifiedtheassetsand
liabilities of Aerospace to discontinued operations as follows (in millions):

December31,

2010

Assets of discontinued operations:
Accounts receivable $ 29.4
Inventories 132.4
Goodwill 19.0
Other assets(a) 6.0

Total assets of discontinued operations $186.8

Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable $9.4
Accrued expenses(a) 3.4
Other liabilities 1.8

Total liabilities of discontinued operations $14.6

(a) Certainassetsandliabilities, primarily relatedto a legal accrual,werenot reclassifiedto discontinuedoperationsasthey were
retained by the Company. See Note 6. ��Commitments and Contingencies�� for further information.

NOTE 5. DEBT

Debt is summarized below:

(In millions)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Long-term debt:
Convertible senior notes due 2013 $ 280.3 $ 264.2
Senior notes due 2015 200.0 200.0
Accounts receivable securitization facility 175.0 ��
Revolving lines of credit and other 120.4 145.4
Senior notes due 2014 31.1 30.6
Convertible notes due 2033 �� 48.5

Total long-term debt 806.8 688.7
Short-term debt 3.0 203.4

Total debt $809.8 $892.1

Certaindebtagreementsenteredinto by theCompany��soperatingsubsidiariescontainvariousrestrictions,includingrestrictionson
paymentsto theCompany. Theserestrictionshavenothad,norareexpectedto have,anadverseimpactontheCompany��sability to meet
its cash obligations. The Company has guaranteed substantially all of the debt of its subsidiaries.
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Aggregateannualmaturitiesof debtat December30, 2011 wereas follows: 2012 �� $3.0 million; 2013 �� $455.8million; 2014 ��
$31.1million; 2015 �� $200.0million and 2016 �� $119.9 million. The estimatedfair value of the Company��sdebt at December30,
2011 and December31, 2010 was $881.6million and $1,021.6million, respectively, basedon public quotationsand currentmarket
rates.Interestpaid in 2011, 2010and2009was$31.6million, $36.4million and$37.2million, respectively. The Company��saverage
borrowingsoutstandingwere$988.0million and$845.0million for thefiscal yearsendingDecember30,2011 andDecember31,2010,
respectively. The Company��sweighted-averagecostof borrowingswas5.1%,6.3%and6.7%for the yearsendedDecember30, 2011
and December31, 2010 and January1, 2010, respectively.

Retirement of Debt

During 2011, the Companyretired its Notesdue2033asa resultof repurchasesandbondholderconversions.The Companypaid
approximately$93.8 million in cashand $14.9 million was settledin stock. Available borrowingsunder the Company��slong-term
revolving credit facility wereusedto retire thesenotes.In connectionwith the retirementof debt,the Companyreducedthe accreted
value of debt by $48.9 million and recorded a gross reduction to stockholders�� equity of $44.9 million.

During 2010,theCompany��sprimaryoperatingsubsidiary, Anixter Inc., retired$133.7million of accretedvalueof its 10%Senior
Notesdue 2014 (��Notesdue 2014��) for $165.5million. Available cashand other borrowingswere usedto retire thesenotes.The
Companyalsoretired$67.0million of accretedvalueof its Notesdue2033for $119.6million. Long-termrevolvingcreditborrowings
wereusedto repurchasethesenotes.In connectionwith theserepurchases,theCompanyreducedtheaccretedvalueof debtby $200.7
million and recorded a gross reduction to stockholders�� equity of $54.0 million.

During 2009,Anixter Inc. retired$23.6million of accretedvalueof its Notesdue2014for $27.7million ($1.2million of which was
accruedat year-end2009).Availablecashwasusedto retirethesenotes.TheCompanyalsoretired$60.1million of accretedvalueof its
Notesdue2033for $90.8million. Long-termrevolvingcreditborrowingswereusedto repurchasethesenotes.In connectionwith these
repurchases,theCompanyreducedtheaccretedvalueof debtby $83.7million andrecordeda grossreductionto stockholders��equityof
$34.3 million.

Theretirementof debtin 2011 did nothaveasignificantimpactontheCompany��sConsolidatedStatementof Operations.As aresult
of the retirement of debt in 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $31.9 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

Revolving Lines of Credit

At theendof fiscal 2011, theCompanyhadapproximately$313.0million in available,committed,unusedcredit lineswith financial
institutionsthat haveinvestment-gradecredit ratings.As such,the Companyexpectsto haveaccessto this availability basedon its
assessmentof theviability of theassociatedfinancial institutionswhich areparty to theseagreements.Long-termborrowingsunderthe
committed credit facilities totaled $120.4 million and $145.4 million at December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, respectively.

In thesecondquarterof 2011, Anixter Inc. refinancedits seniorunsecuredrevolvingcreditfacility. At December30,2011, long-term
borrowingsunderthisagreement,whichis guaranteedby theCompany, were$111.0million ascomparedto $131.1million of outstanding
long-term borrowings at the end of fiscal 2010. The following are the key terms to the revolving credit agreement:

�� The size of the credit facility is $400 million (or the equivalent in Euros) and matures in April 2016.
�� Thepricing grid is a leverage-basedpricing grid. Basedon Anixter Inc.��scurrentleverageratio, theapplicablemargin is Libor plus

200 basis points.

57

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

�� As of theendof 2011, theconsolidatedfixed chargecoverageratio(asdefinedin therevolvingcreditagreement)requiresaminimum
coverage 2.50 times. As of December30, 2011, the consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio was 4.51.

�� Theconsolidatedleverageratio (asdefinedin the revolvingcreditagreement)limits themaximumleverageallowedto 3.25.As of
December30, 2011, the consolidated leverage ratio was 1.35.

�� Anixter Inc. will bepermittedto directfundsto theCompanyfor paymentof dividendsandsharerepurchasesto amaximumof $175
million plus50 percentof Anixter Inc.��scumulativenet incomefrom theeffectivedateof thenewagreement.As of December30,
2011, Anixter Inc. has the ability to distribute $152.7 million of funds to the Company.

�� Anixter Inc. will beallowedto prepay, purchaseor redeemindebtednessof theCompany, providedthat its proformaleverageratio
(asdefinedin the agreement)is lessthanor equalto 2.75 to 1.00andthat its unrestricteddomesticcashbalanceplus availability
under the revolving credit agreement and the accounts receivable securitization facility is equal to or greater than $175 million.

TheCompanyis in compliancewith all of thecovenantratiosandbelievesthatthereis adequatemargin betweenthecovenantratios
andthe actualratiosgiven the currenttrendsof the business.As of December30, 2011, the total availability of all revolving lines of
credit at Anixter Inc. would be permitted to be borrowed.

Excluding the primary revolving credit facility at December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,certainsubsidiarieshad long-term
borrowingsunderotherbankrevolvinglinesof creditandmiscellaneousfacilities of $9.4million and$14.3million, respectively, which
mature beyond twelve months of the Company��s fiscal year end December30, 2011.

Senior Notes Due 2014

In March 2009,the Company��sprimary operatingsubsidiary, Anixter Inc., issued$200million in principal of its Notesdue2014
whichwerepricedatadiscountto parthatresultedin ayield to maturityof 12%.TheNotesdue2014payinterestsemiannuallyata rate
of 10%perannumandmatureon March15,2014.In addition,beforeMarch15,2012,Anixter Inc. mayredeemup to 35%of theNotes
due2014at theredemptionpriceof 110%of their principalamountplusaccruedinterest,usingthenetcashproceedsfrom public sales
of theCompany��sstock.Netproceedsfrom thisofferingwereapproximately$180.4million afterdeductingdiscounts,commissionsand
expensesof $4.8million which arebeingamortizedthroughMarch2014.At December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,theNotesdue
2014outstandingwere$31.1million and$30.6million, respectively. TheCompanyfully andunconditionallyguaranteestheNotesdue
2014, which are unsecured obligations of Anixter Inc.

Convertible Debt

Convertible Senior Notes Due 2013

In February2007,theCompanycompletedaprivateplacementof $300.0million principalamountof Notesdue2013.In May 2007,
theCompanyregisteredtheNotesdue2013andsharesof theCompany��scommonstockissuableuponconversionof theNotesdue2013
for resale by certain selling security holders. The Notes due 2013 are structurally subordinated to the indebtedness of Anixter.

The Notesdue2013pay interestsemiannuallyat a rateof 1.00%per annum.The Notesdue2013areconvertible,at the holders��
option,at a conversionrateof 16.727sharesper $1,000principal amountof Notesdue2013(for an aggregateof 5.0million shares),
equivalent to a conversion price of $59.78 per share. The Company has sufficient authorized shares to settle such conversion.
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In periodsduringwhich theNotesdue2013areconvertible,anyconversionwill besettledin cashup to theprincipalamount,and
anyexcessconversionvaluewill bedelivered,at theCompany��selectionin cash,commonstockor a combinationof cashandcommon
stock. Based on the Company��s stock price at the end of fiscal 2011, the Notes due 2013 are not currently convertible.

In connectionwith the issuanceof the Notesdue2013,the Companypurchaseda call option that covers5.0million sharesof its
commonstock,subjectto customaryanti-dilutionadjustments.Thepurchasedcall optioncurrentlyhasanexercisepriceof $59.78per
share.

Concurrentlywith purchasingthecall option,theCompanysoldto thecounterpartyawarrantto purchasesharesof its commonstock,
subjectto customaryanti-dilutionadjustments.Thesoldwarrantcurrentlyhasanexercisepriceof $77.98andmaynotbeexercisedprior
to the maturity of the notes. The shares related to the warrant are 5.0million shares.

Holdersof theNotesdue2013mayconvertthemprior to thecloseof businesson thebusinessdaybeforethematuritydatebasedon
the applicable conversion rate only under the following circumstances:

Conversion Based on Common Stock Price

Holdersmay convertduring any fiscal quarterandonly during any fiscal quarter, if the closingprice of the Company��scommon
stockfor at least20 tradingdaysin the30 consecutivetradingdaysendingon the last tradingdayof the immediatelyprecedingfiscal
quarteris morethan130%of theconversionpricepershare,or $77.71.Theconversionpricepershareis equalto $1,000dividedby the
then applicable conversion rate (currently 16.727 shares per $1,000 principal amount).

Conversion Based on Trading Price of Notes

Holdersmayconvertduringthefive businessdayperiodafteranyperiodof five consecutivetradingdaysin which thetradingprice
per$1,000principalamountof Notesdue2013for eachtradingdayof thatperiodwaslessthan98%of theproductof theclosingprice
of the Company��s common stock for each trading day of that period and the then applicable conversion rate.

Conversion Upon Certain Distributions

If the Company elects to:

�� distribute,to all holdersof theCompany��scommonstock,anyrightsentitlingthemto purchase,for aperiodexpiringwithin
45 daysof distribution,commonstock,or securitiesconvertibleinto commonstock,at lessthan,or havinga conversion
price per share less than, the closing price of the Company��s common stock; or

�� distribute,to all holdersof theCompany��scommonstock,assets,cash,debtsecuritiesor rightsto purchasetheCompany��s
securities, which distribution has a per share value exceeding 15% of the closing price of such common stock,

holdersmaysurrendertheir Notesdue2013for conversionat anytime until theearlierof thecloseof businesson thebusinessdayprior
to the ex-dividend date or the Company��s announcement that such distribution will not take place.
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Conversion Upon a Fundamental Change

Holdersmay surrenderNotesdue 2013 for conversionat any time beginning15 daysbeforethe anticipatedeffective dateof a
fundamentalchangeanduntil theCompanymakesanyrequiredpurchaseof theNotesdue2013asa resultof thefundamentalchange.A
��fundamentalchange��meanstheoccurrenceof achangeof controlor a terminationof tradingof theCompany��scommonstock.Certain
change of control events may give rise to a make whole premium.

Conversion at Maturity

Holdersmay surrendertheir Notesdue2013for conversionat any time beginningon January15, 2013andendingat the closeof
business on the business day immediately preceding the maturity date.

The ��conversionrate�� is 16.727sharesof the Company��scommonstock,subjectto certaincustomaryanti-dilution adjustments.
These adjustments consist of adjustments for:

�� stock dividends and distributions, share splits and share combinations,
�� the issuanceof any rights to all holdersof theCompany��scommonstockto purchasesharesof suchstockat an issuance

price of less than the closing price of such stock, exercisable within 45 days of issuance,
�� the distribution of stock,debt or other assets,to all holdersof the Company��scommonstock,other than distributions

covered above, and
�� issuer tender offers at a premium to the closing price of the Company��s common stock.

The ��conversionvalue��of theNotesdue2013meanstheaverageof thedaily conversionvalues,asdefinedbelow, for eachof the
20consecutivetradingdaysof theconversionreferenceperiod.The��daily conversionvalue��means,with respectto anytradingday, the
productof (1) theapplicableconversionrateand(2) thevolumeweighted-averagepricepershareof theCompany��scommonstockon
such trading day.

The ��conversion reference period�� means:

�� for Notesdue2013thatareconvertedduring theonemonthperiodprior to maturitydateof thenotes,the20 consecutive
trading days preceding and ending on the maturity date, subject to any extension due to a market disruption event, and

�� in all other instances, the 20 consecutive trading days beginning on the third trading day following the conversion date.

The��conversiondate��with respectto theNotesdue2013meansthedateon which theholderof theNotesdue2013hascomplied
with all the requirements under the indenture to convert such Notes due 2013.

Convertible Notes Due 2033

The Companyretired its Notesdue2033 in 2011. At the endof 2010,the Notesdue2033hadan aggregateprincipal amountat
maturityof $100.2million anda bookvalueof $48.5million. AlthoughtheNotesdue2033wereconvertibleat theendof 2010andthe
holderscouldhaverequiredtheCompanyto purchasetheir noteson July7, 2011, theywereclassifiedaslong-termastheCompanyhad
the intent and ability to refinance the accreted value under existing long-term financing agreements.
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Senior Notes Due 2015

Anixter Inc. alsohasthe $200.0million 5.95%SeniorNotesdue2015(��Notesdue2015��),which are fully andunconditionally
guaranteedby theCompany. Interestof 5.95%ontheNotesdue2015is payablesemi-annuallyonMarch1 andSeptember1 of eachyear.

Other Borr owings

As of December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,theCompany��sshort-termdebtoutstandingwas$3.0million and$203.4million,
respectively. At December31, 2010,short-termdebtconsistedprimarily of the funding relatedto theAnixter ReceivablesCorporation
(��ARC��) facility which wasamendedin the secondquarterof 2011 by the Anixter Inc. The following key changesweremadeto the
program:

�� The size of the program increased from $200 million to $275 million.
�� The liquidity termination date of the program will be May 2013 (formerly the termination date was during July 2011).
�� Therenewedprogramcarriesanall-in drawnfundingcostof CommercialPaper(��CP��)plus90basispoints(previouslyCP

plus 115 basis points).
�� Unusedcapacityfeesdecreasedfrom a rangeof 57.5 to 60 basispointsto a rangeof 45 to 55 basispointsdependingon

utilization.

All othermaterialtermsandconditionsremainunchanged.As a resultof thechangein maturity, the$175.0million outstandingat
December30,2011 is classifiedaslong-termon theCompany��sConsolidatedBalanceSheetatDecember30,2011 (formerlyshort-term
debt as of December31, 2010).

UnderAnixter��s accountsreceivablesecuritizationprogram,the Companysells,on an ongoingbasiswithout recourse,a majority
of the accountsreceivableoriginating in the United Statesto ARC, which is considereda wholly-owned,bankruptcy-remotevariable
interestentity (��VIE��). TheCompanyhastheauthorityto directtheactivitiesof theVIE and,asaresult,theCompanyhasconcludedthat
it maintainscontrolof theVIE andis theprimarybeneficiaryasdefinedby accountingguidanceand,therefore,consolidatestheaccount
balancesof ARC. As of December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,$524.6million and$407.8million of theCompany��sreceivables
weresold to ARC, respectively. ARC in turn sellsan interestin thesereceivablesto a financial institution for proceedsup to $275.0
million. Theassetsof ARC arenotavailableto Anixter until all obligationsof ARC aresatisfiedin theeventof bankruptcyor insolvency
proceedings.

Fair Value of Debt

The fair valueof the Company��sdebt instrumentsis measuredusingobservablemarketinformationwhich would be considered
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy described in accounting guidance on fair value measurements.

The Company��s fixed-rate debt primarily consists of nonconvertible and convertible debt as follows:

�� Nonconvertible fixed-rate debt consisting of the Notes due 2015 and Notes due 2014.
�� Convertible fixed-rate debt.

At December30, 2011, the Company��scarryingvalueof its fixed-ratedebtwas$511.4 million ascomparedto $543.3million at
December31, 2010.The estimatedfair marketvalueof the Company��sfixed-ratedebtat December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010
was$583.2million and$672.8million, respectively. Thedeclinein thecarryingvalueandestimatedfair marketvalueis primarily dueto
theretirementof theNotesdue2033during2011. As of December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,theCompany��scarryingvalueof
its variable-rate debt was $298.4 million and $348.8 million, respectively, which approximates the estimated fair market value.
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NOTE 6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Substantiallyall of theCompany��soffice andwarehousefacilitiesandequipmentareleasedunderoperatingleases.A certainnumber
of theseleasesarelong-termoperatingleasescontainingrentescalationclausesandexpireatvariousdatesthrough2027.Mostoperating
leases entered into by the Company contain renewal options.

Minimum lease commitments under operating leases at December30, 2011 are as follows (in millions):

2012 $ 61.8
2013 49.0
2014 39.6
2015 28.5
2016 20.4
2017 and thereafter 43.7

Total $243.0

Total rental expensewas $82.1million, $76.4million and $78.2million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Aggregatefuture
minimum rentals to be received under non-cancelable subleases at December30, 2011 were $1.7 million.

In April 2008, the Companyvoluntarily disclosedto the U.S. Departmentsof Treasuryand Commercethat one of its foreign
subsidiariesmay haveviolatedU.S. export control laws and regulationsin connectionwith re-exportsof goodsto prohibitedparties
or destinationsincluding Cubaand Syria, countriesidentified by the StateDepartmentas statesponsorsof terrorism.The Company
performeda thoroughreviewof its exportandre-exporttransactionsanddid not identify anyotherpotentiallysignificantviolations.The
Companydeterminedandtook appropriatecorrectiveactions.TheCompanysubmittedtheresultsof its reviewandits correctiveaction
planto theapplicableU.S.governmentagencies.OnNovember1, 2011, theCompanyreceivedawarningletterfrom theU.S.Commerce
Departmentandon December20, 2011, theCompanyreceiveda cautionaryletter from theU.S.TreasuryDepartmentstatingthateach
department was officially closing the matter without fines, penalties or other consequences to the Company.

In May 2009, RaytheonCo. filed for arbitration againstone of the Company��ssubsidiaries,Anixter Inc., alleging that it had
suppliednon-conformingpartsto Raytheon.Raytheonsoughtdamagesof approximately$26million. Thearbitrationhearingconcluded
in October2010andthearbitrationpanelrenderedits decisionat theendof 2010.Thearbitrationpanelenteredaninterim awardagainst
theCompanyin theamountof $20.8million. In April 2011, thearbitrationpanelentereda final awardthat reiteratedthe$20.8million
liability andaddedadditionalliability of $1.5million in favor of Raytheonfor certainof its attorneys��feesandcostsin thearbitration
proceeding.In thefourthquarterof 2010,theCompanyrecordedapre-taxchargeof $20.0million whichapproximatestheexpectedcost
of theawardafterconsiderationof insuranceproceeds,fees,costsandintereston theawardat 10%perannumuntil paid.As a resultof
theCompany��ssaleof its Aerospacebusinessin thethird quarterof 2011 thechargerelatedto thismatterwasreclassifiedto discontinued
operationsin theCompany��sConsolidatedStatementof Operationsfor theyearendedDecember31,2010.Assetsandliabilities related
to theRaytheonmatterwereretainedby theCompanyandwerenotreclassifiedto assetsandliabilities of discontinuedoperations.In June
2011, theCompanyfiled amotionto vacatethearbitrationawardin theSuperiorCourtof MaricopaCounty, Arizona.In November2011,
the court deniedthe Company��smotion andconfirmedthe arbitrationawardin full. During the fourth quarterof 2011, the Company
recorded an additional $2.5 million
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in discontinuedoperationsto coverexpectedinterestassociatedwith furtherappealproceedings.In February2012,theCompanyfiled a
noticeof appeal,appealingthe judgmentconfirming thearbitrationawardto theArizonaCourtof Appeals.SeeNote13. ��Subsequent
Event�� for further information.

In September2009,theGardenCity Employees��RetirementSystemfiled apurportedclassactionunderthefederalsecuritieslawsin
theUnitedStatesDistrict Court for theNorthernDistrict of Illinois againsttheCompany, its currentandformerchief executiveofficers
and its former chief financial officer. In November2009, the Court enteredan order appointingthe IndianaLaborersPensionFund
asleadplaintiff andappointingleadplaintiff��s counsel.In January2010,the leadplaintiff filed an amendedcomplaint.The amended
complaint principally allegesthat the Companymademisleadingstatementsduring 2008 regardingcertain aspectsof its financial
performanceandoutlook.Theamendedcomplaintseeksunspecifieddamageson behalfof personswho purchasedthecommonstockof
theCompanybetweenJanuary29andOctober20,2008.In March2011, theCourtdismissedthecomplaintbutallowedtheleadplaintiff
theopportunityto re-pleadits complaint.Theplaintiff did soin April 2011. TheCompanyandtheotherdefendantsintendto continueto
defendthemselvesvigorouslyagainsttheallegations.Basedon factsknown to managementat this time, theCompanycannotestimate
the amount of loss, if any, and, therefore, has not made any accrual for this matter in these financial statements.

In October2009, the Companydisclosedto the U.S. Governmentthat it may have violated laws and regulationsrestricting
entertainmentof governmentemployees.The InspectorGeneralof the relevantfederalagencyis investigatingthe disclosureand the
Companyis cooperatingin the investigation.Civil andor criminal penaltiescouldbeassessedagainsttheCompanyin connectionwith
any violationsthat aredeterminedto haveoccurred.In January2012,the Companywasinformedby the Departmentof Justice,Civil
Division, that it is investigatingthis matterandthat a qui tam actionhasbeenfiled underthe FalseClaimsAct, which remainsunder
sealpursuantto statute.TheDepartmentof Justicehasreceivedanorderpartially lifting thesealto permitthegovernmentto discussthe
matterwith theCompany;however, thegovernmenthasinstructedAnixter that it mustmaintaintheconfidentialityof thematter. Based
on factsknown to managementat this time, theCompanycannotestimatetheamountof loss,if any, and,therefore,hasnot madeany
accrual for this matter in these financial statements.

Fromtime to time, in theordinarycourseof business,theCompanyandits subsidiariesbecomeinvolvedasplaintiffs or defendants
in variousotherlegalproceedingsnot enumeratedabove.Theclaimsandcounterclaimsin suchotherlegalproceedings,includingthose
for punitivedamages,individually in certaincasesandin theaggregate,involveamountsthatmaybematerial.However, it is theopinion
of theCompany��smanagement,basedontheadviceof its counsel,thattheultimatedispositionof thoseproceedingswill notbematerial.
As of December30, 2011, theCompanydoesnot believethereis a reasonablepossibility thatanymateriallossexceedingtheamounts
alreadyrecognizedfor theseproceedingsand mattershasbeenincurred.However, the ultimate resolutionsof theseproceedingsand
mattersareinherentlyunpredictable.As such,theCompany��sfinancialconditionandresultsof operationscouldbeadverselyaffectedin
any particular period by the unfavorable resolution of one or more of these proceedings or matters.

NOTE 7. INCOME TAXES

TaxableIncome: Domesticincomefrom continuingoperationsbeforeincometaxeswas$204.5million, $113.8million and$79.6
million for 2011, 2010and2009,respectively. Foreignincomefrom continuingoperationsbeforeincometaxes(andbeforegoodwill
impairment loss) was $99.0 million, $66.4 million and $18.8 million for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Tax ProvisionsandReconciliationto theStatutoryRate: Thecomponentsof theCompany��stax expenseon continuingoperations
and the reconciliation to the statutory federal rate are identified below.

Income tax expense (benefit) was comprised of (in millions):

Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Current:
Foreign $ 28.3 $ 21.0 $ 18.2
State 8.1 4.0 (0.4 )
Federal 59.2 24.1 23.6

95.6 49.1 41.4
Deferred:

Foreign (14.9 ) 0.4 (5.9 )
State 1.7 2.3 0.2
Federal 20.4 18.9 4.1

7.2 21.6 (1.6 )

Income tax expense $102.8 $70.7 $39.8

Reconciliations of income tax expense to the statutory corporate federal tax rate of 35% were as follows (in millions):

Years Ended

December 30,

2011

December

31, 2010

January 1,

2010

Statutory tax expense $ 106.2 $ 63.1 $ (0.6)
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting from:

Nondeductible goodwill impairment loss �� �� 35.0
State income taxes, net 6.5 4.0 2.1
Foreign tax effects (1.4 ) 1.7 8.6
Changes in valuation allowances(a) (11.3 ) �� (4.5 )
Other, net 2.8 1.9 (0.8 )

Income tax expense $102.8 $70.7 $39.8

(a) In 2011, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $11.3 million, net, related to changes in tax valuation allowances primarily in
certain foreign jurisdictions. Approximately $7.4 million, net, of the tax benefit was a correction of an error from prior periods to
reverse valuation allowances for deferred tax assets in certain foreign jurisdictions where sufficient evidence existed to support the
realization of these deferred tax assets at a more likely than not level. The Company has determined the error is not material to
previously issued financial statements, and the correction of these errors is not material to the results of operations for the fiscal year
ended December30, 2011.
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TaxPayments: TheCompanymadenetpaymentsfor incometaxesin 2011, 2010and2009of $41.9million, $61.9million and$56.2
million, respectively.

Net OperatingLosses: The Companyand its U.S. subsidiariesfile their federal incometax return on a consolidatedbasis.The
Company had no tax credit carryforwards for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

At December30, 2011, various foreign subsidiariesof the Companyhad aggregatecumulativenet operatinglosses(��NOL��)
carryforwardsfor foreignincometaxpurposesof approximately$110.0million, whicharesubjectto variousprovisionsof eachrespective
country. Approximately$98.0million of theNOL carryforwardsmaybecarriedforwardindefinitely. TheremainingNOL carryforwards
expire at various times between 2012 and 2021.

UndistributedEarnings: The undistributedearningsof the Company��sforeign subsidiariesamountedto approximately$432.5
million atDecember30,2011.TheCompanyconsidersthoseearningsto beindefinitelyreinvestedand,accordingly, noprovisionfor U.S.
federalandstateincometaxesor anywithholdingtaxeshasbeenrecorded.Upondistributionof thoseearningsin theform of dividends
or otherwise,the Companymay be subjectto both U.S. incometaxes(subjectto adjustmentfor foreign tax credits)andwithholding
taxespayableto thevariousforeigncountries.With respectto thecountriesthathaveundistributedearningsasof December30, 2011,
accordingto the foreign laws andtreatiesin placeat that time, estimatedU.S. federalincometax of approximately$50.0million and
variousforeign jurisdiction withholding taxesof approximately$26.7million would be payableuponthe remittanceof all earningsat
December30, 2011.

Deferred Income Taxes: Significant components of the Company��s deferred tax assets and (liabilities) were as follows (in millions):

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Property, equipment, intangibles and other $ (21.5) $ (21.6)
Accreted interest (Notes due 2033) �� (6.0 )

Gross deferred tax liabilities (21.5 ) (27.6 )
Deferred compensation and other postretirement benefits 75.3 57.7
Inventory reserves 12.5 31.5
Foreign NOL carryforwards and other 33.7 21.8
Allowance for doubtful accounts 5.8 8.3
Other 16.6 10.8

Gross deferred tax assets 143.9 130.1

Deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities 122.4 102.5
Valuation allowance (20.3 ) (18.8 )

Net deferred tax assets $102.1 $83.7

Net current deferred tax assets $37.7 $50.3
Net non-current deferred tax assets 64.4 33.4

Net deferred tax assets $102.1 $83.7
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Uncertain Tax Positionsand JurisdictionsSubjectto Examinations: A reconciliationof the beginningand ending amountof
unrecognized tax benefits for fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011 is as follows:

(in millions)

Balance at January2, 2009 $ 5.8
Additions for tax positions of prior years 4.0
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (5.2 )

Balance at January1, 2010 $4.6
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1.9
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (2.5 )

Balance at December31, 2010 $4.0
Additions for tax positions of prior years 20.2
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (1.3 )

Balance at December30, 2011 $22.9

In 2009 and 2010, the Companyrecordedadjustmentsto stockholders��equity of $18.7 million for tax benefitsattributableto
deductionsclaimedin 2009and2010tax returnsrelatedto financingactivities.In 2011, theCompanydeterminedthatsuchdeductions
do not meetthe more likely thannot standardfor recognitionof the relatedtax benefitsandrecorded$18.7million of accruedtaxes
payablewith an offsettingentry to stockholders��equity. This balancehasbeenincludedin the tableabovefor uncertaintax positions.
TheCompanyhasdeterminedthattheerroris not materialto previouslyissuedfinancialstatementsandthecorrectionof theerroris not
material to the results of operations for the fiscal year ended December30, 2011.

Interestandpenaltiesrelatedto taxeswereminimal in 2011 and$1.4million in 2010.Interestandpenaltiesarereflectedin the��Other,
net�� line in theConsolidatedStatementof Operations.TheCompanyhasaccrued$1.3million and$1.9million at December30, 2011
and December31, 2010, respectively, for the payment of interest and penalties.

TheCompanyestimatesthatof theunrecognizedtaxbenefitbalanceof $24.2million, all of whichwouldaffect theeffectivetax rate,
$3.8million mayberesolvedin a mannerthatwould impacttheeffectiveratewithin thenexttwelvemonths.Thereservesfor uncertain
taxpositions,includinginterestandpenalties,of $24.2million covera rangeof issues,in particular, certainfinancing-relatedactivitiesof
the Company, intercompany charges and withholding taxes, and involve numerous different taxing jurisdictions.

Only the returnsfor fiscal tax years2008andlater remainsubjectto examinationby the InternalRevenueService(��IRS��) in the
UnitedStates,which is themostsignificanttax jurisdictionfor theCompany. An IRS examinationof fiscal tax years2008and2009was
completedin January2012.For moststates,fiscal tax years2008andlater remainsubjectto examination,althoughfor somestatesthe
periodsubjectto examinationrangesbackto asearlyasfiscal taxyear2003.In Canada,thefiscal taxyears2007andlaterarestill subject
to examination, while in the United Kingdom, the fiscal tax years 2008 and later remain subject to examination.

NOTE 8. PENSION PLANS, POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND OTHER BENEFITS

TheCompanyhasvariousdefinedbenefitanddefinedcontributionpensionplans.Thedefinedbenefitplansof theCompanyarethe
Anixter Inc. Pension Plan, Executive Benefit Plan and Supplemental Executive
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RetirementPlan(SERP)(togetherthe��DomesticPlans��)andvariouspensionplanscoveringemployeesof foreignsubsidiaries(��Foreign
Plans��).The majority of the Company��spensionplansarenon-contributoryandcoversubstantiallyall full-time domesticemployees
andcertainemployeesin othercountries.Retirementbenefitsareprovidedbasedon compensationasdefinedin both theDomesticand
ForeignPlans.The Company��spolicy is to fund all DomesticPlansasrequiredby the EmployeeRetirementIncomeSecurityAct of
1974(��ERISA��) andtheIRSandall ForeignPlansasrequiredby applicableforeignlaws.TheExecutiveBenefitPlanandSERParethe
only two plans that are unfunded. Assets in the various plans consist primarily of equity securities and fixed income investments.

The assetsareheld in separateindependenttrustsandmanagedby independentthird party advisors.The investmentobjectiveof
boththeDomesticandForeignPlansis to ensure,overthelong-termlife of theplans,anadequatelevel of assetsto fund thebenefitsto
employeesandtheir beneficiariesat the time they arepayable.In meetingthis objective,Anixter seeksto achievea high level of total
investmentreturnconsistentwith a prudentlevel of portfolio risk. The risk toleranceof Anixter indicatesan aboveaverageability to
acceptrisk relativeto thatof a typical definedbenefitpensionplanasthedurationof theprojectedbenefitobligationis longerthanthe
averagecompany. Therisk preferenceindicatesawillingnessto acceptsomeincreasesin short-termvolatility in orderto maximizelong-
termreturns.However, thedurationof thefixed incomeportionof theDomesticPlanapproximatesthedurationof theprojectedbenefit
obligationto reducetheeffect of changesin discountratesthatareusedto measurethefundedstatusof thePlan.Themeasurementdate
for all plans of the Company is equal to the fiscal year end.

TheDomesticPlans��andForeignPlans��assetmixesasof December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010andtheCompany��sasset
allocation guidelines for such plans are summarized as follows:

Domestic Plans

Allocation GuidelinesDecember

30,

2011

December31,

2010 Min Target Max

Large capitalization U.S. stocks 32.8 % 33.2 % 20% 30 % 40%
Small capitalization U.S. stocks 16.8 17.3 15 20 25
International stocks 16.3 16.6 15 20 25

Total equity securities 65.9 67.1 70
Fixed income investments 29.9 30.3 25 30 35
Other investments 4.2 2.6 �� �� ��

100.0 % 100.0 % 100 %

Foreign Plans

Allocation GuidelinesDecember

30,

2011

December

31,

2010 Target

Equity securities 43.3 % 46.2 % 49 %
Fixed income investments 48.7 44.9 43
Other investments 8.0 8.9 8

100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

The pensioncommitteesmeetregularly to assessinvestmentperformanceand re-allocateassetsthat fall outsideof its allocation
guidelines.Thevariationsbetweentheallocationguidelinesandactualassetallocationsreflectrelativeperformancedifferencesin asset
classes. From time to time, the Company periodically rebalances its asset portfolios to be in line with its allocation guidelines.
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The North American investment policy guidelines are as follows:

�� Each asset class is actively managed by one investment manager;
�� Each asset class may be invested in a commingled fund, mutual fund, or separately managed account;
�� Each manager is expected to be ��fully invested�� with minimal cash holdings;
�� The use of options and futures is limited to covered hedges only;
�� Each equity assetmanagerhas a minimum numberof individual companystocksthat needto be held and there are

restrictionson thetotal marketvaluethatcanbeinvestedin anyoneindustryandthepercentagethatanyonecompanycan
be of the portfolio total. The domesticequity fundsarelimited asto the percentagethat canbe investedin international
securities;

�� The international stock fund is limited to readily marketable securities; and
�� The fixed income fund has a duration that approximates the duration of the projected benefit obligations.

The investmentpolicies for the Europeanplansare the responsibilityof the varioustrustees.Generally, the investmentpolicy
guidelines are as follows:

�� Make sure that the obligations to the beneficiaries of the Plan can be met;
�� Maintain funds at a level to meet the minimum funding requirements; and
�� The investmentmanagersareexpectedto providea return,within certaintrackingtolerances,closeto thatof the relevant

market��s indices.

Theexpectedlong-termrateof returnon boththeDomesticandForeignPlans��assetsreflectstheaveragerateof earningsexpected
on the investedassetsand future assetsto be investedto provide for the benefitsincluded in the projectedbenefit obligation. The
Companyuseshistoric plan assetreturnscombinedwith currentmarketconditionsto estimatethe rateof return.The expectedrateof
returnonplanassetsis a long-termassumptionandgenerallydoesnotchangeannually. Theweighted-averageexpectedrateof returnon
plan assets used in the determination of net periodic pension cost for 2011 is 6.91%.

Includedin accumulatedother comprehensiveincomeas of December30, 2011 are the deferredprior servicecost,deferrednet
transitionobligationanddeferrednetactuariallossof $0.7million, $0.1million and$84.5million, respectively. Includedin accumulated
othercomprehensiveincomeasof December31,2010arethedeferredprior servicecost,deferrednettransitionobligationanddeferred
netactuariallossof $3.3million, $0.1million and$40.5million, respectively. During theyearendedDecember30,2011, theCompany
reducedaccumulatedother comprehensiveincomeby $41.4million (net of tax of $21.4million), $43.9million of which relatedto
deferredactuariallosses(netof taxof $23.0million) offsetby areductionof deferredprior servicecostsof $2.5million (netof taxof $1.6
million). Includedin thesereductionsto accumulatedothercomprehensiveincomeduring 2011 wereactuariallossesandprior service
costsof $2.2million and$0.4million, respectively, asa resultof beingrecognizedascomponentsof netperiodicpensioncost.Overthe
next fiscal year, theCompanyexpectsto amortizeactuariallossesandprior servicecostsof $9.0million and$0.1million, respectively,
from accumulatedothercomprehensiveincomeinto net periodicpensioncost.Amortizationof the transitionobligationover the next
fiscal year will be insignificant.
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Thefollowing representsa reconciliationof thefundedstatusof theCompany��spensionplansfrom thebeginningof fiscal2010to
the end of fiscal 2011:

Pension Benefits

Domestic Foreign Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

(In millions)

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Beginning balance $225.4 $197.9 $174.6 $175.9 $400.0 $373.8
Service cost 7.0 6.1 5.3 4.7 12.3 10.8
Interest cost 12.0 11.6 9.7 9.9 21.7 21.5
Plan participants contributions �� �� 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3
Actuarial loss (gain) 49.7 15.3 11.1 (6.1 ) 60.8 9.2
Benefits paid (6.1 ) (6.1 ) (6.3 ) (5.6 ) (12.4 ) (11.7 )
Foreign currency exchange rate changes �� �� (2.0 ) (4.5 ) (2.0 ) (4.5 )
Other (0.3 ) 0.6 �� �� (0.3 ) 0.6

Ending balance $287.7 $225.4 $192.8 $174.6 $480.5 $400.0

Change in plan assets at fair value:
Beginning balance $148.0 $127.3 $165.8 $149.5 $313.8 $276.8
Actual (loss) return on plan assets 5.7 19.9 9.1 15.0 14.8 34.9
Company contributions 10.4 6.9 9.8 10.0 20.2 16.9
Plan participants contributions �� �� 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3
Benefits paid (6.1 ) (6.1 ) (6.3 ) (5.6 ) (12.4 ) (11.7 )
Foreign currency exchange rate changes �� �� (1.7 ) (3.4 ) (1.7 ) (3.4 )

Ending balance $158.0 $148.0 $177.1 $165.8 $335.1 $313.8

Reconciliation of funded status:
Projected benefit obligation $(287.7) $(225.4) $(192.8) $(174.6) $(480.5) $(400.0)
Plan assets at fair value 158.0 148.0 177.1 165.8 335.1 313.8

Funded status $(129.7) $(77.4 ) $(15.7 ) $(8.8 ) $(145.4) $(86.2 )

Includedin the2011 and2010fundedstatusis accruedbenefitcostof approximately$17.9million and$13.0million, respectively, relatedto two non-qualifiedplans,

which cannot be funded pursuant to tax regulations.

Noncurrent asset $�� $�� $5.3 $2.0 $5.3 $2.0
Current liability (0.8 ) (0.6 ) �� �� (0.8 ) (0.6 )
Noncurrent liability (128.9) (76.8 ) (21.0 ) (10.8 ) (149.9) (87.6 )

Funded status $(129.7) $(77.4 ) $(15.7 ) $(8.8 ) $(145.4) $(86.2 )

Weighted-average assumptions used for measurement of the projected benefit obligation:
Discount rate 4.37 % 5.53 % 4.84 % 5.43 % 4.56 % 5.49 %
Salary growth rate 3.90 % 3.91 % 3.13 % 3.57 % 3.57 % 3.76 %
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The following representsthe funded componentsof net periodic pensioncost as reflected in the Company��sConsolidated
Statementsof Operationsandthe weighted-averageassumptionsusedto measurenet periodiccost for the yearsendedDecember30,
2011, December31, 2010 and January1, 2010:

Pension Benefits

Domestic Foreign Total

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

(In millions)

Componentsof netperiodiccost:
Service cost $7.0 $6.1 $6.6 $5.3 $4.7 $4.0 $12.3 $10.8 $10.6
Interest cost 12.0 11.6 11.0 9.7 9.9 8.6 21.7 21.5 19.6
Expected return on plan assets (11.8) (10.8) (9.9 ) (10.1) (8.9) (7.9) (21.9) (19.7) (17.8)
Net amortization 3.4 3.5 3.7 0.3 0.6 (0.1) 3.7 4.1 3.6
Curtailment loss 0.6 �� �� �� �� �� 0.6 �� ��

Net periodic cost $11.2 $10.4 $11.4$ 5.2 $6.3 $4.6 $16.4 $16.7 $16.0

Weighted-average assumption used to measure net periodic cost:
Discount rate 5.53% 5.99% 5.90 % 5.43% 5.77% 6.45% 5.49% 5.88% 6.12%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.50% 8.50 % 5.93% 6.02% 6.02% 6.91% 7.16% 7.26%
Salary growth rate 3.91% 3.91% 4.43 % 3.57% 3.59% 3.66% 3.76% 3.79% 4.05%

Fair Value Measurements

Thefollowing presentsinformationaboutthePlan��sassetsmeasuredat fair valueon a recurringbasisat theendof fiscal 2011, and
the valuationtechniquesusedby the Planto determinethosefair values.The inputsusedin the determinationof thesefair valuesare
categorized according to the fair value hierarchy as being Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3.

In general,fair valuesdeterminedby Level1 inputsusequotedpricesin activemarketsfor identicalassetsthatthePlanhastheability
to access.Themajority of theCompany��spensionassetsvaluedby Level 1 inputsarecomprisedof Domesticequityandfixed income
securities which are traded actively on public exchanges and valued at quoted prices at the end of the fiscal year.

Fair valuesdeterminedby Level 2 inputs useother inputs that areobservable,eitherdirectly or indirectly. TheseLevel 2 inputs
includequotedpricesfor similar assetsin activemarkets,andother inputssuchas interestratesandyield curvesthat areobservable
at commonlyquotedintervals.The majority of the Company��spensionassetsvaluedby Level 2 inputs are comprisedof common/
collective/pool funds(i.e.,mutualfunds)which arenot exchangetraded.Theseassetsarevaluedat their Net AssetValues(��NAV��) and
considered observable inputs, or Level 2.

Level3 inputsareunobservableinputs,includinginputsthatareavailablein situationswherethereis little, if any, marketactivity for
the related asset. The Company does not have any pension assets valued by Level 3 inputs.
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In instanceswhere inputs used to measurefair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair value
measurementsin their entiretyarecategorizedbasedon thelowestlevel input that is significantto thevaluation.ThePlan��sassessment
of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset.

Disclosuresconcerningassetsmeasuredat fair valueonarecurringbasisat theendof eachfiscalyear, whichhavebeencategorized
under the fair value hierarchy for the Domestic and Foreign Plans by the Company are as follows:

Pension Assets

Domestic Foreign Total

Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total

(In millions)

Asset Categories:
Cash and short-term investments $6.6 $�� $6.6 $ 1.4 $�� $1.4 $8.0 $ �� $8.0
Equity securities:

Domestic 78.4 �� 78.4 0.1 30.7 30.8 78.5 30.7 109.2
International �� 25.7 25.7 �� 45.8 45.8 �� 71.5 71.5

Fixed income securities:
Domestic 31.7 1.0 32.7 0.5 65.6 66.1 32.2 66.6 98.8
Corporate bonds �� 14.6 14.6 0.4 19.9 20.3 0.4 34.5 34.9

Insurance funds �� �� �� �� 12.2 12.2 �� 12.2 12.2
Other �� �� �� 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.1 0.4 0.5

Total $116.7 $41.3 $158.0 $ 2.5 $174.6 $177.1 $119.2 $ 215.9 $335.1

The Company��s estimated future benefits payments are as follows at the end of 2011:

Estimated Future Benefit

Payments

Domestic Foreign Total

(In millions)

2012 $8.8 $5.7 $14.5
2013 8.1 5.7 13.8
2014 8.8 6.3 15.1
2015 9.4 6.2 15.6
2016 10.1 6.5 16.6
2017-2021 63.9 37.4 101.3

Total $ 109.1 $ 67.8 $ 176.9

Theaccumulatedbenefitobligationin 2011 and2010was$251.7million and$202.0million, respectively, for theDomesticPlans
and$161.4million and$148.5million, respectively, for theForeignPlans.TheCompanyhadsix plansin 2011 andsevenplansin 2010
wherethe accumulatedbenefit obligationwas in excessof the fair valueof plan assets.For pensionplanswith accumulatedbenefit
obligationsin excessof planassetstheaggregatepensionaccumulatedbenefitobligationwas$256.3million and$209.4million for 2011
and 2010, respectively, and aggregate fair value of plan assets was $161.8 million and $154.5 million for 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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The Companycurrently estimatesthat it will makecontributionsof approximately$14.2million to its DomesticPlansand $9.2
million to its Foreign Plans in 2012.

Non-uniondomesticemployeesof the Companyhired on or after June1, 2004earna benefitundera personalretirementaccount
(hypotheticalaccountbalance).Eachyear, a participant��saccountreceivesa credit equalto 2.0% of the participant��ssalary(2.5% if
the participant��syearsof serviceat August1 of the plan yearare five yearsor more).BeginningJanuary1, 2011, activeparticipants
with threeyearsof servicebecamefully vestedin their hypotheticalpersonalretirementaccount(previously, participantsvestedafter
five yearsof service).Interestearnedon thecreditedamountis not creditedto thepersonalretirementaccount,but is contributedto the
participant��saccountin the Anixter Inc. EmployeeSavingsPlan.The interestcontributionequalsthe interestearnedon the personal
retirement account in the Domestic Plan and is based on the 10-year Treasury note rate as of the last business day of December.

Anixter Inc. adoptedthe Anixter Inc. EmployeeSavingsPlan effective January1, 1994.The Plan is a defined-contributionplan
coveringall non-uniondomesticemployeesof theCompany. Participantsareeligible andencouragedto enroll in the tax-deferredplan
on theirdateof hire,andareautomaticallyenrolledapproximately60daysaftertheirdateof hireunlesstheyoptout.Thesavingsplanis
subjectto theprovisionsof ERISA.TheCompanymakesamatchingcontributionequalto 25%of aparticipant��scontribution,up to 6%
of aparticipant��scompensation.TheCompanyalsohascertainforeigndefinedcontributionplans.TheCompany��scontributionsto these
plansarebaseduponvariouslevelsof employeeparticipationandlegal requirements.The total expenserelatedto definedcontribution
plans was $5.9 million, $5.4 million and $5.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

A non-qualifieddeferredcompensationplan was implementedon January1, 1995.The plan permitsselectedemployeesto make
pre-taxdeferralsof salaryandbonus.Interestis accruedmonthlyon thedeferredcompensationbalancesbasedon theaverage10-year
Treasurynoteratefor the previousthreemonthstimesa factor of 1.4, andthe rate is further adjustedif certainfinancial goalsof the
Companyareachieved.Theplanprovidesfor benefitpaymentsuponretirement,death,disability, terminationor otherscheduleddates
determinedby the participant.At December30, 2011 and December31, 2010, the deferredcompensationliability includedin other
liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets was $44.1 million and $42.3 million, respectively.

Concurrentwith the implementationof the deferredcompensationplan, the Companypurchasedvariable,separateaccountlife
insurancepolicies on the plan participantswith benefitsaccruingto the Company. To provide for the liabilities associatedwith the
deferredcompensationplanandanexecutivenon-qualifieddefinedbenefitplan,fixed generalaccount��increasingwholelife�� insurance
policies were purchasedon the lives of certainparticipants.Prior to 2006, the Companypaid level annualpremiumson the above
company-ownedpolicies.Thelastpremiumwaspaidin 2005.Policyproceedsarepayableto theCompanyupontheinsuredparticipant��s
death.At December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010,the cashsurrendervalueof $33.9million and$34.8million, respectively, was
recorded under this program and reflected in ��Other assets�� on the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has no other post-retirement benefits other than the pension and savings plans described herein.

NOTE 9. STOCKHOLDERS ���� EQUITY

Preferred Stock

The Companyhasthe authority to issue15.0million sharesof preferredstock, par value $1.00 per share,noneof which were
outstanding at the end of fiscal 2011 and 2010.
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Common Stock

The Companyhasthe authority to issue100.0million sharesof commonstock,par value$1.00per share,of which 33.2million
shares and 34.3million shares were outstanding at the end of fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Special Dividend

OnSeptember23,2010,theCompany��sBoardof Directorsdeclaredaspecialdividendof $3.25percommonshare,or approximately
$113.7million, asa returnof excesscapitalto shareholders.Thedividenddeclaredwasrecordedasa reductionto retainedearningsasof
the end of the third quarter of 2010 and was paid on October28, 2010 to shareholders of record on October15, 2010.

In accordancewith the antidilution provisionsof the Company��sstock incentiveplans,the exerciseprice andnumberof options
outstandingwereadjustedto reflect the specialdividend.The averageexerciseprice of outstandingoptionsdecreasedfrom $43.88to
$41.16,andthenumberof outstandingoptionsincreasedfrom 1.3million to 1.4million. In addition,thedividendwill bepaidto holders
of stock units upon vesting of the units. These changes resulted in no additional compensation expense.

The conversionrateof the Notesdue2013wasadjustedin October2010to reflect the specialdividend.Holdersof the Notesdue
2013mayconverteachNoteinto 16.727shares,comparedto 15.753sharesbeforetheadjustment,of theCompany��scommonstock,for
which the Company has reserved 5.0million of its authorized shares, compared to 4.7million shares before adjustment.

Stock-Based Compensation

In 2010,the Company��sshareholdersapprovedthe 2010StockIncentivePlanconsistingof 1.8million sharesof the Company��s
common stock. At December30, 2011, there were 2.3million shares reserved for issuance under all incentive plans.

Stock Units

TheCompanygranted157,790,268,701and371,131stockunitsto employeesin 2011,2010and2009,respectively, with aweighted-
averagegrantdatefair valueof $69.91,$42.72and$29.41pershare,respectively. Thegrant-datevalueof thestockunits is amortized
andconvertedto outstandingsharesof commonstockon a one-for-onebasisprimarily overa four-yearor six-yearvestingperiodfrom
thedateof grantbasedon thespecifictermsof thegrant.Compensationexpenseassociatedwith thestockunitswas$6.8million, $11.6
million and $10.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company��sDirector StockUnit Planallows the Companyto pay its non-employeedirectorsannualretainerfeesand,at their
election,meetingfees in the form of stock units. Currently, theseunits are grantedquarterlyand vest immediately. Therefore,the
Companyincludestheseunitsin its commonstockoutstandingon thedateof vestingastheconditionsfor conversionaremet.However,
theactualissuanceof sharesrelatedto all directorunitsaredeferreduntil a pre-arrangedtime selectedby eachdirector. Stockunitswere
grantedto ten directorsin 2011 andtwelve directorsin 2010and2009havingan aggregatevalueat grantdateof $1.6 million, $1.3
million and$1.9million, respectively. Compensationexpenseassociatedwith thedirectorstockunitswas$1.6million, $1.7million and
$1.9 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the activity under the director and employee stock unit plans:

Dir ector

Stock

Units (1)

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Value (2)

Employee

Stock

Units

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Value (2)

(Units in thousands)

Outstanding balance at January2, 2009 193.9 $ 40.14 582.6 $ 54.74
Granted 48.9 38.39 371.1 29.41
Converted (2.7 ) 46.91 (177.4 ) 46.02
Cancelled �� �� (17.2 ) 47.79

Outstanding balance at January1, 2010 240.1 39.71 759.1 44.55
Granted 26.8 47.32 268.7 42.72
Converted (37.2 ) 38.14 (197.4 ) 51.09
Cancelled �� �� (6.7 ) 45.32

Outstanding balance at December31, 2010 229.7 40.85 823.7 42.38
Granted 27.7 59.14 157.8 69.91
Converted (7.2 ) 45.74 (281.9 ) 44.67
Cancelled �� �� (82.5 ) 43.99

Outstanding balance at December30, 2011 250.2 $ 42.74 617.1 $ 48.16

(1) Generally, stockunits are includedin the Company��s commonstockoutstandingon the dateof vestingas the conditionsfor conversionhavebeenmet.However,

directorunitsare consideredconvertibleunits if vestedandthe individual haselectedto deferfor conversionuntil a pre-arrangedtimeselectedby eachindividual.

All of the director stock units outstanding are convertible.

(2) Director and employee stock units are granted at no cost to the participants.

The Company��sstock price was $59.64,$59.73 and $47.10 at December30, 2011, December31, 2010 and January1, 2010,
respectively. The weighted-average remaining contractual term for outstanding employee units is 1.9 years.

Theaggregateintrinsicvalueof unitsconvertedinto stockrepresentsthetotalpre-taxintrinsicvalue(calculatedusingtheCompany��s
stockprice on the dateof conversionmultiplied by the numberof units converted)that was receivedby unit holders.The aggregate
intrinsic value of units converted into stock for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $20.0 million, $10.4 million and $5.3 million, respectively.

Theaggregateintrinsicvalueof unitsoutstandingrepresentsthetotalpre-taxintrinsicvalue(calculatedusingtheCompany��sclosing
stockprice on the last tradingday of the fiscal yearmultiplied by the numberof units outstanding)that will be receivedby the unit
recipientsuponvesting.Theaggregateintrinsic valueof unitsoutstandingfor 2011, 2010and2009was$51.7million, $62.9million and
$47.1 million, respectively.

Theaggregateintrinsicvalueof unitsconvertiblerepresentsthetotalpre-taxintrinsicvalue(calculatedusingtheCompany��sclosing
stockprice on the last tradingday of the fiscal yearmultiplied by the numberof units convertible)that would havebeenreceivedby
theunit holders.Theaggregateintrinsic valueof unitsconvertiblefor 2011, 2010and2009was$14.9million, $14.1million and$12.0
million, respectively.
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Stock Options

Optionspreviouslygrantedundertheseplanshavebeengrantedwith exercisepricesat the fair marketvalueof thecommonstock
on thedateof grant.All optionsexpiretenyearsafterthedateof grant.TheCompanygenerallyissuesnewsharesto satisfystockoption
exercisesasopposedto adjustingtreasuryshares.In accordancewith U.S.GAAP, thefair valueof stockoptiongrantsis amortizedover
the respective vesting period representing the requisite service period.

During2011, 2010and2009,theCompanygranted75,886,96,492and97,222stockoptions,respectively, to employeeswith agrant-
datefair marketvalueof approximately$2.2million, $1.6million and$1.2million, respectively. Theseoptionsweregrantedwith vesting
periodsof four yearsrepresentingtherequisiteserviceperiodbasedon thespecifictermsof thegrant.Theweighted-averagefair value
of the2011, 2010and2009stockoptiongrantswas$28.50,$17.10and$12.37pershare,respectively, which wasestimatedat thedate
of the grants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Expected

StockPrice

Volatility

Risk-Free

Inter estRate

Expected

Dividend

Yield

AverageExpected

Life

2011 Grants 37.9% 2.4% �� 6.13years
2010 Grants 36.2% 2.7% �� 6.13 years
2009 Grants 35.4% 2.7% �� 7 years

Primarily dueto the changein the populationof employeesthat receiveoptionstogetherwith changesin the stockcompensation
plans(which now includerestrictedstockunitsaswell asstockoptions),historicalexercisebehavioron previousgrantsdo not provide
a reasonableestimatefor future exerciseactivity. Therefore,the averageexpectedterm wascalculatedusingthe simplified method,as
defined by U.S. GAAP, for estimating the expected term.

TheCompany��scompensationexpenseassociatedwith thestockoptionsin 2011, 2010and2009was$2.7million, $3.4million and
$3.0 million, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the activity under the employee option plans (Options in thousands):

Employee

Options

Weighted-

average

Exercise

Price

Balance at January2, 2009 1,729.8 $33.78
Granted 97.2 29.41
Exercised (264.8 ) 18.21
Cancelled �� ��

Balance at January1, 2010 1,562.2 36.15
Adjusted(a) 87.2 37.87
Granted 96.5 42.71
Exercised (510.9 ) 21.25
Cancelled (0.1 ) 22.39

Balance at December31, 2010 1,234.9 40.27
Granted 75.9 69.54
Exercised (502.5 ) 29.92
Cancelled (52.0 ) 52.33

Balance at December31, 2011 756.3 $49.26

Options exercisable at year-end:
2009 956.8 $20.43
2010(a) 661.2 $26.12
2011 405.5 $28.20

(a) In accordancewith theprovisionsof thestockoptionplan, theexerciseprice andnumberof optionsoutstandingandexercisablewere adjustedto reflectthespecial

dividend in 2010.

The Company��sstock price was $59.64,$59.73 and $47.10 at December30, 2011, December31, 2010 and January1, 2010,
respectively. The weighted-averageremainingcontractualterm for optionsoutstandingfor 2011 was6.7 years.The weighted-average
remaining contractual term for options exercisable for 2011 was 5.6 years.

Theaggregateintrinsicvalueof optionsexercisedrepresentsthetotalpre-taxintrinsicvalue(calculatedasthedifferencebetweenthe
Company��sstockpriceon thedateof exerciseandtheexerciseprice,multiplied by thenumberof optionsexercised)thatwasreceived
by theoptionholders.Theaggregateintrinsic valueof optionsexercisedfor 2011, 2010and2009was$18.1million, $15.5million and
$5.8 million, respectively.

Theaggregateintrinsic valueof optionsoutstandingrepresentsthetotal pre-taxintrinsic value(calculatedasthedifferencebetween
theCompany��sclosingstockpriceon thelast tradingdayof eachfiscal yearandtheweighted-averageexerciseprice,multiplied by the
numberof optionsoutstandingat theendof thefiscal year)thatcouldbereceivedby theoptionholdersif suchoptionholdersexercised
all optionsoutstandingat fiscalyear-end.Theaggregateintrinsicvalueof optionsoutstandingfor 2011,2010and2009was$25.4million,
$39.9 million and $43.4 million, respectively.

Theaggregateintrinsic valueof optionsexercisablerepresentsthetotal pre-taxintrinsic value(calculatedasthedifferencebetween
theCompany��sclosingstockpriceon thelast tradingdayof eachfiscal yearandtheweighted-averageexerciseprice,multiplied by the
numberof optionsexercisableat theendof the fiscal year)thatwould havebeenreceivedby theoptionholdershadall optionholders
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electedto exercisetheoptionsat fiscal year-end.Theaggregateintrinsic valueof optionsexercisablefor 2011, 2010and2009was$12.7
million, $22.2 million and $25.5 million, respectively.

76

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

Summary of Non-Vested Shares

The following table summarizes the changes to the unvested employee stock units and options:

Non-

vested

Shares

Weighted-average

Grant DateFair Value

(shares in thousands)

Non-vested shares at December 31, 2010 1,391.3 $ 32.82
Granted 233.7 56.46
Vested (522.6 ) 33.51
Cancelled (134.5 ) 34.71

Non-vested shares at December 30, 2011 967.9 $ 37.89

As of December30, 2011, therewas $15.5million of total unrecognizedcompensationcost relatedto unvestedstock units and
options granted to employees which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

Share Repurchases

During2011, theCompanyrepurchased2.0million sharesin theopenmarketatanaveragecostof $53.73pershare.Purchaseswere
madein theopenmarketandfinancedfrom a portionof theproceedsfrom thesaleof Aerospace.During 2010,theCompanypurchased
1.0million sharesat an averagecostof $41.24per share.Purchasesweremadein the openmarketusingavailablecashon handand
availableborrowings.During 2009,the Companypurchased1.0million sharesat an averagecostof $34.95per share.Purchaseswere
madein theopenmarketandwerefinancedfrom cashgeneratedby operationsandthenetproceedsfrom theissuanceof theNotesdue
2014.

NOTE 10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

TheCompanyis engagedin thedistributionof communicationandsecurityproducts,electricalandelectronicwire andcableproducts
andfastenersandothersmall parts(��C�� Classinventorycomponents)from top suppliersto contractorsandinstallers,andalsoto end
usersincluding manufacturers,naturalresourcescompanies,utilities and original equipmentmanufacturerswho usethe Company��s
productsasa componentin their endproduct.TheCompanyis organizedby geographicregions,andaccordingly, hasidentifiedNorth
America (United Statesand Canada),Europeand Emerging Markets(Asia Pacific and Latin America) as reportablesegments.The
Companyobtainsandcoordinatesfinancing,tax, informationtechnology, legalandotherrelatedservices,certainof which arerebilled
to subsidiaries.Certaincorporateexpensesareallocatedto the segmentsbasedprimarily on specificidentification,projectedsalesand
estimateduseof time. Interestexpenseandothernon-operatingitemsarenot allocatedto thesegmentsor reviewedon a segmentbasis.
Intercompanytransactionsarenotsignificant.No customeraccountedfor morethan3%of salesin 2011. Exportsaleswereinsignificant.

TheCompanyattributesforeignsalesbasedon the locationof thecustomerpurchasingtheproduct.In North America,salesin the
UnitedStateswere$3,561.7million, $3,081.4million and$2,830.3million in 2011, 2010and2009,respectively. Canadiansaleswere
$740.8million, $619.8million and$567.5million in 2011, 2010and2009,respectively. No otherindividual foreigncountry��snetsales
within theEuropeor Emerging Markets��geographicsegmentswerematerialto theCompanyin 2011, 2010or 2009.TheCompany��s
tangiblelong-livedassetsprimarily consistof property, plantandequipmentin theUnitedStates.No otherindividual foreigncountry��s
tangible long-lived assets are material to the Company.
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Segment information for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was as follows (in millions):

North

America Europe

Emerging

Markets Total

2011
Net sales $ 4,302.5 $ 1,150.0 $ 694.4 $ 6,146.9
Operating income 307.7 15.7 39.4 362.8
Depreciation 14.5 5.6 2.0 22.1
Amortization of intangibles 5.2 6.1 0.1 11.4
Tangible long-lived assets 99.6 28.3 6.3 134.2
Total assets 2,015.9 622.3 395.8 3,034.0
Capital expenditures 18.3 5.2 2.9 26.4

2010
Net sales $3,701.2 $1,008.4 $564.9 $5,274.5
Operating income (loss) 235.1 (0.9 ) 33.0 267.2
Depreciation 14.7 5.6 2.2 22.5
Amortization of intangibles 5.0 6.2 0.1 11.3
Tangible long-lived assets 95.9 24.5 5.5 125.9
Total assets 2,043.9 586.7 302.7 2,933.3
Capital expenditures 16.6 1.9 1.1 19.6

2009
Net sales $3,397.8 $887.9 $493.9 $4,779.6
Operating income (loss) 175.1 (120.0 ) 29.7 84.8
Depreciation 15.0 7.0 2.1 24.1
Amortization of intangibles 6.3 6.6 0.1 13.0
Tangible long-lived assets 92.2 32.5 5.5 130.2
Total assets 1,869.5 545.6 256.6 2,671.7
Capital expenditures 17.0 2.9 2.0 21.9

Thefollowing tablesummarizesnetsalesby endmarketfor theyearsendedDecember30,2011, December31,2011 andJanuary1,
2010 (in millions):

Years Ended

December30, 2011 December31, 2010 January 1, 2010

Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales

Enterprise Cabling and Security $ 3,245.9 52.8 % $ 2,912.6 55.2 % $ 2,744.1 57.4 %
Electrical Wire and Cable 1,949.5 31.7 % 1,602.5 30.4 % 1,385.7 29.0 %
OEM Supply 951.5 15.5 % 759.4 14.4 % 649.8 13.6 %

Net Sales $6,146.9 100.0 % $5,274.5 100.0 % $4,779.6 100.0 %

Thecategorizationof netsalesby endmarketis determinedusingavarietyof datapointsincludingthetechnicalcharacteristicsof the
product,the��soldto�� customerinformation,the��shipto�� customerinformationandtheendcustomerproductor applicationinto which
theCompany��sproductwill beincorporated.As datasystemsfor capturingandtrackingthisdataevolveandimprove,thecategorization

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


of productsby endmarketcanvaryovertime.Whenthisoccurs,theCompanyreclassifiesnetsalesby endmarketfor prior periods.Such
reclassifications typically do not materially change the sizing of, or the underlying trends of results within, each end market.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

The following table presentsthe changesin goodwill allocatedto the Company��sreportablesegmentsfrom January1, 2010 to
December30, 2011 (in millions):

North

America Europe(a)

Emerging

Markets Total

Balance as of January1, 2010(b) $ 316.3 $ 11.7 $ 10.7 $ 338.7
Acquisition related(c) 15.3 �� �� 15.3
Foreign currency translation 0.8 (0.7 ) 1.2 1.3

Balance as of December31, 2010 $332.4 $11.0 $11.9 $355.3
Acquisition related(c) (2.8 ) �� �� (2.8 )
Foreign currency translation (0.4 ) (0.1 ) (0.3 ) (0.8 )

Balance as of December30, 2011 $329.2 $10.9 $11.6 $351.7

(a) Europe��s goodwill balance includes $100.0 million of accumulated impairment losses for all periods presented.
(b) As aresultof thedispositionof theCompany��sAerospacebusinessin thethird quarterof 2011,goodwill of $19.0million allocated

to the North AmericaandEuropereportablesegmentswaswritten off andprior periodamountswerereclassifiedto ��Assetsof
discontinued operations�� on the Company��s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January1, 2010.

(c) In the year endedDecember30, 2011, the Companyadjustedgoodwill recognizedin 2010 by $2.8 million, related to the
acquisitionof Clark SecurityProducts,Inc andGeneralLock, LLC (collectively ��Clark��) for which the Companypaid $36.4
million in 2010(offsetin 2011 by $1.6million whichwasreturnedto theCompanyasaresultof networkingcapitaladjustments).
The purchase price, as well as the allocation thereof, was finalized in 2011.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 11. SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION OF ANIXTER INC.

TheCompanyguarantees,fully andunconditionally, substantiallyall of thedebtof its subsidiaries,which includeAnixter Inc. The
Companyhasno independentassetsor operationsandall subsidiariesotherthanAnixter Inc. areminor. Thefollowing summarizesthe
financial information for Anixter Inc. (in millions):

ANIXTER INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Assets:
Current assets(a) $ 2,404.0 $ 2,309.1
Property, equipment and capital leases, net 102.3 98.3
Goodwill 351.7 355.3
Other assets 190.2 187.0

$3,048.2 $2,949.7

Liabilities and Stockholder��s Equity:
Current liabilities(a) $1,023.3 $1,069.0
Subordinated notes payable to parent 6.0 8.5
Long-term debt 543.9 394.3
Other liabilities 198.2 159.1
Stockholder��s equity 1,276.8 1,318.8

$3,048.2 $2,949.7

(a) Includesassetsandliabilities relatedto discontinuedoperationsof $186.8and$14.6,respectively, atDecember31,2010(seeNote
4. ��Discontinued Operations.��)

ANIXTER INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Net sales $ 6,146.9 $ 5,274.5 $ 4,779.6
Operating income $368.3 $273.0 $90.5
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $328.0 $204.2 $21.1
Net (loss) income from discontinued operations $(12.5 ) $(1.0 ) $12.1
Net income (loss) $203.3 $123.2 $(15.4 )
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 12. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DA TA (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summaryof the unauditedinterim resultsof operationsandthe price rangeof the commonstockcompositefor
eachquarterin theyearsendedDecember30,2011 andDecember31,2010.TheCompanyhasneverpaidordinarycashdividendson its
commonstock.However, in 2010,theCompanydeclaredaspecialdividendof $3.25percommonshare,or $113.7million, asa returnof
excesscapitalto shareholdersandwaspaidonOctober28,2010to shareholdersof recordonOctober15,2010.As of February17,2012,
the Company had 2,209 shareholders of record.

(In millions, except per share amounts) First

Quarter (1)

Second

Quarter

Third

Quarter (2)

Fourth

Quarter (3)

Year ended December30, 2011
Net sales $ 1,470.8 $ 1,565.3 $ 1,611.8 $ 1,499.0
Cost of goods sold 1,132.1 1,207.3 1,249.8 1,150.3
Operating income 77.5 92.0 101.7 91.6
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 65.4 77.6 83.3 77.2
Net income from continuing operations 40.9 48.4 61.6 49.8
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net 3.4 3.7 (18.1 ) (1.5 )
Net income $44.3 $52.1 $43.5 $48.3
Income (loss) per share

Basic:
Continuing operations $1.19 $1.39 $1.80 $1.50
Discontinued operations $0.10 $0.11 $(0.53 ) $(0.05 )
Net income $1.29 $1.50 $1.27 $1.45

Diluted:
Continuing operations $1.13 $1.33 $1.78 $1.49
Discontinued operations $0.10 $0.10 $(0.52 ) $(0.05 )
Net income $1.23 $1.43 $1.26 $1.44

Stock price range:
High $73.56 $76.16 $68.15 $62.99
Low $59.52 $60.54 $47.38 $44.52
Close $68.30 $66.10 $47.44 $59.64

(1) In thefirst quarterof 2011, theCompanyrecordeda pre-taxchargeof $5.3million relatedto facility consolidationsandheadcountreductionsin Europe.SeeNote3.

��Restructuring Charge.��

(2) In thethird quarterof 2011, theCompanyrecordeda taxbenefitof $8.8million whichwasprimarily relatedto thereversalof deferredincometaxvaluationallowances

in certain foreign jurisdictions. See Note 7. ��Income Taxes.��

(3) During thefourthquarterof 2011, theCompanyrecordeda taxbenefitof $2.0million primarily relatedto thereversalof deferredincometaxvaluationallowancesin

certain foreign jurisdictions.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (Continued)

(In millions, except per share amounts) First

Quarter (1)

Second

Quarter (2)

Third

Quarter (3)

Fourth

Quarter (4)

Year ended December31, 2010
Net sales $ 1,221.8 $ 1,321.3 $ 1,344.9 $ 1,386.5
Cost of goods sold 945.8 1,020.7 1,035.8 1,064.6
Operating income 51.4 66.5 70.8 78.5
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 4.3 53.6 57.3 65.0
Net income from continuing operations 2.6 32.2 32.6 42.1
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net 3.3 2.4 3.9 (10.6 )
Net income $5.9 $34.6 $36.5 $31.5
Income (loss) per share

Basic:
Continuing operations $0.08 $0.95 $0.96 $1.23
Discontinued operations $0.09 $0.07 $0.11 $(0.31 )
Net income $0.17 $1.02 $1.07 $0.92

Diluted:
Continuing operations $0.07 $0.91 $0.92 $1.18
Discontinued operations $0.09 $0.07 $0.11 $(0.30 )
Net income $0.16 $0.98 $1.03 $0.88

Stock price range:
High $48.85 $54.16 $54.99 $61.17
Low $38.42 $41.31 $41.27 $52.10
Close $47.16 $41.90 $54.28 $59.73

(1) During thefirst quarterof 2010,theCompanyrepurchaseda portion of its Notesdue2014whichresultedin therecognitionof a pre-taxlossof $30.5million ($18.9

million, net of tax).

(2) Net incomein the secondquarter includesa foreign exchangegain of $2.1 million ($0.8 million, net of tax) due to the remeasurementof Venezuela��s bolivar-

denominatedbalancesheetat thenewgovernmentrate.During thesecondquarterof 2010,theCompanyrepurchaseda portion of its Notesdue2033whichresulted

in the recognition of a pre-tax gain of $0.8 million ($0.5 million, net of tax).

(3) During third quarterof 2010,theCompanyrepurchaseda portion of its Notesdue2014and2033whichresultedin therecognitionof a pre-taxlossof $2.7million

($1.7 million, net of tax).

(4) During thefourth quarterof 2010,theCompanyrepurchaseda portion of its Notesdue2033whichresultedin therecognitionof a pre-taxgain of $0.5million ($0.3

million, net of tax). Also during the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $1.3 million for the reversal of prior year foreign taxes.

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In February2012,theCompanyappealedto theArizonaCourtof AppealstheMaricopaCountySuperiorCourtjudgmentconfirming
thearbitrationawardrelatedto theRaytheonmatterwhich is discussedin moredetail in Note6. ��CommitmentsandContingencies.��As
part of the appellateprocess,the Companyhaspostedcollateralby tendering$10.0million to Raytheonin cashandpostinga bondin
favor of Raytheonin theamountof $12.4million. In theeventthejudgmentis upheld,Raytheonhasagreedthatpost-judgmentinterest
will not accrueon $10.0million of thejudgmentfrom thedatethat theCompanytenderedthecashcollateral.In theeventthejudgment
is not upheld, the Company will receive a return of the cash and the bond.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNT ANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervisionand the participationof its management,including its principal executiveofficer and principal financial
officer, theCompanyconductedanevaluationasof December30,2011 of theeffectivenessof thedesignandoperationof its disclosure
controlsand procedures,as suchterm is definedunderRule 13a-15(e)promulgatedunder the SecuritiesExchangeAct of 1934,as
amended(��ExchangeAct��). Basedon this evaluation,the principal executiveofficer andthe principal financial officer concludedthat
the Company��s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.

Management����s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company��smanagementis responsiblefor establishingandmaintainingadequateinternalcontrol over financial reporting,as
suchterm is definedin ExchangeAct Rule 13a-15(f).The Company��sinternalcontrol over financial reportingis designedto provide
reasonableassuranceto theCompany��smanagementandboardof directorsregardingthepreparationandfair presentationof published
financialstatements.Becauseof its inherentlimitations,internalcontroloverfinancialreportingmaynotpreventor detectmisstatements.
Therefore,eventhosesystemsdeterminedto be effective can provide only reasonableassurancewith respectto financial statement
preparationandpresentation.Underthesupervisionandwith theparticipationof its management,includingits principalexecutiveofficer
andprincipal financialofficer, theCompanyconductedanevaluationof theeffectivenessof its internalcontrolover financial reporting
basedon the framework in Internal Control �� IntegratedFramework,issuedby the Committeeof SponsoringOrganizationsof the
TreadwayCommission.Basedon the evaluationunderthe frameworkin Internal Control �� IntegratedFramework,the Company��s
management concluded that its internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December30, 2011.

Ernst& Young LLP, an independentregisteredpublic accountingfirm, hasauditedthe consolidatedfinancial statementsof the
Company and the Company��s internal control over financial reporting. The Ernst& Young LLP reports are included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPOR TING

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Anixter International Inc.:

WehaveauditedAnixter InternationalInc.��s(theCompany)internalcontroloverfinancialreportingasof December30,2011, based
oncriteriaestablishedin InternalControl�� IntegratedFrameworkissuedby theCommitteeof SponsoringOrganizationsof theTreadway
Commission(theCOSOcriteria).Anixter InternationalInc.��smanagementis responsiblefor maintainingeffectiveinternalcontrolover
financial reportingandfor its assessmentof theeffectivenessof internalcontrolover financial reportingincludedin theaccompanying
Management��sReporton Internal Control over FinancialReporting.Our responsibilityis to expressan opinion on the Company��s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conductedour audit in accordancewith the standardsof the Public CompanyAccountingOversightBoard (United States).
Thosestandardsrequire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonableassuranceaboutwhethereffective internal control
over financial reportingwasmaintainedin all materialrespects.Our audit includedobtaininganunderstandingof internalcontrolover
financial reporting,assessingthe risk that a materialweaknessexists,testingandevaluatingthe designandoperatingeffectivenessof
internalcontrolbasedon theassessedrisk, andperformingsuchotherproceduresaswe considerednecessaryin thecircumstances.We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company��sinternalcontroloverfinancialreportingis a processdesignedto providereasonableassuranceregardingthereliability
of financialreportingandthepreparationof financialstatementsfor externalpurposesin accordancewith generallyacceptedaccounting
principles. A company��sinternal control over financial reporting includes those policies and proceduresthat (1) pertain to the
maintenanceof recordsthat, in reasonabledetail, accuratelyand fairly reflect the transactionsand dispositionsof the assetsof the
company;(2) providereasonableassurancethat transactionsarerecordedasnecessaryto permit preparationof financial statementsin
accordancewith generallyacceptedaccountingprinciples,andthat receiptsandexpendituresof the companyarebeingmadeonly in
accordancewith authorizationsof managementanddirectorsof thecompany;and(3) providereasonableassuranceregardingprevention
or timely detectionof unauthorizedacquisition,use,or dispositionof the company��sassetsthat could havea materialeffect on the
financial statements.

Becauseof its inherentlimitations,internalcontroloverfinancialreportingmaynotpreventor detectmisstatements.Also,projections
of any evaluationof effectivenessto future periodsaresubjectto the risk that controlsmay becomeinadequatebecauseof changesin
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion,Anixter InternationalInc. maintained,in all materialrespects,effectiveinternalcontroloverfinancialreportingasof
December30, 2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We alsohaveaudited,in accordancewith the standardsof the Public CompanyAccountingOversightBoard(United States),the
consolidatedbalancesheetsof Anixter InternationalInc. asof December30,2011 andDecember31,2010,andtherelatedconsolidated
statementsof operations,stockholders��equityandcashflows for eachof thethreeyearsin theperiodendedDecember30,2011, andour
report dated February27, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST& YOUNG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February27, 2012
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMA TION.

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECT ORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

SeeRegistrant��sProxyStatementfor the2012AnnualMeetingof Stockholders�� ��Electionof Directors,����CorporateGovernance��
and��Section16(a)BeneficialOwnershipReportingCompliance.��TheCompany��sCodeof Ethicsandchangesor waivers,if any, related
thereto are located on the Company��s website at http://www.anixter.com.

Information regarding executive officers is included as a supplemental item at the end of Part I of this Form10-K.

ITEM 11.EXECUTIVE COMPENSA TION.

SeeRegistrant��sProxy Statementfor the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders�� ��CompensationDiscussionand Analysis,��
��Executive Compensation,�� ��Non-Employee Director Compensation,�� and ��Report of the Compensation Committee.��

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MA TTERS.

SeeRegistrant��sProxyStatementfor the2012AnnualMeetingof Stockholders�� ��SecurityOwnershipof Management,����Security
Ownership of Principal Stockholders�� and ��Equity Compensation Plan Information.��

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELA TIONSHIPS AND RELA TED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECT OR INDEPENDENCE.

See Registrant��sProxy Statementfor the 2012 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders�� ��Certain Relationshipsand Related
Transactions�� and ��Corporate Governance.��

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNT ANT FEES AND SERVICES.

See Registrant��s Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders �� ��Independent Auditors and their Fees.��
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PART IV

ITEM 15.EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL ST ATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits.

(1) Financial Statements.

The following ConsolidatedFinancial Statementsof Anixter International Inc. and Report of IndependentRegisteredPublic
Accounting Firm are filed as part of this report.

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 41
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December30, 2011, December31, 2010 and January1, 2010 42
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December30, 2011 and December31, 2010 43
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December30, 2011, December31, 2010 and January1, 2010 44
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders�� Equity for the years ended December30, 2011, December31, 2010 and January1,

2010 45
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 46

(2) Financial Statement Schedules.

The following financial statementschedulesof Anixter InternationalInc. are filed as part of this report and shouldbe readin
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Anixter International Inc.:

Page

I. Condensed financial information of registrant 92
II. Valuation and qualifying accounts and reserves 96

All other schedulesare omitted becausethey are not required,are not applicable,or the requiredinformation is shown in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibit List.

Each management contract or compensation plan required to be filed as an exhibit is identified by an asterisk(*).
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Exhibit No.

Description of

Exhibit

(3) Articles of Incorporation and by-laws.

3.1 RestatedCertificateof Incorporationof Anixter InternationalInc., filed with Secretaryof the Stateof Delawareon
September29,1987andCertificateof Amendmentthereof,filed with theSecretaryof Delawareon August31,1995
(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc.AnnualReportonForm10-K for theyearendedDecember
31, 1995, Exhibit3.1).

3.2 AmendedandRestatedBy-lawsof Anixter InternationalInc. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter International
Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 24, 2012, Exhibit3.1).

(4) Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures.

4.1 Indentureby andamongAnixter Inc., Anixter InternationalInc. andTheBankof New York Mellon TrustCompany,
N.A., asTrustee,with respectto DebtSecuritiesandGuaranteesdatedSeptember6, 1996(Incorporatedby reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Anixter International Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-3, File No. 333-121428).

4.2 First SupplementalIndentureby and amongAnixter Inc., Anixter InternationalInc. and The Bank of New York
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., asTrustee,with respectto Debt SecuritiesandGuaranteesdatedasof February24,
2005(Incorporatedby referenceto Exhibit 99.3to theAnixter InternationalInc. CurrentReporton Form8-K filed
February 25, 2005, File No.001-10212).

4.3 SecondSupplementalIndentureby and amongAnixter Inc., Anixter InternationalInc. and The Bank of New
York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., with respectto Debt Securitiesand Guaranteesdatedas of March 11, 2009
(Incorporatedby referenceto Exhibit 4.1 to theAnixter InternationalInc. CurrentReporton Form8-K filed March
11, 2009, File No. 001-10212).

4.4 Indenturerelatedto the 1% SeniorConvertibleNotesdue 2013,datedas of February16, 2007,betweenAnixter
InternationalInc. and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee(including form of 1% Senior
ConvertibleNotedue2013).(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. CurrentReporton Form8-K
filed on February 16, 2007, Exhibit 4.1).

(10) Material contracts.

10.1 Confirmationof OTCConvertibleNoteHedge,datedFebruary12,2007,from Merrill LynchInternationalto Anixter
InternationalInc. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. CurrentReporton Form 8-K filed on
February 16, 2007, Exhibit 10.2).

10.2 Confirmationof OTC WarrantTransaction,datedFebruary12, 2007, from Merrill Lynch Internationalto Anixter
InternationalInc. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. CurrentReporton Form 8-K filed on
February 16, 2007, Exhibit 10.3).

10.3 PurchaseAgreementbetweenMesirow Realty Sale-Leaseback,Inc. (��Buyer��) and Anixter-Real Estate,Inc., a
subsidiaryof theCompany(��Seller��).(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc., QuarterlyReport
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 2, 2004, Exhibit 10.1).

10.4* Anixter InternationalInc.1989EmployeeStockIncentivePlan.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter International
Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-8, file number 33-38364).
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Exhibit No.

Description of

Exhibit

10.5* Anixter InternationalInc. 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc.
Registration Statement on Form S-8, file number 333-56935, Exhibit 4a).

10.6* Company��sKey ExecutiveEquity Plan,asamendedandrestatedJuly 16,1992.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Itel
Corporation��s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, Exhibit 10.8).

10.7* Company��sDirectorStockOptionPlan.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Itel Corporation��sAnnualReporton Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991, Exhibit 10.24).

10.8* Formof StockOptionAgreement.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Itel Corporation��sAnnualReporton Form10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, Exhibit 10.24).

10.9* Formof Anixter InternationalInc. StockOptionAgreement(Revisedfor grantsmadeto certainemployeesonor after
March 1, 2010).(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. QuarterlyReporton Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended April 2, 2010, Exhibit 10.1).

10.10* Formof IndemnityAgreementwith all directorsandofficers.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter International
Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended October 2, 2009, Exhibit 10.2).

10.11 * Anixter InternationalInc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc.
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995, Exhibit10.26).

10.12* StockOptionTerms.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. AnnualReporton Form10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1995, Exhibit 10.27).

10.13* StockOptionTerms.(EffectiveFebruary17,2010).(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc.Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 2010, Exhibit10.12).

10.14* Anixter Amendedand RestatedExcessBenefit Plan effective January1, 2011. (Incorporatedby referencefrom
Anixter International Inc. on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July1, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

10.15* Formsof Anixter Stock Option, StockholderAgreementand Stock Option Plan. (Incorporatedby referencefrom
Anixter International Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995, Exhibit 10.29).

10.16* Anixter 2005 RestatedDeferredCompensationPlan. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc.
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2, 2009, Exhibit10.14).

10.17* Anixter International2006 Stock IncentivePlan. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006, Exhibit 10.1).

10.18* Anixter International2010 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporatedby referenceto pagesA-1 through A-3 of the
Company��s Proxy Statement filed on April 8, 2010).
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Exhibit No.

Description of

Exhibit

10.19* Anixter InternationalInc. ManagementIncentive Plan effective May 20, 2004. (Incorporatedby referencefrom
Anixter International Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, Exhibit 10.15).

10.20* (a) Anixter InternationalInc. 2001StockIncentivePlan.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc.
Registration Statement on Form S-8, File number 333-103270, Exhibit4a).

(b) First Amendment to the Anixter International Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan effective May 20, 2004.
(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. AnnualReportonForm10-K for theyearendedDecember
31, 2004, Exhibit 10.18).

10.21* Formof Anixter InternationalInc. RestrictedStockUnit GrantAgreement.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter
International Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2, 2009, Exhibit 10.19).

10.22* Form of Anixter InternationalInc. RestrictedStock Unit Grant Agreement(Revisedfor grantsmadeto certain
employeesonor afterMarch1, 2010).(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. QuarterlyReporton
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended April 2, 2010, Exhibit 10.2).

10.23 * Anixter Inc. AmendedandRestatedSupplementalExecutiveRetirementPlanwith RobertW. GrubbsandDennisJ.
Letham,datedJanuary1, 2009.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. Annual Reporton Form
10-K for the year ended January 2, 2009, Exhibit10.20).

10.24 * EmploymentAgreementwith RobertW. Grubbs,datedJanuary1, 2006. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter
International Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.1).

10.25 * (a) EmploymentAgreementwith DennisJ. Letham,datedJanuary1, 2006.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter
International Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 5, 2006, Exhibit 10.2).

(b) FirstAmendmentto theEmploymentAgreementwith DennisJ.Letham,datedDecember23,2008.(Incorporated
by referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. AnnualReportonForm10-K for theyearendedJanuary2, 2009,Exhibit
10.22(b)).

10.26 * SeparationAgreementwith RobertW. Grubbs,Jr., datedMay 13, 2008. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter
International Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2008, Exhibit 10.1).

10.27 Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreementdated April 8, 2011 among Anixter Inc., Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association,as Administrative Agent, and other banksnamedtherein. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter
International Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 14, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).
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Exhibit No.

Description of

Exhibit

10.28 (a) SecondAmendedandRestatedReceivableSaleAgreementdatedMay 31, 2011 betweenAnixter Inc., asSeller,
andAnixter ReceivablesCorporation,asBuyer. (Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter InternationalInc. Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2011, Exhibit 10.1).

(b) SecondAmendedandRestatedReceivablePurchaseAgreementdatedMay 31,2011 amongAnixter Receivables
Corporation,asSeller, Anixter Inc.,asServicer, FalconAssetSecuritizationCompanyLLC andThreePillarsFunding
LLC, as Conduits,the Financial Institution party thereto,JPMorgan ChaseBank, N.A. and SunTrust Robinson
Humphrey, Inc.,asManagingAgentsandJPMorganChase,N.A., asAgent.(Incorporatedby referencefrom Anixter
International Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2011, Exhibit 10.2).

(21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

(23) Consents of experts and counsel.

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

(24) Power of attorney.

24.1 Powerof Attorneyexecutedby Lord JamesBlyth, FredericF. Brace,Linda WalkerBynoe,RobertJ.Eck,RobertW.
Grubbs, F. Philip Handy, Melvyn N. Klein, George Mu–oz, Stuart M. Sloan, Matthew Zell and Samuel Zell.

(31) Rule 13a �� 14(a) /15d �� 14(a) Certifications.

31.1 RobertJ. Eck, PresidentandChief ExecutiveOfficer, CertificationPursuantto Section302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

31.2 TheodoreA. Dosch,ExecutiveVice President-FinanceandChief FinancialOfficer, CertificationPursuantto Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(32) Section 1350 Certifications.

32.1 RobertJ. Eck, PresidentandChief ExecutiveOfficer, CertificationPursuantto 18 U.S.C.Section1350,asadopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 TheodoreA. Dosch,ExecutiveVice President-Financeand Chief FinancialOfficer, Certification Pursuantto 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(101) Extensible Business Reporting Language.

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
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101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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* AttachedasExhibit 101 to this reportarethe following documentsformattedin XBRL (ExtensibleBusinessReportingLanguage):
(i) the ConsolidatedStatementsof Incomefor fiscal yearsendedDecember30, 2011, December31, 2010andJanuary1, 2010,(ii) the
ConsolidatedBalanceSheetsat December30, 2011 andDecember31, 2010(iii) the ConsolidatedStatementsof CashFlows for fiscal
yearsendedDecember30,2011, December31,2010andJanuary1, 2010,(iv) theConsolidatedStatementsof Stockholders��Equity for
fiscalyearsendedDecember30,2011, December31,2010,January1,2010andJanuary2,2009,and(v) Notesto ConsolidatedFinancial
Statementsfor fiscal yearendedDecember30, 2011. Usersof this dataareadvisedpursuantto Rule 406T of RegulationS-T that this
interactivedatafile is deemednot filed or partof a registrationstatementor prospectusfor purposesof sections11 or 12of theSecurities
Act of 1933,is deemednot filed for purposesof section18 of theSecuritiesandExchangeAct of 1934,andotherwiseis not subjectto
liability under these sections.

Copiesof otherinstrumentsdefiningtherightsof holdersof long-termdebtof theCompanyandits subsidiariesnot filed pursuantto
Item601(b)(4)(iii)of RegulationS-K andomittedcopiesof attachmentsto plansandmaterialcontractswill befurnishedto theSecurities
and Exchange Commission upon request.

References made to Anixter International Inc. and Itel Corporation filings can be found at Commission File Number 001-10212.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

SCHEDULE I ���� CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION OF REGISTRANT
ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC. (P ARENT COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

(In millions)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Operating loss $ (4.3 ) $ (4.6 ) $ (4.2 )
Other (expense) income:

Interest expense, including intercompany (16.2 ) (17.3 ) (18.4 )
Other 0.2 1.7 4.2

Loss before income taxes and equity in earnings of subsidiaries (20.3 ) (20.2 ) (18.4 )
Income tax benefit 7.7 7.7 6.7

Loss before equity in earnings of subsidiaries (12.6 ) (12.5 ) (11.7 )
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries 200.8 121.0 (17.6 )

Net income (loss) $ 188.2 $ 108.5 $ (29.3 )

See accompanying note to the condensed financial information of registrant.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

SCHEDULE I ���� CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION OF REGISTRANT
ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC. (P ARENT COMPANY)

BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

ASSETS
Curr ent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $0.4 $0.4
Other assets 0.4 0.5

Total current assets 0.8 0.9
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries 1,284.8 1,328.9
Other assets 1.0 1.9

$1,286.6 $1,331.7

LIABILITIES AND ST OCKHOLDERS ���� EQUITY
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses, due currently $2.3 $2.3
Amounts currently due to affiliates, net 1.9 4.1
Long-term debt 280.4 312.7
Other non-current liabilities 0.8 1.8

Total liabilities 285.4 320.9
Stockholders���� equity:

Common stock 33.2 34.3
Capital surplus 196.5 230.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (85.5 ) (27.8 )
Retained earnings 857.0 774.2

Total stockholders�� equity 1,001.2 1,010.8

$1,286.6 $1,331.7

See accompanying note to the condensed financial information of registrant.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

SCHEDULE I ���� CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION OF REGISTRANT
ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC. (P ARENT COMPANY)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions) Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 188.2 $ 108.5 $(29.3 )
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Dividend from subsidiary 201.3 271.8 125.7
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries (200.8 ) (121.0 ) 17.6
Net gain on retirement of debt (0.1 ) (1.4 ) (3.6 )
Accretion of debt discount 16.6 18.0 19.3
Stock-based compensation 1.6 1.8 1.9
Amortization of deferred financing costs 0.9 0.9 0.8
Intercompany transactions (13.8 ) (0.9 ) (12.4 )
Income tax benefit (7.7 ) (7.7 ) (6.7 )
Changes in assets and liabilities, net 0.1 (2.1 ) (0.3 )

Net cash provided by operating activities 186.3 267.9 113.0
Investing activities �� �� ��

Financing activities:
Purchase of common stock for treasury (107.5 ) (41.2 ) (34.9 )
Retirement of Notes due 2033 �� debt component (48.9 ) (65.6 ) (56.5 )
Retirement of Notes due 2033 �� equity component (44.9 ) (54.0 ) (34.3 )
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 13.4 8.7 2.5
Loans (to) from subsidiaries, net 2.5 (5.0 ) 11.0
Payment of cash dividend (0.9 ) (111.0 ) (0.3 )

Net cash used in financing activities (186.3 ) (268.1 ) (112.5 )

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents �� (0.2 ) 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 0.4 0.6 0.1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 0.4 $ 0.4 $0.6

See accompanying note to the condensed financial information of registrant.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

SCHEDULE I ���� CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION OF REGISTRANT
ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC. (P ARENT COMPANY)

NOTE TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION OF REGISTRANT

Note A ���� Basis of Presentation

In the parentcompanycondensedfinancial statements,the Company��sinvestmentin subsidiariesis statedat costplus equity in
undistributedearningsof subsidiariessincethedateof acquisition.TheCompany��sshareof netincomeof its unconsolidatedsubsidiaries
is includedin consolidatedincomeusingtheequitymethod.Theparentcompanyfinancialstatementsshouldbereadin conjunctionwith
the Company��s consolidated financial statements.
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ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

SCHEDULE II ���� VALUA TION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESER VES

Years ended December30, 2011, December31, 2010 and January1, 2010

(In millions)

Balanceat

beginningof

the period

Charged

to income

Charged

to other

accounts Deductions

Balanceat

end of

the period

Description

Year ended December30, 2011:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 23.7 $ 8.0 $ (2.7) $ (9.5) $ 19.5
Allowance for deferred tax asset $18.8 $(17.3 ) $18.8 $�� $20.3

Year ended December31, 2010:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $24.8 $12.8 $(0.4 ) $(13.5 ) $23.7
Allowance for deferred tax asset $18.7 $1.7 $(1.6 ) $�� $18.8

Year ended January1, 2010:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $29.4 $11.7 $0.2 $(16.5 ) $24.8
Allowance for deferred tax asset $13.8 $(6.6 ) $11.5 $�� $18.7
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirementsof Section13 or 15(d) of the SecuritiesExchangeAct of 1934,the Registrant hasduly caused
this report to be signedon its behalf by the undersigned,thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Glenview, Stateof Illinois, on
the 27th day of February 2012.

ANIXTER INTERNATIONAL INC.

By: /s/ Theodore A. Dosch

Theodore A. Dosch
Executive Vice President-Finance

and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuantto therequirementsof theSecuritiesExchangeAct of 1934,this reporthasbeensignedbelowby thefollowing personson
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Robert J. Eck

Robert J. Eck

President and Chief Executive
Officer (PrincipalExecutiveOfficer)

February27, 2012

/s/ Theodore A. Dosch

Theodore A. Dosch

ExecutiveVicePresident��Finance (Principal
Financial Officer)

February27, 2012

/s/ Terrance A. Faber

Terrance A. Faber

Vice President �� Controller (Principal
Accounting Officer)

February27, 2012

/s/ Lord James Blyth*

Lord James Blyth

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Frederic F. Brace*

Frederic F. Brace

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Linda Walker Bynoe*

Linda Walker Bynoe

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Robert J. Eck

Robert J. Eck

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Robert W. Grubbs*

Robert W. Grubbs

Director February27, 2012

/s/ F. Philip Handy*

F. Philip Handy

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Melvyn N. Klein*

Melvyn N. Klein

Director February27, 2012

/s/ George Mu–oz*

George Mu–oz

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Stuart M. Sloan*

Stuart M. Sloan

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Matthew Zell*

Matthew Zell

Director February27, 2012

/s/ Samuel Zell* Director February27, 2012
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Samuel Zell

*BY /s/ TheodoreA. Dosch

TheodoreA. Dosch(Attorneyin fact)
TheodoreA. Dosch,asattorneyin fact for eachpersonindicated
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

EXHIBIT 21.1

Anixter International Inc.
List of Subsidiaries as of December30, 2011

Company

Name

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation

Anixter Inc. Delaware
Accu-Tech Corporation Georgia
Anixter Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia

ALLNET Technologies Pty. Ltd. Australia
Anixter (Barbados) SRL Barbados
Anixter Cables y Manufacturas, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Anixter Chile S.A. Chile
Anixter Colombia S.A.S. Colombia
Anixter Costa Rica S.A. Costa Rica
Anixter do Brasil Ltda. Brazil
Anixter Dominicana, SRL DominicanRepublic
Anixter Information Systems Corporation Illinois
Anixter Jamaica Limited Jamaica
Anixter New Zealand Limited NewZealand
Anixter Panama, S.A. Panama
Anixter Peru, S.A.C. Peru
Anixter Philippines Inc. Delaware
Anixter Procurement Corporation Illinois
Anixter Puerto Rico, Inc. Delaware
Anixter Real-Estate Inc. Illinois
Anixter Receivables Corporation Delaware
Anixter Venezuela Inc. Delaware
Anixter Financial Inc. Delaware

Anixter Communications (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia
Anixter India Private Limited India
Anixter Japan KK Japan
Anixter Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Anixter Thailand Inc. Delaware
Anixter Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong

Anixter Communications (Shanghai) Co. Limited China
Anixter Holdings, Inc. Delaware

Anixter Argentina S.A. Argentina
Servicios Anixter, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
XpressConnect Supply Inc. Delaware

Anixter (CIS) LLC Russia
Anixter U.S. LLC Delaware
Anixter Canada Inc. Canada

Anixter Canadian Holdings ULC Canada
WireXpress Ltd. Canada
Anixter Holdings Mexico LLC Delaware
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Anixter de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Company

Name

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation

Anixter Fasteners de Mexico, S de RL de CV Mexico
Anixter Logistica y Servicios S.A. de C.V. Mexico
XpressConnect Supply Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico
Eskanet S.A. Uruguay
Anixter Soluciones Industriales S.A.C. Peru

Eurinvest Cooperatief U.A. The Netherlands
Eurinvest B.V. The Netherlands

Anixter Belgium B.V.B.A. Belgium
Anixter Espa–a S.L. Spain
Anixter Fasteners Deutschland GmbH Germany

Anixter Bulgaria EOOD (formerly Camille Gergen Bulgaria EOOD) Bulgaria
Anixter France SARL France

GU-GE Xing Fasteners Trade Co., Ltd. Shanghai China
Anixter Italia S.r.l. Italy

AGL Logistic System S.r.l. Italy
Anixter Morocco SARL AU Morocco
Anixter Nederland B.V. The Netherlands
Anixter Switzerland Sˆrl Switzerland
XpressConnect Holdings B.V. The Netherlands
XpressConnect International B.V. The Netherlands

XpressConnect Supply do Brasil Ltda Brazil
XpressConnect Supply B.V.B.A. Belgium
XpressConnect Supply Colombia S.A.S. Colombia
Xpress Connect Supply Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong

Anixter International Limited United Kingdom
Anixter Holdings Unlimited United Kingdom
Anixter Limited United Kingdom

Anixter Distribution Ireland Limited Ireland
Anixter Pension Trustees Limited United Kingdom
Anixter (U.K.) Limited United Kingdom
Total Supply Solutions Limited United Kingdom

Component Logistics s.r.o Czech Republic
W H Fluidpower Limited United Kingdom

Anixter Middle East FZE UnitedArabEmirates
Eagerport Limited United Kingdom
Infast Group Limited United Kingdom

Haden Drysys S.A. Spain
HMH Pension Trustees Limited United Kingdom
HMH Fasteners Limited United Kingdom

Industrial Fastener Supplies United Kingdom
Infast Subsidiary No.2 Limited United Kingdom

B.E.L. Corporation Delaware
Anixter Eurotwo Holdings B.V. The Netherlands

Anixter Danmark A/S Denmark
Anixter Deutschland GmbH. Germany
Anixter Hungary Ltd. Hungary

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


- 2 -

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Company

Name

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation

Anixter Iletisim Sistemleri Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.S. Turkey
Anixter Greece Network Systems One Shareholder L.L.C. Greece
Anixter Norge A.N.S. Norway
Anixter Poland Sp.z.o.o. Poland
Anixter Portugal S.A. Portugal
Anixter Sverige AB Sweden
Anixter Austria GmbH Austria

Anixter Czech a.s. Czech Republic
Anixter Slovakia s.r.o. Slovak Republic

Clark Security Products Inc. Delaware
GL Acquisition Corporation Delaware
PT Anixter Indonesia Indonesia

Itel Corporation Delaware
Itel Container Ventures Inc. Delaware

ICV GP Inc. Delaware
Itel Rail Holdings Corporation Delaware

Green Bay& Western Railroad Company Wisconsin
Michigan& Western Railroad Company Michigan

Rex Railways, Inc. New Jersey
Signal Capital Corporation Delaware

Richdale, Ltd. Delaware
Signal Capital Projects, Inc. Delaware

- 3 -
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in each of the following Registration Statements of Anixter International Inc. and in the
related Prospectuses:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.33-13486) pertaining to the 1987 Key Executive Equity Plan,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.33-38364) pertaining to the 1989 Employee Stock Incentive Plan,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.333-05907) pertaining to the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.333-56935) pertaining to the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan,

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.333-103270) pertaining to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan,

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.333-145318) pertaining to the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan,

(7) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No.333-172505) pertaining to the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan;

of our reports dated February27, 2012, with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedules of Anixter International Inc.
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Anixter International Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form
10-K) for the fiscal year ended December30, 2011.

/s/ Ernst& Young LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February27, 2012
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EXHIBIT 24.1

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned director and/or officer of Anixter International Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the ��Corporation��), which is about to file an annual report pursuant to Section13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, on Form 10-K, hereby constitutes and appoints Ted Dosch and Terry Faber, and each of them as his
or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power and all capacities, to sign the Corporation��s Form 10-K and any and
all amendments thereto, and any other documents in connection therewith, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and
necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as she or he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact agents or their substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his or her hand and seal as of the27thday of February, 2012.

/s/ Lord James Blyth /s/ Melvyn N. Klein

Lord James Blyth Melvyn N. Klein

/s/ Frederic F. Brace /s/ George Mu–oz

Frederic F. Brace George Mu–oz

/s/ Linda Walker Bynoe /s/ Stuart M. Sloan

Linda Walker Bynoe Stuart M. Sloan

/s/ Robert J. Eck /s/ Matthew Zell

Robert J. Eck Matthew Zell

/s/ Robert W. Grubbs /s/ Samuel Zell

Robert W. Grubbs Samuel Zell

/s/ F. Philip Handy

F. Philip Handy
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EXHIBIT 31.1

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CER TIFICA TION

I, Robert J. Eck, certify that:

(1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Anixter International Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

(4) The registrant��s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant��s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant��s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant��s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant��s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant��s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant��s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant��s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant��s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant��s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant��s internal control over financial reporting.

February27, 2012 /s/ Robert J. Eck

Robert J. Eck
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT ���� FINANCE AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CER TIFICA TION

I, Theodore A. Dosch, certify that:

(1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Anixter International Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

(4) The registrant��s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant��s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant��s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant��s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant��s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant��s internal control over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant��s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant��s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant��s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant��s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant��s internal control over financial reporting.

February27, 2012 /s/ Theodore A. Dosch

Theodore A. Dosch
Executive Vice President-Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICA TION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Anixter International Inc. (the ��Company��) on Form 10-K for the period ending
December30, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the ��Report��) I, Robert J. Eck, President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ Robert J. Eck

Robert J. Eck
President and Chief Executive Officer
February27, 2012
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICA TION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of Anixter International Inc. (the ��Company��) on Form 10-K for the period ending
December30, 2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (��the Report��) I, Theodore A. Dosch,
Executive Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ Theodore A. Dosch

Theodore A. Dosch
Executive Vice President-Finance
and Chief Financial Officer
February 27, 2012
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Accrued Expenses (Details)
(USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010

Accrued expenses
Salaries and fringe benefits $ 102.5 $ 92.5
Other accrued expenses 214.9 123.0
Total accrued expenses $ 317.4 $ 215.5
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12 Months
EndedPension Plans, Post-

Retirement Benefits and
Other Benefits (Details) Dec. 30, 2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 100.00% 100.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Target, Total 100.00%
Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation Guidelines, Target, Total 100.00%
Equity Securities [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 65.90% 67.10%
Allocation Guidelines, Target 70.00%
Equity Securities [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 43.30% 46.20%
Allocation Guidelines, Target 49.00%
Fixed Income Investments [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 29.90% 30.30%
Allocation Guidelines, Fixed income investments, Minimum 25.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Fixed income investments, Target 30.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Fixed income investments, Maximum 35.00%
Fixed Income Investments [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 48.70% 44.90%
Allocation Guidelines, Fixed income investments, Target 43.00%
Other Investments [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 4.20% 2.60%
Other Investments [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 8.00% 8.90%
Allocation Guidelines, Other investments, Target 8.00%
Large capitalization U.S. stocks [Member] | Equity Securities [Member] | Pension
Plans, Domestic [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 32.80% 33.20%
Allocation Guidelines, Minimum 20.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Target 30.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Maximum 40.00%
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Small capitalization U.S. stocks [Member] | Equity Securities [Member] | Pension
Plans, Domestic [Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 16.80% 17.30%
Allocation Guidelines, Minimum 15.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Target 20.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Maximum 25.00%
International stocks [Member] | Equity Securities [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic
[Member]
Allocation of Plan Assets
Allocation of Plan Assets 16.30% 16.60%
Allocation Guidelines, Minimum 15.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Target 20.00%
Allocation Guidelines, Maximum 25.00%
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1 Months Ended 3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedCommitments and
Contingencies (Details

Textual) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Jan. 29, 2010
May
31,

2009

Dec.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Commitments and Contingencies
(Textual) [Abstract]
Rental expense

$ 82.1
$
76.4

$
78.2

Aggregate future minimum rentals to be
received under non-cancelable subleases

1.7 1.7

Claim for damages made by Raytheon 26
Interim award against the company by the
arbitration panel

20.8 20.8

Interest Cost associated with unfavorable
arbitration ruling

10.00%

Fees and arbitration proceeding costs 1.5
Pre-tax charge 20.0
Amended complaint seeks unspecified
damages on behalf of persons who
purchased common stock

between January
29 and October
20, 2008

Operating Leases expiration various
dates
through
2027

Additional amount recorded in
discontinued operations

$ 2.5 $ 9.3 $ 0.9
$
(18.8)
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3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedSummarized Financial
Information of Anixter , Inc.

(Details 1) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Apr.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Oct.
01,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Apr.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS
Net sales $

1,499.0
$
1,611.8

$
1,565.3

$
1,470.8

$
1,386.5

$
1,344.9

$
1,321.3

$
1,221.8

$
6,146.9

$
5,274.5

$
4,779.6

Operating income 91.6 101.7 92.0 77.5 78.5 70.8 66.5 51.4 362.8 267.2 84.8
(Loss) income from
discontinued operations, net of
tax

(1.5) (18.1) 3.7 3.4 (10.6) 3.9 2.4 3.3 (12.5) (1.0) 12.1

Net income (loss) 48.3 43.5 52.1 44.3 31.5 36.5 34.6 5.9 188.2 108.5 (29.3)
Anixter Inc. [Member]
CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS
Net sales 6,146.95,274.54,779.6
Operating income 368.3 273.0 90.5
Income from continuing
operations before income taxes

328.0 204.2 21.1

(Loss) income from
discontinued operations, net of
tax

(12.5) (1.0) 12.1

Net income (loss)
$ 203.3$ 123.2

$
(15.4)
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12 Months EndedPension Plans, Post-
Retirement Benefits and
Other Benefits (Details 1)

(USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Jan. 01,
2010

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Beginning balance $ 400.0 $ 373.8
Service cost 12.3 10.8 10.6
Interest cost 21.7 21.5 19.6
Plan participants contributions 0.4 0.3
Actuarial loss (gain) 60.8 9.2
Benefits paid (12.4) (11.7)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (2.0) (4.5)
Other (0.3) 0.6
Ending balance 480.5 400.0 373.8
Change in plan assets at fair value:
Beginning balance 313.8 276.8
Actual (loss) return on plan assets 14.8 34.9
Company contributions 20.2 16.9
Plan participants contributions 0.4 0.3
Benefits paid (12.4) (11.7)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (1.7) (3.4)
Ending balance 335.1 313.8 276.8
Reconciliation of funded status:
Projected benefit obligation (480.5) (400.0) (373.8)
Plan assets at fair value 335.1 313.8 276.8
Funded status (145.4) (86.2)
Noncurrent asset Long-term asset 5.3 2.0
Current liability (0.8) (0.6)
Noncurrent liability (149.9) (87.6)
Funded status (145.4) (86.2)
Weighted-average assumptions used for measurement of the projected
benefit obligation:
Discount rate 4.56% 5.49%
Salary growth rate 3.57% 3.76%
Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Beginning balance 225.4 197.9
Service cost 7.0 6.1 6.6
Interest cost 12.0 11.6 11.0
Plan participants contributions
Actuarial loss (gain) 49.7 15.3
Benefits paid (6.1) (6.1)
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Foreign currency exchange rate changes
Other (0.3) 0.6
Ending balance 287.7 225.4 197.9
Change in plan assets at fair value:
Beginning balance 148.0 127.3
Actual (loss) return on plan assets 5.7 19.9
Company contributions 10.4 6.9
Plan participants contributions
Benefits paid (6.1) (6.1)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes
Ending balance 158.0 148.0 127.3
Reconciliation of funded status:
Projected benefit obligation (287.7) (225.4) (197.9)
Plan assets at fair value 158.0 148.0 127.3
Funded status (129.7) (77.4)
Noncurrent asset Long-term asset 0 0
Current liability (0.8) (0.6)
Noncurrent liability (128.9) (76.8)
Funded status (129.7) (77.4)
Weighted-average assumptions used for measurement of the projected
benefit obligation:
Discount rate 4.37% 5.53%
Salary growth rate 3.90% 3.91%
Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Beginning balance 174.6 175.9
Service cost 5.3 4.7 4.0
Interest cost 9.7 9.9 8.6
Plan participants contributions 0.4 0.3
Actuarial loss (gain) 11.1 (6.1)
Benefits paid (6.3) (5.6)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (2.0) (4.5)
Ending balance 192.8 174.6 175.9
Change in plan assets at fair value:
Beginning balance 165.8 149.5
Actual (loss) return on plan assets 9.1 15.0
Company contributions 9.8 10.0
Plan participants contributions 0.4 0.3
Benefits paid (6.3) (5.6)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (1.7) (3.4)
Ending balance 177.1 165.8 149.5
Reconciliation of funded status:
Projected benefit obligation (192.8) (174.6) (175.9)
Plan assets at fair value 177.1 165.8 149.5
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Funded status (15.7) (8.8)
Noncurrent asset Long-term asset 5.3 2.0
Current liability 0 0
Noncurrent liability (21.0) (10.8)
Funded status $ (15.7) $ (8.8)
Weighted-average assumptions used for measurement of the projected
benefit obligation:
Discount rate 4.84% 5.43%
Salary growth rate 3.13% 3.57%
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12 Months EndedValuation and Qualifying
Accounts and Reserves

(Details) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010Jan. 01, 2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts [Member]
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves
Balance at beginning of the period $ 23.7 $ 24.8 $ 29.4
Charged to income 8.0 12.8 11.7
Charged to other accounts (2.7) (0.4) 0.2
Deductions (9.5) (13.5) (16.5)
Balance at end of the period 19.5 23.7 24.8
Allowance for deferred tax asset [Member]
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves
Balance at beginning of the period 18.8 18.7 13.8
Charged to income (17.3) 1.7 (6.6)
Charged to other accounts 18.8 (1.6) 11.5
Balance at end of the period $ 20.3 $ 18.8 $ 18.7
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12 Months Ended 3 Months Ended 12 Months Ended 12 Months Ended
12 Months

Ended
12 Months Ended 12 Months Ended

Debt (Details Textual) (USD
$) Dec. 30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2011
Dec. 31, 2010

Jan. 01,
2010

Dec. 30,
2011

Minimum
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Maximum
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Convertible
notes due

2033
[Member]

Jul. 02,
2010

Convertible
notes due

2033
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Convertible
notes due

2033
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Convertible
notes due

2033
[Member]

Jan. 01,
2010

Convertible
notes due

2033
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011
10%

Senior
Notes Due

2014
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010
10%

Senior
Notes Due

2014
[Member]

Jan. 01,
2010
10%

Senior
Notes Due

2014
[Member]

Mar. 31,
2009
10%

Senior
Notes Due

2014
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Convertible
senior

notes due
2013

[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Convertible
senior

notes due
2013

[Member]

Feb. 28,
2007

Convertible
senior

notes due
2013

[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Senior
notes due

2015
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Senior
notes due

2015
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Senior
notes due

2014
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Senior
notes due

2014
[Member]

Dec. 30, 2011
Accounts
receivable

securitization
facility

[Member]

Dec. 31, 2010
Accounts
receivable

securitization
facility

[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Revolving
Lines of
Credit

Agreement
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Revolving
Lines of
Credit

Agreement
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Revolving
lines of

credit and
other

[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Revolving
lines of

credit and
other

[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

3.25%
Convertible
Notes Due

2033
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Fixed Rate
Debt

[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Fixed Rate
Debt

[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Variable
Rate Debt
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Variable
Rate Debt
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Parent
Company
[Member]

Dec. 31,
2010

Parent
Company
[Member]

Jan. 01,
2010

Parent
Company
[Member]

Line of Credit Facility [Line
Items]
Retirement of Notes due 2033
in stock

$
14,900,000

Reduction of accreted value of
convertible debt, debt
component

48,900,000 200,700,00083,700,000

Retired amount of Senior
Notes due

165,500,000 26,500,000 119,600,00090,800,000 165,500,00027,700,000

Retired remaining 10% Senior
Notes due 2014

1,200,000

Maximum trading days for
surrendering securities for
conversion

30 days

Minimum period for security
conversion for corporate
transactions before effective
date of transaction

15 days

Average daily conversion
values conversion period

20 days

Conversion rate adjustments
distribution expiry

45 days

Period of conversion for
trading price of notes

5 days

Debt instrument, Maturity
Date

Mar. 15,
2014

Committed, unused available
credit lines

313,000,000

Line of credit facility, Amount
outstanding

111,000,000131,100,000120,400,000145,400,000

Line of Credit Facility
Maximum Borrowing
Capacity

275,000,000 200,000,000 400,000,000

Size of the credit facility after
amendment

275,000,000

Amount that can be distributed 152,700,000
Debt instrument, issuance date
description

March 2009

Unused capacity fees,
utilization dependent low
range

0.45% 0.55%

Debt instrument, face amount 200,000,0001,000 300,000,000200,000,000 48,500,000 583,200,000672,800,000
Debt instrument, interest rate 3.25% 10.00% 1.00% 5.95% 10.00%
Unused capacity fees,
utilization dependent high
range

0.575% 0.60%

Basis spread added to base
reference funding cost to
compute interest rate

90.00% 115.00%

Minimum trading days for
surrendering securities for
conversion

20 days

Minimum rate of sale of
common stock on conversion
price per share for
surrendering securities for
conversion

130.00%

Maximum rate of trading price
on closing price of common
stock for conversion on trading
price

98.00%

Loss on retirement of debt 31,900,000 1,100,000 (500,000) (800,000) 180,400,000 (100,000) (1,400,000)(3,600,000)
Minimum rate of sale price of
common stock for security
conversion during distributions

15.00%

Debt conversion converted
instrument rate shares

16.727

Adjusted conversion rate,
shares

5,000,000

Long-term Debt 806,800,000 688,700,000 48,500,000 0 48,500,000 31,100,00030,600,000 280,300,000264,200,000 200,000,000200,000,00031,100,00030,600,000175,000,000 0 120,400,000145,400,000100,200,000511,400,000543,300,000298,400,000348,800,000
Debt instrument, conversion
trigger price

$ 59.78

Call options, exercise price $ 59.78
Retirement of Notes 93,800,000 67,000,000 60,100,000 133,700,00023,600,000
Debt instrument frequency of
interest payment

payable
semi-
annually on
March 1
and
September
1 of each
year

Retirement of Convertible
Notes due 2033 - equity
component

44,900,000 54,000,000 34,300,000

Debt (Textual) [Abstract]
Annual maturities of debt,
current year

3,000,000

Annual maturities of debt, year
two

455,800,000

Annual maturities of debt, year
three

31,100,000

Annual maturities of debt, year
four

200,000,000

Annual maturities of debt, year
five

119,900,000

Long-term debt, fair value 881,600,000 1,021,600,000
Long-term debt, interest paid31,600,000 36,400,000 37,200,000
Long-term debt, weighted
average amount outstanding

988,000,000 845,000,000

Weighted-average cost of
borrowings

5.10% 6.30% 6.70%

Current leverage ratio
applicable margin

2.00%

Line of credit facility,
borrowings

111,000,000131,100,000120,400,000145,400,000

Long term borrowings
maturity period

12 months

Revolving lines of credit,
maturity date description

April 2016

Long term borrowings under
other bank revolving lines of
credit

9,400,000

Consolidated fixed charge
coverage ratio

451.00%

Lines of credit agreement,
fixed charge coverage ratio

250.00%

Consolidated leverage ratio
maximum limit

325.00%

Consolidated leverage ratio 135.00%
Base reference amount added
to specified percent of
company's cumulative net
income to compute
requirement of debt instrument
covenant

175,000,000

Percent of company's
cumulative net income added
to base reference amount to
compute requirement of debt
instrument covenant

50.00%

Purchases of common stock
for treasury

107,500,000 41,200,000 34,900,000 107,500,00041,200,00034,900,000

Proforma leverage ratio 275.00%
Minimum unrestricted
domestic cash balance plus
availability under revolving
credit agreement and accounts
receivable securitization
facility

175,000,000

Long-term borrowings under
other miscellaneous facilities

14,300,000

Yield to maturity rate of senior
notes

12.00%

Rate of redemption of senior
notes

35.00%

Redemption price rate on
principal amount

110.00%

Amortization of discount
commission and expenses

4,800,000

Short-term debt 3,000,000 203,400,000
Receivables Sold 524,600,000 407,800,000
Debt issuance costs 4,200,000 300,000 6,700,000
Short-term debt, average
outstanding amount

175,000,000

Exercise price of warrants $ 77.98
Purchase of call options,
common stock coverage,
shares

5,000,000

Warrants, shares adjusted 5,000,000
Debt conversion converted
instrument rate Per share

$ 77.71

Carrying amount of liabilities,
consolidated VIE

175,000,000 200,000,000

Liquidity termination date of
the program

May
2013

Former program maturity dateJuly 2011
Number of shares to be
convertible for principal slab
amount

16.727

Principal slab amount for
conversion of shares

$ 1,000
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12 Months EndedSummarized Financial
Information of Anixter , Inc.

(Tables) Dec. 30, 2011

Summarized Financial Information
Of Subsidiary [Abstract]
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEETS

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Assets:
Current assets(a) $ 2,404.0 $ 2,309.1
Property, equipment and capital leases, net 102.3 98.3
Goodwill 351.7 355.3
Other assets 190.2 187.0

$3,048.2 $2,949.7

Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity:
Current liabilities(a) $1,023.3 $1,069.0
Subordinated notes payable to parent 6.0 8.5
Long-term debt 543.9 394.3
Other liabilities 198.2 159.1
Stockholder's equity 1,276.8 1,318.8

$3,048.2 $2,949.7

(a) Includesassetsandliabilities relatedto discontinuedoperationsof $186.8and$14.6,
respectively, at December31, 2010 (see Note 4. "Discontinued Operations.")

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Net sales $ 6,146.9 $ 5,274.5 $ 4,779.6
Operating income $368.3 $273.0 $90.5
Income from continuing operations

before income taxes $328.0 $204.2 $21.1
Net (loss) income from discontinued

operations $(12.5 ) $(1.0 ) $12.1
Net income (loss) $203.3 $123.2 $(15.4 )
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1
Months
Ended

3 Months Ended
12 Months

Ended
3 Months Ended

12
Months
EndedSelected Quarterly Financial

Data (Details Textual) (USD
$)

In Millions, except Per Share
data, unless otherwise

specified

Sep.
23,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Feb.
17,

2012

Dec. 31,
2010

Convertible
notes due

2033
[Member]

Jul. 02,
2010

Convertible
notes due

2033
[Member]

Apr. 02,
2010

Convertible
Notes Due

2014
[Member]

Oct. 01,
2010

Convertible
Notes Due
2014 and

2033
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Europe
[Member]

Schedule Of Quarterly
Financial Information [Line
Items]
Pre-tax gain / (loss) related to
retirement of notes

$
(31.9)

$
(1.1)

$ 0.5 $ 0.8 $ 30.5 $ 2.7

Net of tax related to retirement
of notes

0.3 0.5 18.9 1.7

Pre tax restructuring charges 5.3 5.3
Selected Quarterly Financial
Data (Textual) [Abstract]
Dividend declared per
common share

$ 3.25
$
3.25

Dividend declared on common
stock ($3.25 per share)

113.7 113.7

Number of stockholders 2,209
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
due to the repatriation of cash
and remeasurement value

2.1 7.1 2.1 13.8

Foreign currency exchange
rate repatriation of cash
remeasurement value, net of
tax

0.8

Tax benefit 2.0 8.8 (11.3) (4.5)
Tax benefit expense associated
with reversal of prior year
foreign taxes

$ 1.3
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Pension Plans, Post-
Retirement Benefits and
Other Benefits (Details 3)

(USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Jan. 01,
2010

Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value $ 335.1 $ 313.8 $ 276.8
Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 158.0 148.0 127.3
Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 177.1 165.8 149.5
Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 119.2
Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 116.7
Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 2.5
Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 215.9
Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 41.3
Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 174.6
Cash and short-term investments [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 8.0
Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 6.6
Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 1.4
Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 8.0
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Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 6.6
Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 1.4
Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Cash and short-term investments [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Equity Securities Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 109.2
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 78.4
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 30.8
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 78.5
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 78.4
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.1
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 30.7
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
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Plan assets at fair value 0
Equity Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 30.7
Equity Securities International [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 71.5
Equity Securities International [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 25.7
Equity Securities International [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 45.8
Equity Securities International [Member] | Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Equity Securities International [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Equity Securities International [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Equity Securities International [Member] | Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 71.5
Equity Securities International [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 25.7
Equity Securities International [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans,
Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 45.8
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 98.8
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 32.7
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
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Plan assets at fair value 66.1
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 32.2
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension
Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 31.7
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension
Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.5
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 66.6
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension
Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 1.0
Fixed Income Securities Domestic [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension
Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 65.6
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 34.9
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 14.6
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 20.3
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.4
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Level 1 [Member] |
Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Level 1 [Member] |
Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.4
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Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 34.5
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Level 2 [Member] |
Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 14.6
Fixed Income Securities Corporate bonds [Member] | Level 2 [Member] |
Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 19.9
Insurance funds [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 12.2
Insurance funds [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Insurance funds [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 12.2
Insurance funds [Member] | Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Insurance funds [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Insurance funds [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Insurance funds [Member] | Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 12.2
Insurance funds [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Insurance funds [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 12.2
Other [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.5
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Other [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Other [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.5
Other [Member] | Level 1 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.1
Other [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Other [Member] | Level 1 [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.1
Other [Member] | Level 2 [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0.4
Other [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value 0
Other [Member] | Level 2 [Member] | Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Defined Benefit Plan Disclosure [Line Items]
Plan assets at fair value $ 0.4
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Condensed Financial
Information of Registrant
Anixter International Inc.
(Parent Company) (Details

1) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010Jan. 01, 2010Jan. 02, 2009

Curr ent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 106.1 $ 78.4 $ 111.5 $ 65.3
Other assets 37.4 50.2
Total current assets 2,402.9 2,305.9
Other assets 191.1 188.9
Total assets 3,034.0 2,933.3 2,671.7
Liabilities:
Long-term debt 806.8 688.7
Other non-current liabilities 199.1 161.0
Total liabilities 2,032.8 1,922.5
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock 33.2 34.3
Capital surplus 196.5 230.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (85.5) (27.8)
Retained earnings 857.0 774.2
Total stockholders' equity 1,001.2 1,010.8 1,024.1 1,072.8
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 3,034.0 2,933.3
Parent Company [Member]
Curr ent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 0.4 0.4 0.6 0.1
Other assets 0.4 0.5
Total current assets 0.8 0.9
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries 1,284.8 1,328.9
Other assets 1.0 1.9
Total assets 1,286.6 1,331.7
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, due currently2.3 2.3
Amounts currently due to affiliates, net 1.9 4.1
Long-term debt 280.4 312.7
Other non-current liabilities 0.8 1.8
Total liabilities 285.4 320.9
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock 33.2 34.3
Capital surplus 196.5 230.1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (85.5) (27.8)
Retained earnings 857.0 774.2
Total stockholders' equity 1,001.2 1,010.8
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Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,286.6 $ 1,331.7
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3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedCondensed Financial
Information of Registrant
Anixter International Inc.
(Parent Company) (Details

2) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Apr.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Oct.
01,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Apr.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $

48.3
$
43.5

$
52.1

$
44.3

$
31.5

$
36.5

$
34.6

$ 5.9
$
188.2

$
108.5

$
(29.3)

Adjustments to reconcile net
income(loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Loss on retirement of debt 31.9 1.1
Accretion of debt discount 17.1 18.8 21.1
Stock-based compensation 11.1 16.7 15.2
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2.5 2.7 2.9
Income tax expense 102.8 70.7 39.8
Net cash provided by operating activities 144.4 195.2 440.9
Investing activities 118.8 (56.0) (23.7)
Financing activities:
Purchases of common stock for treasury (107.5)(41.2) (34.9)
Retirement of Convertible Notes due
2033 - debt component

(48.9) (65.6) (56.5)

Retirement of Convertible Notes due
2033 - equity component

(44.9) (54.0) (34.3)

Payment of cash dividend (0.9) (111.0)(0.3)
Net cash used in financing activities (235.5)(172.3)(371.0)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

27.7 (33.1) 46.2

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period

78.4 111.5 78.4 111.5 65.3

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period

106.1 78.4 106.1 78.4 111.5

Parent Company [Member]
Operating activities:
Net income (loss) 188.2 108.5 (29.3)
Adjustments to reconcile net
income(loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Dividend from subsidiary 201.3 271.8 125.7
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries (200.8)(121.0)17.6
Loss on retirement of debt (0.1) (1.4) (3.6)
Accretion of debt discount 16.6 18.0 19.3
Stock-based compensation 1.6 1.8 1.9
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Amortization of deferred financing costs 0.9 0.9 0.8
Intercompany transactions (13.8) (0.9) (12.4)
Income tax expense (7.7) (7.7) (6.7)
Changes in current assets and liabilities,
net

0.1 (2.1) (0.3)

Net cash provided by operating activities 186.3 267.9 113.0
Investing activities 0 0 0
Financing activities:
Purchases of common stock for treasury (107.5)(41.2) (34.9)
Retirement of Convertible Notes due
2033 - debt component

(48.9) (65.6) (56.5)

Retirement of Convertible Notes due
2033 - equity component

(44.9) (54.0) (34.3)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 13.4 8.7 2.5
Loans (to) from subsidiaries, net 2.5 (5.0) 11.0
Payment of cash dividend (0.9) (111.0)(0.3)
Net cash used in financing activities (186.3)(268.1)(112.5)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

0 (0.2) 0.5

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period

0.4 0.6 0.4 0.6 0.1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period

$ 0.4 $ 0.4 $ 0.4 $ 0.4 $ 0.6
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12 Months EndedSummarized Financial
Information of Anixter , Inc.

(Details Textual) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 31, 2010
Dec.
30,

2011

Description of guarantees
given by parent company

The Company guarantees, fully and unconditionally, substantially all of the debt of its
subsidiaries, which include Anixter Inc. The Company has no independent assets or
operations and all subsidiaries other than Anixter Inc. are minor.

Assets of discontinued
operations

$ 186.8 $ 0

Liabilities of discontinued
operations

14.6 0

Parent Company [Member]
Assets of discontinued
operations

186.8

Liabilities of discontinued
operations

$
14.6
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12 Months Ended
Accrued Expenses (Tables)

Dec. 30, 2011
Accrued Expenses [Abstract]
Accrued expenses December30,

2011

December31,

2010

(In millions)

Salaries and fringe
benefits $ 102.5 $ 92.5

Other accrued expenses 214.9 123.0

Total accrued expenses$317.4 $215.5

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.secdatabase.com


3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedIncome Taxes (Details 1)
(USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30,
2011

Sep. 30,
2011

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Jan. 01,
2010

Reconciliation of tax provision at federal statutory rate
to provision for income
Statutory tax expense $ 106.2 $ 63.1 $ (0.6)
Incr ease (reduction) in taxes resulting from:
Nondeductible goodwill impairment loss 35.0
State income taxes, net 6.5 4.0 2.1
Foreign tax effects (1.4) 1.7 8.6
Changes in valuation allowances 2.0 8.8 (11.3) (4.5)
Other, net 2.8 1.9 (0.8)
Income tax expense $ 102.8 $ 70.7 $ 39.8
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3 Months Ended
12 Months

EndedDiscontinued Operations
(Details) (USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Apr.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Oct.
01,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Apr.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010
Summary of components of discontinued
operation reflected in Consolidated
Statement of Operations
Net sales $

123.2
$
197.6

$
202.8

Operating income (loss) 13.4 (1.0) 18.6
(Loss) income from discontinued operations
before tax

(2.5) (9.3) (0.9) 18.8

Income tax expense 3.2 0.1 6.7
(Loss) income from discontinued operations,
net of tax

$
(1.5)

$
(18.1)

$ 3.7$ 3.4
$
(10.6)

$ 3.9 $ 2.4 $ 3.3
$
(12.5)

$
(1.0)

$
12.1
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3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedCondensed Financial
Information of Registrant
Anixter International Inc.

(Parent Company) (Details)
(USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Apr.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Oct.
01,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Apr.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Statements of operations
Operating loss

$ 91.6
$
101.7

$ 92.0$ 77.5 $ 78.5 $ 70.8 $ 66.5$ 51.4
$
362.8

$
267.2

$ 84.8

Other (expense) income:
Interest expense (50.1) (53.6) (66.1)
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes

77.2 83.3 77.6 65.4 65.0 57.3 53.6 4.3 303.5 180.2 (1.6)

Income tax benefit (102.8)(70.7) (39.8)
Net income (loss) 48.3 43.5 52.1 44.3 31.5 36.5 34.6 5.9 188.2 108.5 (29.3)
Parent Company [Member]
Statements of operations
Operating loss (4.3) (4.6) (4.2)
Other (expense) income:
Interest expense (16.2) (17.3) (18.4)
Other 0.2 1.7 4.2
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes

(20.3) (20.2) (18.4)

Income tax benefit 7.7 7.7 6.7
Loss before equity in earnings
of subsidiaries

(12.6) (12.5) (11.7)

Equity in earnings (loss) of
subsidiaries

200.8 121.0 (17.6)

Net income (loss) $
188.2

$
108.5

$
(29.3)
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12 Months EndedSummary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Details

2) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010Jan. 01, 2010

Other, net (loss) gain:
Foreign exchange $ (7.1) $ (2.5) $ (23.2)
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies(0.9) 3.0 3.4
Settlement of interest rate swaps (2.1)
Other (1.2) (2.0) 2.7
Total $ (9.2) $ (1.5) $ (19.2)

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
javascript:void(0);
http://www.secdatabase.com


12 Months EndedIncome Taxes (Details 3)
(USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Jan. 01,
2010

Reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized
tax benefits
Beginning Balance $ 4.0 $ 4.6 $ 5.8
Additions for tax positions of prior years 20.2 1.9 4.0
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (1.3) (2.5) (5.2)
Ending Balance $ 22.9 $ 4.0 $ 4.6
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12 Months EndedBusiness Segments (Details
2) (USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010Jul. 03, 2009

Changes in goodwill
Goodwill, Beginning Balance$ 355.3 $ 338.7
Acquisition related (2.8) 15.3
Foreign currency translation (0.8) 1.3
Goodwill, Ending Balance 351.7 355.3
North America [Member]
Changes in goodwill
Goodwill, Beginning Balance332.4 316.3
Acquisition related (2.8) 15.3
Foreign currency translation (0.4) 0.8
Goodwill, Ending Balance 329.2 332.4
Europe [Member]
Changes in goodwill
Goodwill, Beginning Balance11.0 11.7 12.1
Foreign currency translation (0.1) (0.7)
Goodwill, Ending Balance 10.9 11.0 12.1
Emerging Markets [Member]
Changes in goodwill
Goodwill, Beginning Balance11.9 10.7
Foreign currency translation (0.3) 1.2
Goodwill, Ending Balance $ 11.6 $ 11.9
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12 Months Ended
Stockholders' Equity

(Details 1)
Dec. 30,

2011
years

Dec. 31,
2010
years

Jan. 01,
2010
years

Weighted-average fair value of stock options granted valuation
assumption
Expected Stock Price Volatility 37.90% 36.20% 35.40%
Risk-Free Interest Rate 2.40% 2.70% 2.70%
Expected Dividend Yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Average Expected Life 6.13 6.13 7
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Commitments and
Contingencies (Details) (USD

$)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30, 2011

Minimum lease commitments under operating leases
2012 $ 61.8
2013 49.0
2014 39.6
2015 28.5
2016 20.4
2017 and thereafter 43.7
Total $ 243.0
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12 Months Ended
Accrued Expenses

Dec. 30, 2011
Accrued Expenses [Abstract]
ACCRUED EXPENSES

NOTE 2. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

(In millions)

Salaries and fringe benefits $ 102.5 $ 92.5
Other accrued expenses 214.9 123.0

Total accrued expenses $317.4 $215.5

Accruedexpensesincreasedto $317.4million at the endof fiscal 2011 from $215.5million
at theendof fiscal 2010primarily dueto anincreasein incometaxespayableandhighervariable
costs, including employee incentives, due to the growth in sales during fiscal 2011.
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12 Months Ended
Stockholders' Equity
(Details 2) (USD $) Oct. 13,

2010
Oct. 12,

2010

Dec. 30, 2011
Employee Stock

Option [Member]

Dec. 31, 2010
Employee Stock

Option [Member]

Jan. 01, 2010
Employee Stock

Option [Member]
Activity under the employee
option plans
Beginning Balance 1,400,0001,300,0001,234,900 1,562,200 1,729,800
Adjusted 87,200
Granted 75,900 96,500 97,200
Exercised (502,500) (510,900) (264,800)
Cancelled (52,000) (100)
Ending Balance 1,400,0001,300,000756,300 1,234,900 1,562,200
Beginning Balance, Weighted-
Average Exercise Price

$ 41.16 $ 43.88 $ 40.27 $ 36.15 $ 33.78

Adjusted, Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

$ 37.87

Granted, Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

$ 69.54 $ 42.71 $ 29.41

Exercised, Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

$ 29.92 $ 21.25 $ 18.21

Cancelled, Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

$ 52.33 $ 22.39

Ending Balance, Weighted-
Average Exercise Price

$ 41.16 $ 43.88 $ 49.26 $ 40.27 $ 36.15

Options exercisable at year-end 405,500 661,200 956,800
Options exercisable at year-end
Weighted-Average Exercise Price:

$ 28.20 $ 26.12 $ 20.43
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Discontinued Operations
(Details 1) (USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010

Assets of discontinued operations:
Accounts receivable $ 29.4
Inventories 132.4
Goodwill 19.0
Other assets 6.0
Total assets of discontinued operations0 186.8
Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable 9.4
Accrued expenses 3.4
Other liabilities 1.8
Total liabilities of discontinued operations$ 0 $ 14.6
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12 Months Ended
Income Taxes (Tables)

Dec. 30, 2011
Income Taxes [Abstract]
Income tax expense (benefit) Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Current:
Foreign $ 28.3 $ 21.0 $ 18.2
State 8.1 4.0 (0.4 )
Federal 59.2 24.1 23.6

95.6 49.1 41.4
Deferred:

Foreign (14.9 ) 0.4 (5.9 )
State 1.7 2.3 0.2
Federal 20.4 18.9 4.1

7.2 21.6 (1.6 )

Income tax expense $102.8 $70.7 $39.8

Reconciliation of tax provision
at federal statutory rate to
provision for income

Years Ended

December 30,

2011

December

31, 2010

January 1,

2010

Statutory tax expense $ 106.2 $ 63.1 $ (0.6 )
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting from:

Nondeductible goodwill impairment loss Ñ Ñ 35.0
State income taxes, net 6.5 4.0 2.1
Foreign tax effects (1.4 ) 1.7 8.6
Changes in valuation allowances(a) (11.3 ) Ñ (4.5 )
Other, net 2.8 1.9 (0.8 )

Income tax expense $102.8 $70.7 $39.8

(a) In 2011, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $11.3 million, net, related to changes in tax
valuation allowances primarily in certain foreign jurisdictions. Approximately $7.4 million, net,
of the tax benefit was a correction of an error from prior periods to reverse valuation allowances
for deferred tax assets in certain foreign jurisdictions where sufficient evidence existed to support
the realization of these deferred tax assets at a more likely than not level. The Company has
determined the error is not material to previously issued financial statements, and the correction
of these errors is not material to the results of operations for the fiscal year ended December 30,
2011.

Components of deferred tax
assets and liabilities

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Property, equipment, intangibles and other $ (21.5) $ (21.6)
Accreted interest (Notes due 2033) Ñ (6.0 )

Gross deferred tax liabilities (21.5 ) (27.6 )
Deferred compensation and other postretirement benefits 75.3 57.7
Inventory reserves 12.5 31.5
Foreign NOL carryforwards and other 33.7 21.8
Allowance for doubtful accounts 5.8 8.3
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Other 16.6 10.8

Gross deferred tax assets 143.9 130.1

Deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities 122.4 102.5
Valuation allowance (20.3 ) (18.8 )

Net deferred tax assets $102.1 $83.7

Net current deferred tax assets $37.7 $50.3
Net non-current deferred tax assets 64.4 33.4

Net deferred tax assets $102.1 $83.7

Reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount
of unrecognized tax benefits

(in millions)

Balance at January2, 2009 $ 5.8
Additions for tax positions of prior years 4.0
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (5.2 )

Balance at January1, 2010 $4.6
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1.9
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (2.5 )

Balance at December31, 2010 $4.0
Additions for tax positions of prior years 20.2
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (1.3 )

Balance at December30, 2011 $22.9
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12 Months EndedCommitments and
Contingencies (Tables) Dec. 30, 2011

Commitments and Contingencies [Abstract]
Minimum lease commitments under operating leases

2012 $61.8
2013 49.0
2014 39.6
2015 28.5
2016 20.4
2017 and

thereafter 43.7

Total $243.0
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12 Months EndedPension Plans, Post-
Retirement Benefits and
Other Benefits (Details 2)

(USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010Jan. 01, 2010

Components of net periodic cost:
Service cost $ 12.3 $ 10.8 $ 10.6
Interest cost 21.7 21.5 19.6
Expected return on plan assets (21.9) (19.7) (17.8)
Net amortization 3.7 4.1 3.6
Curtailment loss 0.6
Net periodic cost 16.4 16.7 16.0
Weighted-average assumption used to measure net periodic cost:
Discount rate 5.49% 5.88% 6.12%
Expected return on plan assets 6.91% 7.16% 7.26%
Salary growth rate 3.76% 3.79% 4.05%
Pension Plans, Domestic [Member]
Components of net periodic cost:
Service cost 7.0 6.1 6.6
Interest cost 12.0 11.6 11.0
Expected return on plan assets (11.8) (10.8) (9.9)
Net amortization 3.4 3.5 3.7
Curtailment loss 0.6
Net periodic cost 11.2 10.4 11.4
Weighted-average assumption used to measure net periodic cost:
Discount rate 5.53% 5.99% 5.90%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.50% 8.50%
Salary growth rate 3.91% 3.91% 4.43%
Pension Plans, Foreign [Member]
Components of net periodic cost:
Service cost 5.3 4.7 4.0
Interest cost 9.7 9.9 8.6
Expected return on plan assets (10.1) (8.9) (7.9)
Net amortization 0.3 0.6 (0.1)
Net periodic cost $ 5.2 $ 6.3 $ 4.6
Weighted-average assumption used to measure net periodic cost:
Discount rate 5.43% 5.77% 6.45%
Expected return on plan assets 5.93% 6.02% 6.02%
Salary growth rate 3.57% 3.59% 3.66%
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3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedDiscontinued Operations
(Details Textual) (USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Apr.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Oct.
01,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Apr.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Dec.
31,

2013
Discontinued Operations
(Textual) [Abstract]
Sale price $

155.0
Cash received up on sale of
discontinued operations

143.6

Goodwill written off 19.0
Additional targets achieved on
discontinued operations

30.0

Loss on sale of business 22.6
Loss on sale of business, net of
tax

21.0

Loss from discontinued
operations

$ 1.5 $ 18.1
$
(3.7)

$
(3.4)

$ 10.6
$
(3.9)

$
(2.4)

$
(3.3)

$ 12.5$ 1.0
$
(12.1)
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12 Months EndedPension Plans, Post-
Retirement Benefits and
Other Benefits (Tables) Dec. 30, 2011

Pension Plans, Post-
Retirement Benefits and
Other Benefits [Abstract]
Weighted average percentage
of actual and target asset
allocation Domestic Plans

Allocation GuidelinesDecember

30,

2011

December31,

2010 Min Target Max

Large capitalization U.S. stocks 32.8 % 33.2 % 20% 30 % 40%
Small capitalization U.S. stocks 16.8 17.3 15 20 25
International stocks 16.3 16.6 15 20 25

Total equity securities 65.9 67.1 70
Fixed income investments 29.9 30.3 25 30 35
Other investments 4.2 2.6 Ñ Ñ Ñ

100.0 % 100.0 % 100 %

Foreign Plans

Allocation GuidelinesDecember

30,

2011

December

31,

2010 Target

Equity securities 43.3 % 46.2 % 49 %
Fixed income investments 48.7 44.9 43
Other investments 8.0 8.9 8

100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

Reconciliation of funded status
of pension plans Pension Benefits

Domestic Foreign Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

(In millions)

Change in projected benefit
obligation:

Beginning balance $225.4 $197.9 $174.6 $175.9 $400.0 $373.8
Service cost 7.0 6.1 5.3 4.7 12.3 10.8
Interest cost 12.0 11.6 9.7 9.9 21.7 21.5
Plan participants

contributions Ñ Ñ 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3
Actuarial loss (gain) 49.7 15.3 11.1 (6.1 ) 60.8 9.2
Benefits paid (6.1 ) (6.1 ) (6.3 ) (5.6 ) (12.4 ) (11.7 )
Foreign currency

exchange rate changesÑ Ñ (2.0 ) (4.5 ) (2.0 ) (4.5 )
Other (0.3 ) 0.6 Ñ Ñ (0.3 ) 0.6

Ending balance $287.7 $225.4 $192.8 $174.6 $480.5 $400.0

Change in plan assets at fair
value:
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Beginning balance $148.0 $127.3 $165.8 $149.5 $313.8 $276.8
Actual (loss) return on

plan assets 5.7 19.9 9.1 15.0 14.8 34.9
Company contributions 10.4 6.9 9.8 10.0 20.2 16.9
Plan participants

contributions Ñ Ñ 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3
Benefits paid (6.1 ) (6.1 ) (6.3 ) (5.6 ) (12.4 ) (11.7 )
Foreign currency

exchange rate changesÑ Ñ (1.7 ) (3.4 ) (1.7 ) (3.4 )

Ending balance $158.0 $148.0 $177.1 $165.8 $335.1 $313.8

Reconciliation of funded status:
Projected benefit

obligation $(287.7) $(225.4) $(192.8) $(174.6) $(480.5) $(400.0)
Plan assets at fair value 158.0 148.0 177.1 165.8 335.1 313.8

Funded status $(129.7) $(77.4 ) $(15.7 ) $(8.8 ) $(145.4) $(86.2 )

Included in the 2011 and 2010 funded status is accrued benefit cost of approximately $17.9
million and $13.0million, respectively, related to two non-qualified plans, which cannot be
funded pursuant to tax regulations.

Noncurrent asset $Ñ $Ñ $5.3 $2.0 $5.3 $2.0
Current liability (0.8 ) (0.6 ) Ñ Ñ (0.8 ) (0.6 )
Noncurrent liability (128.9) (76.8 ) (21.0 ) (10.8 ) (149.9) (87.6 )

Funded status $(129.7) $(77.4 ) $(15.7 ) $(8.8 ) $(145.4) $(86.2 )

Weighted-average assumptions used for measurement of the projected benefit obligation:
Discount rate 4.37 % 5.53 % 4.84 % 5.43 % 4.56 % 5.49 %
Salary growth rate 3.90 % 3.91 % 3.13 % 3.57 % 3.57 % 3.76 %

Components of net periodic
cost

Pension Benefits

Domestic Foreign Total

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

(In millions)

Components of net periodic
cost:

Service cost $7.0 $6.1 $6.6 $5.3 $4.7 $4.0 $12.3 $10.8 $10.6
Interest cost 12.0 11.6 11.0 9.7 9.9 8.6 21.7 21.5 19.6
Expected return on

plan assets (11.8) (10.8) (9.9) (10.1) (8.9) (7.9) (21.9) (19.7) (17.8)
Net amortization 3.4 3.5 3.7 0.3 0.6 (0.1) 3.7 4.1 3.6
Curtailment loss 0.6 Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ 0.6 Ñ Ñ

Net periodic cost $11.2 $10.4 $11.4 $5.2 $6.3 $4.6 $16.4 $16.7 $16.0

Weighted-average assumption
used to measure net periodic
cost

Weighted-average assumption used to measure net periodic cost:
Discount rate 5.53% 5.99% 5.90% 5.43% 5.77% 6.45% 5.49% 5.88% 6.12%
Expected return on

plan assets 8.00% 8.50% 8.50% 5.93% 6.02% 6.02% 6.91% 7.16% 7.26%
Salary growth rate 3.91% 3.91% 4.43% 3.57% 3.59% 3.66% 3.76% 3.79% 4.05%

Assets measured at fair value
on a recurring basis Pension Assets

Domestic Foreign Total

Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total

(In millions)

Asset Categories:
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Cash and short-term
investments $6.6 $Ñ $6.6 $1.4 $Ñ $1.4 $8.0 $Ñ $8.0

Equity securities:
Domestic 78.4 Ñ 78.4 0.1 30.7 30.8 78.5 30.7 109.2
International Ñ 25.7 25.7 Ñ 45.8 45.8 Ñ 71.5 71.5

Fixed income
securities:

Domestic 31.7 1.0 32.7 0.5 65.6 66.1 32.2 66.6 98.8
Corporate

bonds Ñ 14.6 14.6 0.4 19.9 20.3 0.4 34.5 34.9
Insurance funds Ñ Ñ Ñ Ñ 12.2 12.2 Ñ 12.2 12.2
Other Ñ Ñ Ñ 0.1 0.4 0.5 0.1 0.4 0.5

Total $116.7 $41.3 $158.0 $2.5 $174.6 $177.1 $119.2 $215.9 $335.1

Estimated future benefits
payments Estimated Future Benefit

Payments

Domestic Foreign Total

(In millions)

2012 $8.8 $5.7 $14.5
2013 8.1 5.7 13.8
2014 8.8 6.3 15.1
2015 9.4 6.2 15.6
2016 10.1 6.5 16.6
2017-2021 63.9 37.4 101.3

Total $109.1 $67.8 $176.9
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12 Months EndedStockholder's Equity
(Tables) Dec. 30, 2011

Stockholders' Equity
[Abstract]
Activity under the director and
employee stock unit plans Dir ector

Stock

Units (1)

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Value (2)

Employee

Stock

Units

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Value (2)

(Units in thousands)

Outstanding balance at January2, 2009 193.9 $ 40.14 582.6 $ 54.74
Granted 48.9 38.39 371.1 29.41
Converted (2.7 ) 46.91 (177.4 ) 46.02
Cancelled Ñ Ñ (17.2 ) 47.79

Outstanding balance at January1, 2010 240.1 39.71 759.1 44.55
Granted 26.8 47.32 268.7 42.72
Converted (37.2 ) 38.14 (197.4 ) 51.09
Cancelled Ñ Ñ (6.7 ) 45.32

Outstanding balance at December31, 2010 229.7 40.85 823.7 42.38
Granted 27.7 59.14 157.8 69.91
Converted (7.2 ) 45.74 (281.9 ) 44.67
Cancelled Ñ Ñ (82.5 ) 43.99

Outstanding balance at December30, 2011 250.2 $ 42.74 617.1 $ 48.16

(1) Generally, stockunitsare includedin theCompany'scommonstockoutstandingonthedateof vestingastheconditions

for conversionhavebeenmet.However, directorunitsare consideredconvertibleunitsif vestedandtheindividual has

electedto defer for conversionuntil a pre-arrangedtime selectedby eachindividual. All of the director stockunits

outstanding are convertible.

(2) Director and employee stock units are granted at no cost to the participants.

Weighted-average fair value of
stock options granted
valuation assumption

Expected

StockPrice

Volatility

Risk-Free

Inter estRate

Expected

Dividend

Yield

AverageExpected

Life

2011 Grants 37.9 % 2.4 % Ñ 6.13years
2010 Grants 36.2 % 2.7 % Ñ 6.13 years
2009 Grants 35.4 % 2.7 % Ñ 7 years

Activity under the employee
option plans

Employee

Options

Weighted-

average

Exercise

Price

Balance at January2, 2009 1,729.8 $33.78
Granted 97.2 29.41
Exercised (264.8 ) 18.21
Cancelled Ñ Ñ

Balance at January1, 2010 1,562.2 36.15
Adjusted(a) 87.2 37.87
Granted 96.5 42.71
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Exercised (510.9 ) 21.25
Cancelled (0.1 ) 22.39

Balance at December31, 2010 1,234.9 40.27
Granted 75.9 69.54
Exercised (502.5 ) 29.92
Cancelled (52.0 ) 52.33

Balance at December31, 2011 756.3 $49.26

Options exercisable at year-end:
2009 956.8 $20.43
2010(a) 661.2 $26.12
2011 405.5 $28.20

(a) In accordance with the provisions of the stock option plan, the exercise price and number of
options outstanding and exercisable were adjusted to reflect the special dividend in 2010.

Changes to the unvested
employee stock units and
options

Non-vested

Shares

Weighted-average

Grant DateFair Value

(shares in thousands)

Non-vested shares at December
31, 2010 1,391.3 $ 32.82

Granted 233.7 56.46
Vested (522.6 ) 33.51
Cancelled (134.5 ) 34.71

Non-vested shares at December
30, 2011 967.9 $ 37.89
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12 Months EndedSummary of Significant
Accounting Policies Dec. 30, 2011

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
[Abstract]
SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization:Anixter International Inc. ("the Company"), formerly known as Itel
Corporation, which was incorporated in Delaware in 1967, is engaged in the distribution of
communications and security products, electrical wire and cable products, fasteners and small parts
through Anixter Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively "Anixter").

Basis of presentation:The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Anixter
International Inc. and its subsidiaries. The Company's fiscal year ends on the Friday nearest
December 31 and included 52 weeks in 2011, 2010 and 2009. Certain amounts have been reclassified
to conform to the current year presentation. Also, as a result of the divestiture of a business,
described in Note 4. "Discontinued Operations," the Company began recording the results of the
divested business as discontinued operations in 2011 and all prior periods have been revised to reflect
this classification.

Use of estimates:The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents:Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments
that mature within three months or less. Such investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair
value.

Receivables and allowance for doubtful accounts:The Company carries its accounts
receivable at their face amounts less an allowance for doubtful accounts which was $19.5million and
$23.7million at the end of 2011 and 2010, respectively. On a regular basis, the Company evaluates
its accounts receivable and establishes the allowance for doubtful accounts based on a combination
of specific customer circumstances, as well as credit conditions and history of write-offs and
collections. During 2011, the Company reached favorable settlements of several customer
bankruptcy and disputes which were fully reserved at the beginning of 2011. The provision for
doubtful accounts was $8.0million, $12.8million and $11.7million in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. A receivable is considered past due if payments have not been received within the
agreed upon invoice terms. Receivables are written off and deducted from the allowance account
when the receivables are deemed uncollectible.

Inventories:Inventories, consisting primarily of finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost
or market. Cost is determined using the average-cost method. The Company has agreements with
some of its vendors that provide a right to return products. This right is typically limited to a small
percentage of the Company's total purchases from that vendor. Such rights provide that the Company
can return slow-moving product and the vendor will replace it with faster-moving product chosen by
the Company. Some vendor agreements contain price protection provisions that require the
manufacturer to issue a credit in an amount sufficient to reduce the Company's current inventory
carrying cost down to the manufacturer's current price. The Company considers these agreements in
determining its reserve for obsolescence.
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At December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company reported inventory of $1,070.7
million and $870.3million, respectively (net of inventory reserves of $61.2million and $66.8
million, respectively). Each quarter the Company reviews for excess inventories and makes an
assessment of the net realizable value. There are many factors that management considers in
determining whether or not the amount by which a reserve should be established. These factors
include the following:

�� Return or rotation privileges with vendors;

�� Price protection from vendors;

�� Expected future usage;

�� Whether or not a customer is obligated by contract to purchase the inventory;

�� Current market pricing;

�� Historical consumption experience; and

�� Risk of obsolescence.

If circumstances related to the above factors change, there could be a material impact on the
net realizable value of the inventories.

Property and equipment:At December 30, 2011, net property and equipment consisted of
$62.9million of equipment and computer software and approximately $25.4million of buildings and
leasehold improvements. At December 31, 2010, net property and equipment consisted of $57.5
million of equipment and computer software and approximately $25.7million of buildings and
leasehold improvements. Equipment and computer software are recorded at cost and depreciated by
applying the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which range from3 to 10years.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the useful life or over the term of the related lease,
whichever is shorter. Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related depreciation are removed from the
respective accounts and any gain or loss is included in income. Maintenance and repair costs are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation expense charged to operations was $22.1million, $22.5million
and $24.1million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Costsfor softwaredevelopedfor internalusearecapitalizedwhenthepreliminaryprojectstageis
completeandtheCompanyhascommittedfundingfor projectsthatarelikely to becompleted. Costs
thatareincurredduringthepreliminaryprojectstageareexpensedasincurred.Oncethecapitalization
criteriahavebeenmet,externaldirectcostsof materialsandservicesconsumedin developinginternal-
usecomputersoftware,payroll andpayroll-relatedcostsfor employeeswho aredirectly associated
with and who devote time to the internal-usecomputersoftwareproject (to the extent of their
time spentdirectly on the project) and interestcostsincurredwhen developingcomputersoftware
for internal useare capitalized.At December30, 2011 and December31, 2010,capitalizedcosts,
net of accumulatedamortization,for softwaredevelopedfor internal usewas approximately$27.9
million and$22.4million, respectively. Interestexpenseincurredin connectionwith thedevelopment
of internal usesoftwareis capitalizedbasedon the amountsof accumulatedexpendituresand the
weighted-averagecostof borrowingsfor theperiod.Interestcostscapitalizedfor fiscal 2011, 2010or
2009 were insignificant.

Goodwill: On an annual basis, the Company tests for goodwill impairment using a two-step
process, unless there is a triggering event, in which case a test would be performed at the time that
such triggering event occurs. The first step is to identify a potential impairment by comparing the fair
value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount. For all periods presented, the Company's reporting
units are consistent with its operating segments of North America, Europe, Latin America and Asia
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Pacific. The estimates of fair value of a reporting unit are determined using the income approach
based on a discounted cash flow analysis. A discounted cash flow analysis requires the Company to
make various judgmental assumptions, including assumptions about future cash flows, growth rates
and discount rates. The assumptions about future cash flows and growth rates are based on
management's forecast of each reporting unit. Discount rate assumptions are based on an assessment
of the risk inherent in the future cash flows of the respective reporting units from the perspective of
market participants. The Company also reviews market multiple information to corroborate the fair
value conclusions recorded through the aforementioned income approach. If step one indicates a
carrying value above the estimated fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is
performed by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying
amount of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the
amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination.

The Company performed its 2011 annual impairment analysis during the third quarter of 2011
and concluded that no impairment existed. The Company expects the carrying amount of remaining
goodwill to be fully recoverable.

Due to business and economic conditions that existed in 2009, the Company concluded that
there were impairment indicators for the North America, Europe and Asia Pacific reporting units that
required an interim impairment analysis be performed under Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("U.S. GAAP") during the second fiscal quarter of that year.

In the first step of the impairment analysis, the Company performed valuation analyses
utilizing the income approach to determine the fair value of its reporting units. The Company also
considered the market approach as described in U.S. GAAP. Under the income approach, the
Company determined the fair value based on estimated future cash flows discounted by an estimated
weighted-average cost of capital, which reflects the overall level of inherent risk of the reporting unit
and the rate of return an outside investor would expect to earn. The inputs used for the income
approach were significant unobservable inputs, or Level 3 inputs, in the fair value hierarchy
described in recently issued accounting guidance on fair value measurements. Estimated future cash
flows were based on the Company's internal projection models, industry projections and other
assumptions deemed reasonable by management as those that would be made by a market
participant. Based on the results of the Company's assessment in step one, it was determined that the
carrying value of the Europe reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value while North America
and Asia Pacific's fair value exceeded the carrying value.

Therefore, the Company performed a second step of the impairment test to estimate the implied
fair value of goodwill in Europe. In the second step of the impairment analysis, the Company
determined the implied fair value of goodwill for the Europe reporting unit by allocating the fair
value of the reporting unit to all of Europe's assets and liabilities, as if the reporting unit had been
acquired in a business combination and the price paid to acquire it was the fair value. The analysis
indicated that there would be an implied value attributable to goodwill of $12.1million in the Europe
reporting unit and accordingly, in the second quarter of 2009, the Company recorded a non-cash
impairment charge related to the write-off of the remaining goodwill of $100.0million associated
with its Europe reporting unit.

Convertible Debt:The Company separately accounts for the liability and equity components of
convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion (including partial cash
settlement). The liability and equity components are accounted for in a manner that reflects an
issuer's nonconvertible debt borrowing rate. The bifurcation of the component of debt, classification
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of that component in equity and the accretion of the resulting discount on the debt is recognized as
part of interest expense in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations. These provisions
impact the accounting associated with the Company's $300million convertible notes due 2013
("Notes due 2013") and the Company's3.25% zero coupon convertible notes due 2033 ("Notes due
2033") which are described further in Note 5. "Debt". The Notes due 2033 were retired in the third
quarter of 2011.

The following table provides additional information about the Company's convertible debt
instruments that are subject to these accounting requirements:

December30,2011 December31, 2010

Notes due 2013 Notesdue2013 Notesdue2033

($ and shares in millions, except conversion prices)

Carrying amount of the equity component $53.3 $ 53.3 $ (45.7 )
Principal amount of the liability component $300.0 $ 300.0 $ 100.2
Unamortizeddiscountof liability component(a) $(19.7 ) $ (35.8 ) $ (51.7 )
Net carrying amount of liability component $280.3 $ 264.2 $ 48.5
Remainingamortizationperiodof discount(a) 14months (c ) (c )
Conversion price $59.78 (c ) (c )
Number of shares to be issued upon conversion5.0 (c ) (c )
If-convertedvalueexceedsprincipalamount(b) $Ñ (c ) (c )

(a) The Notes due 2013 and Notes due 2033 were issued in February of 2007 and July of 2003,
respectively. The Notes due 2033 were retired in the third quarter of 2011. For convertible debt
accounting purposes, the expected life of the Notes due 2013 and the Notes due 2033 were
determined to be six years and four years from the issuance date, respectively. As such, the
Company is amortizing the unamortized discount through interest expense through February of
2013 for the Notes due 2013.

(b) If-converted value amounts are for disclosure purposes only. The Notes due 2013 are convertible
when the closing price of the Company's common stock for at least 20 trading days in the 30
consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding fiscal
quarter is more than $77.71. Based on the Company's stock prices during the year, the Notes due
2013 have not been convertible during 2011 and 2010.

(c) Data not required for comparative purposes.

The fair value of the liability component related to the Notes due 2013 was initially calculated
based on a discount rate of7.1%, representing the Company's nonconvertible debt borrowing rate at
issuance for debt instruments with similar terms and characteristics. For accounting purposes, the
expected life for a similar instrument was six years which was used to develop this nonconvertible
debt borrowing rate. Interest cost relates to both the contractual interest coupon and amortization of
the discount on the liability component. Non-cash interest cost recognized for the Notes due 2013
was $16.1million, $15.1million and $14.1million for fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Cash interest cost recognized for the Notes due 2013 was $3.0million in 2011, 2010
and 2009.

The fair value of the liability component related to the Notes due 2033 was initially calculated
based on a discount rate of6.1%, representing the Company's nonconvertible debt borrowing rate at
issuance for debt instruments with similar terms and characteristics. For accounting purposes, the
expected life for a similar instrument was four years which was used to develop this nonconvertible
debt borrowing rate. Therefore, the amount of interest expense associated with the initial discount
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was fully recognized as of the end of 2007 (i.e., four years from issuance of these notes). Interest cost
recognized for the Notes due 2033 was $0.5million, $2.9million and $5.2million for fiscal years
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, based on the zero-coupon rate of 3.25% associated with the Notes
due 2033.

Intangible assets:Intangible assets, included in other assets on the consolidated balance
sheets, primarily consist of customer relationships that are being amortized over periods ranging
from 8 to 15years. The Company continually evaluates whether events or circumstances have
occurred that would indicate the remaining estimated useful lives of its intangible assets warrant
revision or that the remaining balance of such assets may not be recoverable. The Company uses an
estimate of the related undiscounted cash flows over the remaining life of the asset in measuring
whether the asset is recoverable. At December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company's
gross carrying amount of intangible assets subject to amortization was $130.4million and $130.6
million, respectively. Accumulated amortization was $60.5million and $50.4million at December
30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. Intangible amortization expense related to all of the
Company's net intangible assets of $69.9million at December 30, 2011 is expected to be
approximately $10.1million per year for the next five years.

Foreign currency translation:The Company's investments in several subsidiaries are recorded
in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. As these foreign currency denominated investments are
translated at the end of each period during consolidation using period-end exchange rates,
fluctuations of exchange rates between the foreign currency and the U.S. dollar increase or decrease
the value of those investments. These fluctuations and the results of operations for foreign
subsidiaries, where the functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, are translated into U.S. dollars
using the average exchange rates during the year, while the assets and liabilities are translated using
period-end exchange rates. The assets and liabilities-related translation adjustments are recorded as a
separate component of Stockholders' Equity, "Foreign currency translation," which is a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). In addition, as the Company's subsidiaries maintain
investments denominated in currencies other than local currencies, exchange rate fluctuations will
occur. Borrowings are raised in certain foreign currencies to minimize the exchange rate translation
adjustment risk.

Several of the Company's subsidiaries conduct business in a currency other than the legal
entity's functional currency. Transactions may produce receivables or payables that are fixed in terms
of the amount of foreign currency that will be received or paid. A change in exchange rates between
the functional currency and the currency in which a transaction is denominated increases or decreases
the expected amount of functional currency cash flows upon settlement of the transaction. That
increase or decrease in expected functional currency cash flows is a foreign currency transaction gain
or loss that is included in "Other, net" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company
recognized $7.1million, $2.5million and $23.2million in net foreign exchange losses in 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively. See "Other, net" discussion herein for further information regarding these
losses.

The Company purchases foreign currency forward contracts to minimize the effect of
fluctuating foreign currency-denominated accounts on its reported income. The foreign currency
forward contracts are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. The Company's strategy is to
negotiate terms for its derivatives and other financial instruments to be perfectly effective, such that
the change in the value of the derivative perfectly offsets the impact of the underlying hedged item
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(e.g., various foreign currency-denominated accounts). The Company's counterparties to its foreign
currency forward contracts have investment-grade credit ratings. The Company expects the
creditworthiness of its counterparties to remain intact through the term of the transactions. The
Company regularly monitors the creditworthiness of its counterparties to ensure no issues exist
which could affect the value of the derivatives.

The Company does not hedge100% of its foreign currency-denominated accounts and results
of the hedging can vary significantly based on various factors, such as the timing of executing the
foreign currency forward contracts versus the movement of the currencies as well as the fluctuations
in the account balances throughout each reporting period. The fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts is based on the difference between the contract rate and the current exchange rate.
The fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts is measured using observable market
information. These inputs would be considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. At December 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010, foreign currency forward contracts were revalued at then-current
foreign exchange rates, with the changes in valuation reflected directly in "Other, net" in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations offsetting the transaction gain/loss recorded on the foreign
currency-denominated accounts. At December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the notional amount
of the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding was approximately $161.3million and $223.0
million, respectively. The fair value of the Company's foreign currency forward contracts was not
significant at December 30, 2011 or December 31, 2010.

The following activity relates to foreign exchange gains and losses reflected in "Other, net" in
the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations (in millions):

Years Ended

Income (Loss)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Remeasurement of multicurrency
balances $ (0.6 ) $ (1.7 ) $ (11.2 )

Revaluation of foreign currency
forward contracts (4.0 ) 1.2 (8.1 )

Hedge costs (2.5 ) (2.0 ) (3.9 )

Total foreign exchange loss $ (7.1 ) $ (2.5 ) $ (23.2 )

Interest rate agreements:The Company uses interest rate swaps to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates. The objective of the currently outstanding interest rate swap (cash flow
hedge) is to convert variable interest to fixed interest associated with forecasted interest payments
resulting from revolving borrowings in the U.K. and are designated as hedging instruments. The
Company does not enter into interest rate swaps for speculative purposes. Changes in the value of the
interest rate swap is expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes attributable to
fluctuations in the variable rates. The Company's counterparty to its interest rate swap contract has an
investment-grade credit rating. The Company expects the creditworthiness of its counterparty to
remain intact through the term of the transaction. When entered into, the financial instrument is
designated as a hedge of underlying exposures (interest payments associated with the U.K.
borrowings) attributable to changes in the respective benchmark interest rate.

As of December 30, 2011, the Company had one interest rate swap agreement outstanding with
a notional amount of GBP15million. The GBP swap agreement obligates the Company to pay a
fixed rate through July 2012. The fair value of the Company's interest rate swap is determined by
means of a mathematical model that calculates the present value of the anticipated cash flows from
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the transaction using mid-market prices and other economic data and assumptions, or by means of
pricing indications from one or more other dealers selected at the discretion of the respective banks.
These inputs would be considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy described in recently issued
accounting guidance on fair value measurements. At December 30, 2011, the interest rate swap was
revalued at current interest rates, with the change in valuation reflected directly in "Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Loss" in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets. The fair market value of
this agreement, which is the estimated exit price that the Company would pay to cancel the
agreement, was not significant at December 30, 2011.

Revenuerecognition: Salesto customers,resellersanddistributorsandrelatedcostof salesare
recognizedupontransferof title, which generallyoccursuponshipmentof products,whentheprice
is fixed anddeterminableandwhencollectability is reasonablyassured.Revenueis recordednet of
salestaxes,customerdiscounts,rebatesandsimilar charges.TheCompanyalsoestablishesa reserve
for returnsandcreditsprovidedto customersin certaininstances.Thereserveis establishedbasedon
an analysisof historicalexperienceandwas$30.7million and$29.1million at December30, 2011
and December 31, 2010, respectively.

In connectionwith the salesof its products,the Companyoften providescertainsupplychain
services.Theseservicesare providedexclusively in connectionwith the salesof products,and as
such,the price of suchservicesare includedin the price of the productsdeliveredto the customer.
TheCompanydoesnot accountfor theseservicesasa separateelement,astheservicesdo not have
stand-alonevalueandcannotbeseparatedfrom theproductelementof thearrangement.Thereareno
significant post-delivery obligations associated with these services.

In thosecaseswheretheCompanydoesnot havegoodsin stockanddelivery timesarecritical,
product is purchasedfrom the manufacturerand drop-shippedto the customer. The Company
generallytakestitle to thegoodswhenshippedby themanufacturerandthenbills thecustomerfor the
product upon transfer of the title to the customer.

Sales taxes: Sales tax amountscollected from customersfor remittanceto governmental
authorities are presented on a net basis in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Advertising and sales promotion:Advertising and sales promotion costs are expensed as
incurred. Advertising and promotion costs included in operating expenses on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations were $12.1million, $10.0million and $9.9million in 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The majority of the Company's advertising and sales promotion costs are recouped
through various cooperative advertising programs with vendors.

Shipping and handling fees and costs:The Company includes shipping and handling fees
billed to customers in net sales. Shipping and handling costs associated with outbound freight are
included in operating expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations, which were $108.4
million, $94.6million and $84.8million for the years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Stock-based compensation:In accordance with U.S. accounting rules, the Company measures
the cost of all employee share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock
options, using a fair-value-based method. Compensation costs for the plans have been determined
based on the fair value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and amortized
on a straight-line basis over the respective vesting period representing the requisite service period.

Other, net:The following represents the components of "Other, net" as reflected in the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations for the fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Years Ended
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(In millions)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Other, net loss:

Foreign exchange $ (7.1 ) $ (2.5 ) $ (23.2 )
Cash surrender value of life

insurance policies (0.9 ) 3.0 3.4
Settlement of interest rate swaps Ñ Ñ (2.1 )
Other (1.2 ) (2.0 ) 2.7

$ (9.2 ) $ (1.5 ) $ (19.2 )

Due to the sharp increase of the U.S. dollar in 2011 against certain foreign currencies,
primarily in the Emerging Markets where there are few cost-effective means of hedging, the
Company recorded a foreign exchange loss of $7.1million in 2011. In 2010, the Company
recognized a foreign exchange gain of $2.1million associated with the remeasurement of
Venezuela's bolivar-denominated monetary assets on the Venezuelan balance sheet at the parallel
exchange rate. The Company also recorded a foreign exchange loss of $13.8million in 2009 due to
the repatriation of cash from Venezuela and the remeasurement of monetary items on the Venezuelan
balance sheet at the parallel exchange rate. The Company recorded other foreign exchange losses of
$4.6million and $9.4million in 2010 and 2009, respectively. Further, the combined effect of declines
in both the equity and bond markets resulted in a $0.9million decline in the cash surrender value of
Company owned life insurance policies associated with the Company sponsored deferred
compensation program in 2011. This compares to a $3.0million and $3.4million increase in the cash
surrender value of life insurance policies in 2010 and 2009, respectively. In 2009, the Company
recorded a loss of $2.1million associated with the cancellation of interest rate hedging contracts
resulting from the repayment of the related borrowings. In 2009, the Company also recorded other
income of $3.4million related to the expiration of liabilities associated with a prior asset sale.

Income taxes:Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax effects of temporary
differences between financial and income tax reporting based upon enacted tax laws and rates. The
Company maintains valuation allowances to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company recognizes the
benefit of tax positions when a benefit is more likely than not (i.e., greater than50% likely) to be
sustained on its technical merits. Recognized tax benefits are measured at the largest amount that is
more likely than not to be sustained, based on cumulative probability, in final settlement of the
position.

Net income (loss) per share:Diluted net income (loss) per share reflects the potential dilution
that would occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted
into common stock.

In 2011 and 2010,0.4million and0.5million additional shares, respectively, related to stock
options and stock units were included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the
effect of those common stock equivalents were dilutive during these periods. The Company excludes
antidilutive stock options and units from the calculation of weighted-average shares for diluted
earnings per share. The Company excluded0.4million, 0.4million, and0.5million antidilutive stock
options and units for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively

Due to the Company's obligation to settle the outstanding par value of the Notes due 2013 and
Notes due 2033 in cash upon conversion, the Company is not required to include any shares
underlying the convertible notes in its diluted weighted average shares outstanding until the average
stock price per share for the period exceeds the conversion price of the respective instruments.
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Although the Notes due 2033 were retired during 2011, they were dilutive during the period as well
as the corresponding period in 2010. At such time that the average stock price per share for the
period exceeds the conversion price of the convertible notes, only the number of shares that would be
potentially issuable (under the treasury stock method of accounting for share dilution) would be
included in the dilutive share calculation, which is based upon the amount by which the average
stock price exceeds the conversion price.

As a result of the conversion value exceeding the average accreted principal value during 2011
and 2010, the Company included0.2million and0.9million additional shares, respectively, related
to the Notes due 2033 in the diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding. The Company's
average stock price for 2009 did not exceed the average accreted principal value and, therefore, the
Notes due 2033 were antidilutive for this period.

As a result of the Company's average stock price exceeding the conversion price during
2011, 0.3million additional shares related to the Notes due 2013 were included in the diluted
weighted-average common shares outstanding. The Company's average stock price for 2010 and
2009 did not exceed the conversion price and, therefore, the Notes due 2013 were antidilutive for
these periods.

Recently issued accounting pronouncements not yet adopted:In May 2011, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued guidance to amend the requirements related to fair
value measurement which changes the wording used to describe many requirements in Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") for measuring fair value and for disclosing information
about fair value measurements. Additionally, the amendments clarify the FASB's intent about the
application of existing fair value measurement requirements. The amended guidance is effective for
interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011, and is applied prospectively.
Adoption of this guidance at the beginning of fiscal 2012 is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an update to Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") No.
220,Presentation of Comprehensive Income, which eliminates the option to present other
comprehensive income and its components in the statement of stockholders' equity. The Company
can elect to present the items of net income and other comprehensive income in a single continuous
statement of comprehensive income or in two separate, but consecutive statements. Under either
method, the statement would need to be presented with equal prominence as the other primary
financial statements. The amended guidance, which must be applied retrospectively, is effective for
fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011, with earlier
adoption permitted. In December 2011, the FASB deferred the requirements related to
reclassification adjustments out of accumulated other comprehensive income.

In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 2011-08,
Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing Goodwill for Impairment,which gives
companies the option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount and, in some cases, skip the
two-step impairment test. The ASU is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests
performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitted.
Adoption of this guidance at the beginning of fiscal 2012 is not expected to have a material impact
on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued guidance to amend the requirements related to balance
sheet offsetting. These amendments would require the Company to disclose information about rights
of offset and related arrangements to enable users of its financial statements to understand the effect
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or potential effect of those arrangements on its financial position. The amended guidance is effective
for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013 with
required disclosures made retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. Adoption of this
guidance at the beginning of fiscal 2014 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.
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12 Months Ended
Business Segments (Tables)

Dec. 30, 2011 Dec. 31, 2011
Business Segments
[Abstract]
Segment Information

North

America Europe

Emerging

Markets Total

2011

Net sales $4,302.5 $1,150.0 $694.4 $6,146.9
Operating income 307.7 15.7 39.4 362.8
Depreciation 14.5 5.6 2.0 22.1
Amortization of intangibles 5.2 6.1 0.1 11.4
Tangible long-lived assets 99.6 28.3 6.3 134.2
Total assets 2,015.9 622.3 395.8 3,034.0
Capital expenditures 18.3 5.2 2.9 26.4

2010
Net sales $3,701.2 $1,008.4 $564.9 $5,274.5
Operating income (loss) 235.1 (0.9 ) 33.0 267.2
Depreciation 14.7 5.6 2.2 22.5
Amortization of intangibles 5.0 6.2 0.1 11.3
Tangible long-lived assets 95.9 24.5 5.5 125.9
Total assets 2,043.9 586.7 302.7 2,933.3
Capital expenditures 16.6 1.9 1.1 19.6

2009
Net sales $3,397.8 $887.9 $493.9 $4,779.6
Operating income (loss) 175.1 (120.0 ) 29.7 84.8
Depreciation 15.0 7.0 2.1 24.1
Amortization of intangibles 6.3 6.6 0.1 13.0
Tangible long-lived assets 92.2 32.5 5.5 130.2
Total assets 1,869.5 545.6 256.6 2,671.7
Capital expenditures 17.0 2.9 2.0 21.9

Summary of net sales by end
market Years Ended

December30,2011 December31,2010 January 1, 2010

Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales

Enterprise
Cabling
and
Security $3,245.9 52.8 % $2,912.6 55.2 % $2,744.1 57.4 %

Electrical
Wire and
Cable 1,949.5 31.7 % 1,602.5 30.4 % 1,385.7 29.0 %

OEM Supply 951.5 15.5 % 759.4 14.4 % 649.8 13.6 %

Net Sales $6,146.9 100.0 % $5,274.5 100.0 % $4,779.6 100.0 %

Changes in Goodwill North

America Europe(a)

Emerging

Markets Total

Balance as of
January1,
2010(b) $ 316.3 $ 11.7 $ 10.7 $ 338.7

Acquisition
related(c) 15.3 Ñ Ñ 15.3

Foreign
currency
translation 0.8 (0.7 ) 1.2 1.3

Balance as of
December31,
2010 $332.4 $11.0 $11.9 $355.3

Acquisition
related(c) (2.8 ) Ñ Ñ (2.8 )

Foreign
currency
translation (0.4 ) (0.1 ) (0.3 ) (0.8 )
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Balance as of
December30,
2011 $329.2 $10.9 $11.6 $351.7

(a) Europe'sgoodwill balanceincludes$100.0million of accumulated
impairment losses for all periods presented.

(b) As aresultof thedispositionof theCompany'sAerospacebusiness
in the third quarterof 2011, goodwill of $19.0million allocated
to theNorth AmericaandEuropereportablesegmentswaswritten
off and prior period amountswere reclassified to "Assets of
discontinuedoperations"on theCompany'sConsolidatedBalance
Sheet as of January1, 2010.

(c) In the year ended December30, 2011, the Company adjusted
goodwill recognizedin 2010 by $2.8 million, related to the
acquisitionof ClarkSecurityProducts,Inc andGeneralLock, LLC
(collectively "Clark") for which the Companypaid $36.4million
in 2010 (offset in 2011 by $1.6 million which was returnedto
the Companyasa resultof net working capitaladjustments).The
purchaseprice, aswell as the allocationthereof,was finalized in
2011.
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Accrued Expenses (Details
Textual) (USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010

Accrued Expenses (Textual) [Abstract]
Accrued expenses $ 317.4 $ 215.5
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12 Months EndedIncome Taxes (Details
Textual) (USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Jan. 01,
2010

Income Taxes [Line Items]
Operating Loss Carryforwards $ 110.0
Income Taxes (Textual) [Abstract]
Income before income taxes, Domestic 204.5 113.8 79.6
Income before income taxes and goodwill impairment loss 99.0 66.4 18.8
Statutory corporate federal tax rate 35.00%
Payments for income taxes, net 41.9 61.9 56.2
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries 432.5
Undistributed earnings, U.S. federal income tax 50.0
Undistributed earnings, foreign jurisdiction 26.7
Reversal of tax benefit on equity component of convertible debt repurchases
(see Note 7.) net income

18.7 18.7

Interest and penalties related to taxes 1.4
Unrecognized tax benefit, for payment of interest and penalties 1.3
Unrecognized tax benefit accrual, for payment of interest and penalties 1.9
Unrecognized tax benefit that would effect effective tax rate in next twelve
months

3.8

Net tax benefit from correction of error from prior periods 7.4
Tax benefit related to reversal of valuation allowance 11.3
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (1.3) (2.5) (5.2)
Reserves for uncertain tax positions, including interest and penalties 24.2
Accrued taxes payable 18.7
Indefinite [Member]
Income Taxes [Line Items]
Operating Loss Carryforwards $ 98.0
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3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedSelected Quarterly Financial
Data (Details) (USD $)

In Millions, except Per Share
data, unless otherwise

specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Apr.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Oct.
01,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Apr.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Summary of Quarterly
Financial Data
Net sales $

1,499.0
$
1,611.8

$
1,565.3

$
1,470.8

$
1,386.5

$
1,344.9

$
1,321.3

$
1,221.8

$
6,146.9

$
5,274.5

$
4,779.6

Cost of goods sold 1,150.31,249.81,207.31,132.11,064.61,035.81,020.7945.8 4,739.54,066.93,702.5
Operating income 91.6 101.7 92.0 77.5 78.5 70.8 66.5 51.4 362.8 267.2 84.8
Income from continuing
operations before income taxes

77.2 83.3 77.6 65.4 65.0 57.3 53.6 4.3 303.5 180.2 (1.6)

Net income from continuing
operations

49.8 61.6 48.4 40.9 42.1 32.6 32.2 2.6 200.7 109.5 (41.4)

Income (loss)from
discontinued operations, net

(1.5) (18.1) 3.7 3.4 (10.6) 3.9 2.4 3.3 (12.5) (1.0) 12.1

Net income
$ 48.3 $ 43.5 $ 52.1 $ 44.3 $ 31.5 $ 36.5 $ 34.6 $ 5.9 $ 188.2$ 108.5

$
(29.3)

Basic:
Continuing operations

$ 1.50 $ 1.80 $ 1.39 $ 1.19 $ 1.23 $ 0.96 $ 0.95 $ 0.08 $ 5.87 $ 3.21
$
(1.17)

Discontinued operations $
(0.05)

$
(0.53)

$ 0.11 $ 0.10
$
(0.31)

$ 0.11 $ 0.07 $ 0.09
$
(0.37)

$
(0.03)

$ 0.34

Net income
$ 1.45 $ 1.27 $ 1.50 $ 1.29 $ 0.92 $ 1.07 $ 1.02 $ 0.17 $ 5.50 $ 3.18

$
(0.83)

Diluted:
Continuing operations

$ 1.49 $ 1.78 $ 1.33 $ 1.13 $ 1.18 $ 0.92 $ 0.91 $ 0.07 $ 5.71 $ 3.08
$
(1.17)

Discontinued operations $
(0.05)

$
(0.52)

$ 0.10 $ 0.10
$
(0.30)

$ 0.11 $ 0.07 $ 0.09
$
(0.35)

$
(0.03)

$ 0.34

Net income
$ 1.44 $ 1.26 $ 1.43 $ 1.23 $ 0.88 $ 1.03 $ 0.98 $ 0.16 $ 5.36 $ 3.05

$
(0.83)

Stock price range:
High $ 62.99$ 68.15$ 76.16$ 73.56$ 61.17$ 54.99$ 54.16$ 48.85
Low $ 44.52$ 47.38$ 60.54$ 59.52$ 52.10$ 41.27$ 41.31$ 38.42
Close $ 59.64$ 47.44$ 66.10$ 68.30$ 59.73$ 54.28$ 41.90$ 47.16
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12 Months EndedConsolidated Statements of
Operations (USD $)

In Millions, except Per Share
data, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010Jan. 01, 2010

Net sales $ 6,146.9 $ 5,274.5 $ 4,779.6
Cost of goods sold 4,739.5 4,066.9 3,702.5
Gross profit 1,407.4 1,207.6 1,077.1
Operating expenses 1,044.6 940.4 892.3
Goodwill impairment 100.0
Operating income 362.8 267.2 84.8
Other expense:
Interest expense (50.1) (53.6) (66.1)
Net loss on retirement of debt (31.9) (1.1)
Other, net (9.2) (1.5) (19.2)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes303.5 180.2 (1.6)
Income tax expense 102.8 70.7 39.8
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 200.7 109.5 (41.4)
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of tax (12.5) (1.0) 12.1
Net income (loss) $ 188.2 $ 108.5 $ (29.3)
Basic:
Continuing operations $ 5.87 $ 3.21 $ (1.17)
Discontinued operations $ (0.37) $ (0.03) $ 0.34
Net income (loss) $ 5.50 $ 3.18 $ (0.83)
Diluted:
Continuing operations $ 5.71 $ 3.08 $ (1.17)
Discontinued operations $ (0.35) $ (0.03) $ 0.34
Net income (loss) $ 5.36 $ 3.05 $ (0.83)
Basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 34.2 34.1 35.1
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and units 0.4 0.5
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 35.1 35.5 35.1
Dividend declared per common share $ 3.25
Convertible notes due 2033 [Member]
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible notes due 0.2 0.9
Convertible notes Due 2013 [Member]
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible notes due 0.3
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Debt (Details) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified
Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010

Long-term debt:
Total long-term debt $ 806.8 $ 688.7
Short-term debt 3.0 203.4
Total debt 809.8 892.1
Convertible senior notes due 2013 [Member]
Long-term debt:
Total long-term debt 280.3 264.2
Senior notes due 2015 [Member]
Long-term debt:
Total long-term debt 200.0 200.0
Accounts receivable securitization facility [Member]
Long-term debt:
Total long-term debt 175.0 0
Revolving lines of credit and other [Member]
Long-term debt:
Total long-term debt 120.4 145.4
Senior notes due 2014 [Member]
Long-term debt:
Total long-term debt 31.1 30.6
Convertible notes due 2033 [Member]
Long-term debt:
Total long-term debt $ 0 $ 48.5
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Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders' Equity (USD

$)
In Millions, except Share

data, unless otherwise
specified

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Total

Beginning Balance at Jan. 02, 2009$ 0 $ 35.3 $ 243.7$ 882.8 $ (89.0) $ 1,072.8
Beginning Balance, Shares at Jan.
02, 2009

35,300,000

Net income (loss) (29.3) (29.3) (29.3)
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation 52.7 52.7 52.7
Changes in unrealized pension cost,
net of tax of $0.9, $3.1 and $21.4 for
2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively

(19.9) (19.9) (19.9)

Changes in fair market value of
derivatives, net of tax of $0.4, $0.9
and $0.4 for 2009, 2010 and 2011
respectively

0.9 0.9 0.9

Comprehensive income 4.4
Purchase and retirement of treasury
stock (see Note 9.)

(1.0) (33.9) (34.9)

Purchase and retirement of treasury
stock, shares (see Note 9.)

(1,000,000) (1,000,000)

Equity component of repurchased
convertible debt (see Note 5.)

(34.3) (34.3)

Stock-based compensation 15.2 15.2
Issuance of common stock and
related tax benefits

0.4 0.5 0.9

Issuance of common stock and
related tax benefits, shares

400,000

Ending Balance at Jan. 01, 2010 0 34.7 225.1 819.6 (55.3) 1,024.1
Ending Balance, Shares at Jan. 01,
2010

34,700,000

Net income (loss) 108.5 108.5 108.5
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation 13.4 13.4 13.4
Changes in unrealized pension cost,
net of tax of $0.9, $3.1 and $21.4 for
2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively

12.9 12.9 12.9

Changes in fair market value of
derivatives, net of tax of $0.4, $0.9
and $0.4 for 2009, 2010 and 2011
respectively

1.2 1.2 1.2

Comprehensive income 136.0
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Dividend declared on common stock
($3.25 per share)

(113.7) (113.7)

Purchase and retirement of treasury
stock (see Note 9.)

(1.0) (40.2) (41.2)

Purchase and retirement of treasury
stock, shares (see Note 9.)

(1,000,000) (1,000,000)

Equity component of repurchased
convertible debt, net of tax of $33.6
and $6.2 for 2010 and 2011
respectively (see Note 5.)

(20.4) (20.4)

Stock-based compensation 16.7 16.7
Issuance of common stock and
related tax benefits

0.6 8.7 9.3

Issuance of common stock and
related tax benefits, shares

600,000

Ending Balance at Dec. 31, 2010 0 34.3 230.1 774.2 (27.8) 1,010.8
Ending Balance, Shares at Dec. 31,
2010

34,300,000

Net income (loss) 188.2 188.2 188.2
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation (18.3) (18.3) (18.3)
Foreign currency translation related
to sale of business recognized in net
income

1.0 1.0

Changes in unrealized pension cost,
net of tax of $0.9, $3.1 and $21.4 for
2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively

(41.4) (41.4) (41.4)

Changes in fair market value of
derivatives, net of tax of $0.4, $0.9
and $0.4 for 2009, 2010 and 2011
respectively

1.0 1.0 1.0

Comprehensive income 129.5
Dividend forfeited on common
stock

0.1 0.1

Purchase and retirement of treasury
stock (see Note 9.)

(2.0) (105.5) (107.5)

Purchase and retirement of treasury
stock, shares (see Note 9.)

(2,000,000) (2,000,000)

Equity component of repurchased
convertible debt, net of tax of $33.6
and $6.2 for 2010 and 2011
respectively (see Note 5.)

(38.7) (38.7)

Reversal of tax benefit on equity
component of convertible debt
repurchases (see Note 7.)

(18.7) (18.7)

Stock-based compensation 11.1 11.1
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Issuance of common stock and
related tax benefits

0.9 12.7 13.6

Issuance of common stock and
related tax benefits, shares

900,000

Ending Balance at Dec. 30, 2011 $ 0 $ 33.2 $ 196.5$ 857.0 $ (85.5) $ 1,001.2
Ending Balance, Shares at Dec. 30,
2011

33,200,000
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12 Months EndedPension Plans, Post-
Retirement Benefits and
Other Benefits (Details

Textual) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec.
30,

2011
Dec. 31, 2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Pension Plans (Textual)
[Abstract]
General discussion of pension
and other postretirement
benefits

The Company has various defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans. The defined benefit plans of the Company are the Anixter Inc.
Pension Plan, Executive Benefit Plan and Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan (SERP) (together the "Domestic Plans") and various pension plans
covering employees of foreign subsidiaries ("Foreign Plans"). The majority of
the Company's pension plans are non-contributory and cover substantially all
full-time domestic employees and certain employees in other countries.
Retirement benefits are provided based on compensation as defined in both the
Domestic and Foreign Plans. The Company's policy is to fund all Domestic
Plans as required by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
("ERISA") and the IRS and all Foreign Plans as required by applicable foreign
laws. The Executive Benefit Plan and SERP are the only two plans that are
unfunded. Assets in the various plans consist primarily of equity securities and
fixed income investments.

Weighted-average expected
rate of return on plan assets

6.91% 7.16% 7.26%

Deferred prior service cost $ 0.7 $ 3.3
Deferred net transition
obligation

0.1 0.1

Deferred net actuarial loss 84.5 40.5
Accumulated other
comprehensive income
adjustment

41.4 (12.9) 19.9

Net of tax 21.4 3.1 0.9
Deferred actuarial losses 43.9
Defined benefit plan
accumulated other
comprehensive income
deferred tax related to prior
service cost

1.6

Additional deferred prior
service costs

2.5

Defined benefit plan
accumulated other
comprehensive income
deferred actuarial gains losses
tax

23.0
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Reclassifications from
deferred prior service cost

0.4

Reclassifications from
deferred actuarial loss

2.2

Amortization of net actuarial
loss

9.0

Amortization of prior service
cost

0.1

Accrued Benefit cost related to
two non-qualified plan

17.9 13.0

Number of plans with
accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of fair
value of plan assets

6 7

Aggregate pension
accumulated benefit obligation

256.3 209.4

Aggregate fair value of plan
assets

161.8 154.5

Percentage of participant's
salary received as credit

2.00%

Percentage of participant's
salary received as credit for
service period of five years or
more

2.50%

Participant's years of service
required to receive a credit
equal to 2.5%

five years or more

Period of service required to
get fully vested in hypothetical
personal retirement account
balance

3 years

Period of service required to
get fully vested in hypothetical
personal retirement account
balance previously

5 years

Minimum period of service
required to get enrolled in tax
deferred plan

60 days

Rate of Company's matching
contribution on participant's
contribution

25.00%

Rate of Company's matching
contribution on participant's
compensation

6.00%

Defined contribution plans,
expense

5.9 5.4 5.0
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Interests accrued period 3
months

Interests accrual factor 1.4
Deferred compensation
liability

44.1 42.3

Cash surrender value recorded
under deferred compensation
plan

33.9 34.8

Pension Plans, Domestic
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan
Disclosure [Line Items]
Accumulated benefit
obligation

251.7 202.0

Estimated Company
contribution to plans

14.2

Pension Plans (Textual)
[Abstract]
Weighted-average expected
rate of return on plan assets

8.00% 8.50% 8.50%

Pension Plans, Foreign
[Member]
Defined Benefit Plan
Disclosure [Line Items]
Accumulated benefit
obligation

161.4 148.5

Estimated Company
contribution to plans

$ 9.2

Pension Plans (Textual)
[Abstract]
Weighted-average expected
rate of return on plan assets

5.93% 6.02% 6.02%
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Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Details)

(USD $)
In Millions, except Per Share

data, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010

Convertible debt instruments
Net carrying amount of liability component $ 806.8 $ 688.7
Convertible notes due 2033 [Member]
Convertible debt instruments
Carrying amount of the equity component (45.7)
Principal amount of the liability component 100.2
Unamortized discount of liability component (51.7)
Net carrying amount of liability component 0 48.5
Convertible notes Due 2013 [Member]
Convertible debt instruments
Carrying amount of the equity component 53.3 53.3
Principal amount of the liability component 300.0 300.0
Unamortized discount of liability component(19.7) (35.8)
Net carrying amount of liability component 280.3 264.2
Remaining amortization period of discount 14 months
Conversion price $ 59.78
Number of shares to be issued upon conversion5.0
If-converted value exceeds principal amount$ 0
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3 Months Ended 12 Months EndedBusiness Segments (Details)
(USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Sep.
30,

2011

Jul.
01,

2011

Apr.
01,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Oct.
01,

2010

Jul.
02,

2010

Apr.
02,

2010

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Jan.
02,

2009
Segment Information
Net sales $

1,499.0
$
1,611.8

$
1,565.3

$
1,470.8

$
1,386.5

$
1,344.9

$
1,321.3

$
1,221.8

$
6,146.9

$
5,274.5

$
4,779.6

Operating income 91.6 101.7 92.0 77.5 78.5 70.8 66.5 51.4 362.8 267.2 84.8
Depreciation 22.1 22.5 24.1 24.1
Amortization of intangibles 11.4 11.3 13.0
Tangible long-lived assets 134.2 125.9 134.2 125.9 130.2
Total assets 3,034.0 2,933.3 3,034.02,933.32,671.7
Capital expenditures 26.4 19.6 21.9
North America [Member]
Segment Information
Net sales 4,302.53,701.23,397.8
Operating income 307.7 235.1 175.1
Depreciation 14.5 14.7 15.0
Amortization of intangibles 5.2 5.0 6.3
Tangible long-lived assets 99.6 95.9 99.6 95.9 92.2
Total assets 2,015.9 2,043.9 2,015.92,043.91,869.5
Capital expenditures 18.3 16.6 17.0
Europe [Member]
Segment Information
Net sales 1,150.01,008.4887.9
Operating income 15.7 (0.9) (120.0)
Depreciation 5.6 5.6 7.0
Amortization of intangibles 6.1 6.2 6.6
Tangible long-lived assets 28.3 24.5 28.3 24.5 32.5
Total assets 622.3 586.7 622.3 586.7 545.6
Capital expenditures 5.2 1.9 2.9
Emerging Markets [Member]
Segment Information
Net sales 694.4 564.9 493.9
Operating income 39.4 33.0 29.7
Depreciation 2.0 2.2 2.1
Amortization of intangibles 0.1 0.1 0.1
Tangible long-lived assets 6.3 5.5 6.3 5.5 5.5
Total assets 395.8 302.7 395.8 302.7 256.6
Capital expenditures $ 2.9 $ 1.1 $ 2.0
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12 Months EndedValuation and Qualifying
Accounts and Reserves Dec. 30, 2011

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and
Reserves [Abstract]
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING
ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

ANIXTER INTERNA TIONAL INC.

SCHEDULE II Ñ V ALUA TION AND QUALIFYING
ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Years ended December 30, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1,
2010

(In millions)

Balanceat

beginningof

the period

Charged

to income

Charged

to other

accounts Deductions

Balanceat

end of

the period

Description

Year ended
December30,
2011:

Allowance
for
doubtful
accounts $ 23.7 $8.0 $(2.7 ) $ (9.5 ) $ 19.5

Allowance
for
deferred
tax asset $ 18.8 $(17.3 ) $18.8 $ Ñ $ 20.3

Year ended
December31,
2010:

Allowance
for
doubtful
accounts $ 24.8 $12.8 $(0.4 ) $ (13.5 ) $ 23.7

Allowance
for
deferred
tax asset $ 18.7 $1.7 $(1.6 ) $ Ñ $ 18.8

Year ended
January1, 2010:

Allowance
for
doubtful
accounts $ 29.4 $11.7 $0.2 $ (16.5 ) $ 24.8

Allowance
for
deferred
tax asset $ 13.8 $(6.6 ) $11.5 $ Ñ $ 18.7
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12 Months EndedSummary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Details

1) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Jan. 01,
2010

Summary of foreign exchange gains (losses) reflected in Consolidated
Statements of Operations
Remeasurement of multicurrency balances $ (0.6) $ (1.7) $ (11.2)
Revaluation of foreign currency forward contracts (4.0) 1.2 (8.1)
Hedge costs (2.5) (2.0) (3.9)
Total foreign exchange loss $ (7.1) $ (2.5) $ (23.2)
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12 Months EndedSummary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Tables) Dec. 30, 2011
Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
[Abstract]
Convertible debt instruments December30,2011 December31,2010

Notesdue2013 Notesdue2013 Notesdue2033

($ and shares in millions, except conversion prices)

Carrying amount of the equity component $53.3 $53.3 $(45.7 )
Principal amount of the liability component $300.0 $300.0 $100.2
Unamortized discount of liability component(a) $(19.7 ) $(35.8 ) $(51.7 )
Net carrying amount of liability component $ 280.3 $ 264.2 $ 48.5
Remaining amortization period of discount(a) 14months (c ) (c )
Conversion price $59.78 (c ) (c )
Number of shares to be issued upon conversion5.0 (c ) (c )
If-converted value exceeds principal amount(b) $Ñ (c ) (c )

(a) TheNotesdue2013andNotesdue2033wereissuedin Februaryof 2007andJuly of 2003,
respectively. The Notesdue2033wereretired in the third quarterof 2011. For convertible
debtaccountingpurposes,the expectedlife of the Notesdue2013andthe Notesdue2033
were determined to be six years and four years
from the issuancedate,respectively. As such,the Companyis amortizingthe unamortized
discount through interest expense through February of 2013 for the Notes due 2013.

(b) If-converted value amountsare for disclosurepurposesonly. The Notes due 2013 are
convertiblewhenthe closingprice of the Company'scommonstock for at least20 trading
daysin the 30 consecutivetradingdaysendingon the last tradingday of the immediately
precedingfiscalquarteris morethan$77.71.Basedon theCompany'sstockpricesduringthe
year, the Notes due 2013 have not been convertible during 2011 and 2010.

(c) Data not required for comparative purposes.

Summary of foreign exchange
gains (losses) reflected in
Consolidated Statements of
Operations

Years Ended

Income (Loss)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Remeasurement of
multicurrency balances $ (0.6 ) $ (1.7 ) $ (11.2 )

Revaluation of foreign currency
forward contracts (4.0 ) 1.2 (8.1 )

Hedge costs (2.5 ) (2.0 ) (3.9 )

Total foreign exchange loss $ (7.1 ) $ (2.5 ) $ (23.2 )

Other net
Years Ended

(In millions)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Other, net loss:

Foreign exchange $ (7.1 ) $ (2.5 ) $ (23.2 )
Cash surrender value of life

insurance policies (0.9 ) 3.0 3.4
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Settlement of interest rate swaps Ñ Ñ (2.1 )
Other (1.2 ) (2.0 ) 2.7

$ (9.2 ) $ (1.5 ) $ (19.2 )
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12 Months Ended
3 Months

Ended
12 Months Ended

Business Segments (Details
Textual) (USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec.
30,

2011

Dec.
31,

2010

Jan.
01,

2010

Sep. 30,
2011

North
America

[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

Europe
[Member]

Jan. 01,
2010

Europe
[Member]

Dec. 30,
2011

CANADA

Dec. 31,
2010

CANADA

Jan. 01,
2010

CANADA

Dec. 30,
2011
Clark

[Member]

Goodwill [Line Items]
Foreign sales $ 740.8 $ 619.8 $ 567.5
Accumulated goodwill
impairment loss

100.0 100.0

Goodwill written off 19.0 19.0
Cash paid, net of cash
acquired, for prior year
acquisition

(1.6) 36.4 1.8 36.4

Recognition of goodwill due to
valuation

2.8

Business Segments (Textual)
[Abstract]
Maximum sales percentage by
customer

3.00%

Domestic sales 3,561.73,081.42,830.3
Net working capital
adjustments

$ 1.6
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12 Months EndedConsolidated Statements of
Stockholders' Equity

(Parenthetical) (USD $)
In Millions, except Per Share

data, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010Jan. 01, 2010

Unrealized pension cost, tax effect $ 21.4 $ 3.1 $ 0.9
Fair market value of derivatives, tax effect 0.4 0.9 0.4
Dividend declared per common share $ 3.25
Equity component of repurchased convertible debt, tax effect6.2 33.6
Capital Surplus
Equity component of repurchased convertible debt, tax effect6.2 33.6
Retained Earnings
Dividend declared per common share $ 3.25
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Unrealized pension cost, tax effect 21.4 3.1 0.9
Fair market value of derivatives, tax effect 0.4 0.9 0.4
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Unrealized pension cost, tax effect 21.4 3.1 0.9
Fair market value of derivatives, tax effect $ 0.4 $ 0.9 $ 0.4
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(USD $)

In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

Dec. 30,
2011

Dec. 31,
2010

Curr ent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 106.1 $ 78.4
Accounts receivable (Includes $524.6 and $407.8 at December 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively, associated with securitization facility)

1,151.0 1,069.9

Inventories 1,070.7 870.3
Deferred income taxes 37.7 50.3
Other current assets 37.4 50.2
Assets of discontinued operations 0 186.8
Total current assets 2,402.9 2,305.9
Property and equipment, at cost 291.0 278.8
Accumulated depreciation (202.7) (195.6)
Net property and equipment 88.3 83.2
Goodwill 351.7 355.3
Other assets 191.1 188.9
Total assets 3,034.0 2,933.3
Curr ent liabilities:
Accounts payable 706.5 639.3
Accrued expenses 317.4 215.5
Short-term debt (Includes $200.0 at December 31, 2010 associated with securitization facility)3.0 203.4
Liabilities of discontinued operations 0 14.6
Total current liabilities 1,026.9 1,072.8
Long-term debt (Includes $175.0 at December 30, 2011 associated with securitization facility)806.8 688.7
Other liabilities 199.1 161.0
Total liabilities 2,032.8 1,922.5
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock - $1.00 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 33,228,049 and 34,323,061
shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 2010, respectively

33.2 34.3

Capital surplus 196.5 230.1
Retained earnings 857.0 774.2
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation (0.5) 16.8
Unrecognized pension liability (85.3) (43.9)
Unrealized loss on derivatives, net 0.3 (0.7)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss (85.5) (27.8)
Total stockholders' equity 1,001.2 1,010.8
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $

3,034.0
$
2,933.3
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12 Months Ended
Business Segments

Dec. 30, 2011
Business Segments
[Abstract]
BUSINESS SEGMENTS NOTE 10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is engaged in the distribution of communication and security products,
electrical and electronic wire and cable products and fasteners and other small parts ("C" Class
inventory components) from top suppliers to contractors and installers, and also to end users
including manufacturers, natural resources companies, utilities and original equipment
manufacturers who use the Company's products as a component in their end product. The
Company is organized by geographic regions, and accordingly, has identified North America
(United States and Canada), Europe and Emerging Markets (Asia Pacific and Latin America) as
reportable segments. The Company obtains and coordinates financing, tax, information
technology, legal and other related services, certain of which are rebilled to subsidiaries. Certain
corporate expenses are allocated to the segments based primarily on specific identification,
projected sales and estimated use of time. Interest expense and other non-operating items are not
allocated to the segments or reviewed on a segment basis. Intercompany transactions are not
significant. No customer accounted for more than3% of sales in 2011. Export sales were
insignificant.

The Company attributes foreign sales based on the location of the customer purchasing the
product. In North America, sales in the United States were $3,561.7million, $3,081.4million and
$2,830.3million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Canadian sales were $740.8million,
$619.8million and $567.5million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. No other individual
foreign country's net sales within the Europe or Emerging Markets' geographic segments were
material to the Company in 2011, 2010 or 2009. The Company's tangible long-lived assets
primarily consist of property, plant and equipment in the United States. No other individual
foreign country's tangible long-lived assets are material to the Company.

Segment information for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was as follows (in millions):

North

America Europe

Emerging

Markets Total

2011

Net sales $4,302.5 $1,150.0 $694.4 $6,146.9
Operating income 307.7 15.7 39.4 362.8
Depreciation 14.5 5.6 2.0 22.1
Amortization of intangibles 5.2 6.1 0.1 11.4
Tangible long-lived assets 99.6 28.3 6.3 134.2
Total assets 2,015.9 622.3 395.8 3,034.0
Capital expenditures 18.3 5.2 2.9 26.4

2010
Net sales $3,701.2 $1,008.4 $564.9 $5,274.5
Operating income (loss) 235.1 (0.9 ) 33.0 267.2
Depreciation 14.7 5.6 2.2 22.5
Amortization of intangibles 5.0 6.2 0.1 11.3
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Tangible long-lived assets 95.9 24.5 5.5 125.9
Total assets 2,043.9 586.7 302.7 2,933.3
Capital expenditures 16.6 1.9 1.1 19.6

2009
Net sales $3,397.8 $887.9 $493.9 $4,779.6
Operating income (loss) 175.1 (120.0 ) 29.7 84.8
Depreciation 15.0 7.0 2.1 24.1
Amortization of intangibles 6.3 6.6 0.1 13.0
Tangible long-lived assets 92.2 32.5 5.5 130.2
Total assets 1,869.5 545.6 256.6 2,671.7
Capital expenditures 17.0 2.9 2.0 21.9

The following table summarizes net sales by end market for the years ended December 30,
2011, December 31, 2011 and January 1, 2010 (in millions):

Years Ended

December30,2011 December31,2010 January 1, 2010

Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales Net Sales

% of Total

Net Sales

Enterprise Cabling and
Security $3,245.9 52.8 % $2,912.6 55.2 % $2,744.1 57.4 %

Electrical Wire and Cable 1,949.5 31.7 % 1,602.5 30.4 % 1,385.7 29.0 %
OEM Supply 951.5 15.5 % 759.4 14.4 % 649.8 13.6 %

Net Sales $6,146.9 100.0 % $5,274.5 100.0 % $4,779.6 100.0 %

The categorization of net sales by end market is determined using a variety of data points
including the technical characteristics of the product, the "sold to" customer information, the
"ship to" customer information and the end customer product or application into which the
Company's product will be incorporated. As data systems for capturing and tracking this data
evolve and improve, the categorization of products by end market can vary over time. When this
occurs, the Company reclassifies net sales by end market for prior periods. Such reclassifications
typically do not materially change the sizing of, or the underlying trends of results within, each
end market.

The following table presents the changes in goodwill allocated to the Company's reportable
segments from January 1, 2010 to December 30, 2011 (in millions):

North

America Europe(a)

Emerging

Markets Total

Balance as of January1, 2010(b) $316.3 $ 11.7 $ 10.7 $338.7
Acquisition related(c) 15.3 Ñ Ñ 15.3
Foreign currency translation 0.8 (0.7 ) 1.2 1.3

Balance as of December31, 2010 $332.4 $ 11.0 $ 11.9 $355.3
Acquisition related(c) (2.8 ) Ñ Ñ (2.8 )
Foreign currency translation (0.4 ) (0.1 ) (0.3 ) (0.8 )

Balance as of December30, 2011 $329.2 $ 10.9 $ 11.6 $351.7
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(a) Europe's goodwill balance includes $100.0million of accumulated impairment losses for all
periods presented.

(b) As a result of the disposition of the Company's Aerospace business in the third quarter of
2011, goodwill of $19.0million allocated to the North America and Europe reportable
segments was written off and prior period amounts were reclassified to "Assets of
discontinued operations" on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet as of January1,
2010.

(c) In the year ended December30, 2011, the Company adjusted goodwill recognized in 2010 by
$2.8million, related to the acquisition of Clark Security Products, Inc and General Lock,
LLC (collectively "Clark") for which the Company paid $36.4million in 2010 (offset in 2011
by $1.6million which was returned to the Company as a result of net working capital
adjustments). The purchase price, as well as the allocation thereof, was finalized in 2011.
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12 Months Ended
Document and Entity
Information (USD $) Dec. 30, 2011

Feb. 17,
2012

Jul. 01, 2011

Document and Entity Information [Abstract]
Entity Registrant Name ANIXTER INTERNATIONAL

INC
Entity Central Index Key 0000052795
Document Type 10-K
Document Period End Date Dec. 30, 2011
Amendment Flag false
Document Fiscal Year Focus 2011
Document Fiscal Period Focus FY
Current Fiscal Year End Date --12-30
Entity Well-known Seasoned Issuer Yes
Entity Voluntary Filers No
Entity Current Reporting Status Yes
Entity Filer Category Large Accelerated Filer
Entity Public Float $

1,937,888,733
Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding (actual
number)

33,059,077
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12 Months EndedSummarized Financial
Information of Anixter , Inc. Dec. 30, 2011

Summarized Financial
Information Of Subsidiary
[Abstract]
SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION OF
ANIXTER INC

NOTE 11. SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION OF ANIXTER INC.

The Companyguarantees,fully and unconditionally, substantiallyall of the debt of its
subsidiaries,which includeAnixter Inc. The Companyhasno independentassetsor operations
and all subsidiariesother than Anixter Inc. are minor.The following summarizesthe financial
information for Anixter Inc. (in millions):

ANIXTER INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Assets:
Current assets(a) $ 2,404.0 $ 2,309.1
Property, equipment and capital leases, net 102.3 98.3
Goodwill 351.7 355.3
Other assets 190.2 187.0

$3,048.2 $2,949.7

Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity:
Current liabilities(a) $1,023.3 $1,069.0
Subordinated notes payable to parent 6.0 8.5
Long-term debt 543.9 394.3
Other liabilities 198.2 159.1
Stockholder's equity 1,276.8 1,318.8

$3,048.2 $2,949.7

(a) Includes assetsand liabilities related to discontinuedoperationsof $186.8 and $14.6,
respectively, at December31, 2010 (see Note 4. "Discontinued Operations.")

ANIXTER INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Net sales $ 6,146.9 $ 5,274.5 $ 4,779.6
Operating income $368.3 $273.0 $90.5
Income from continuing operations before

income taxes $328.0 $204.2 $21.1
Net (loss) income from discontinued

operations $(12.5 ) $(1.0 ) $12.1
Net income (loss) $203.3 $123.2 $(15.4 )
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Parenthetical) (USD $)

In Millions, except Share
data, unless otherwise

specified

Dec. 30, 2011Dec. 31, 2010

Consolidated Balance Sheets [Abstract]
Carrying amount of assets, consolidated VIE$ 524.6 $ 407.8
Carrying amount of liabilities, consolidated VIE$ 175.0 $ 200.0
Common stock, par value $ 1.00 $ 1.00
Common stock, shares authorized 100,000,000100,000,000
Common stock, shares issued 33,228,049 34,323,061
Common stock, shares outstanding 33,228,049 34,323,061
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12 Months Ended
Debt

Dec. 30, 2011
Debt [Abstract]
DEBT

NOTE 5. DEBT

Debt is summarized below:

(In millions)

December30,

2011

December31,

2010

Long-term debt:

Convertible senior notes due
2013 $ 280.3 $ 264.2

Senior notes due 2015 200.0 200.0
Accounts receivable

securitization facility 175.0 Ñ
Revolving lines of credit and

other 120.4 145.4
Senior notes due 2014 31.1 30.6
Convertible notes due 2033 Ñ 48.5

Total long-term debt 806.8 688.7
Short-term debt 3.0 203.4

Total debt $ 809.8 $ 892.1

Certain debt agreements entered into by the Company's operating subsidiaries contain
various restrictions, including restrictions on payments to the Company. These restrictions have
not had, nor are expected to have, an adverse impact on the Company's ability to meet its cash
obligations. The Company has guaranteed substantially all of the debt of its subsidiaries.

Aggregate annual maturities of debt at December 30, 2011 were as follows: 2012 Ñ
$3.0million; 2013 Ñ $455.8million; 2014 Ñ $31.1million; 2015 Ñ $200.0million and
2016 Ñ $119.9million. The estimated fair value of the Company's debt at December 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010 was $881.6million and $1,021.6million, respectively, based on
public quotations and current market rates. Interest paid in 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $31.6
million, $36.4million and $37.2million, respectively. The Company's average borrowings
outstanding were $988.0million and $845.0million for the fiscal years ending December 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. The Company's weighted-average cost of
borrowings was5.1%, 6.3% and6.7% for the years ended December 30, 2011 and December
31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, respectively.

Retirement of Debt

During 2011, the Company retired its Notes due 2033 as a result of repurchases and
bondholder conversions. The Company paid approximately $93.8million in cash and $14.9
million was settled in stock. Available borrowings under the Company's long-term revolving
credit facility were used to retire these notes. In connection with the retirement of debt, the
Company reduced the accreted value of debt by $48.9million and recorded a gross reduction to
stockholders' equity of $44.9million.
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During 2010, the Company's primary operating subsidiary, Anixter Inc., retired $133.7
million of accreted value of its 10% Senior Notes due 2014 ("Notes due 2014") for $165.5
million. Available cash and other borrowings were used to retire these notes. The Company also
retired $67.0million of accreted value of its Notes due 2033 for $119.6million. Long-term
revolving credit borrowings were used to repurchase these notes. In connection with these
repurchases, the Company reduced the accreted value of debt by $200.7million and recorded a
gross reduction to stockholders' equity of $54.0million.

During 2009, Anixter Inc. retired $23.6million of accreted value of its Notes due 2014 for
$27.7million ($1.2million of which was accrued at year-end 2009). Available cash was used to
retire these notes. The Company also retired $60.1million of accreted value of its Notes due 2033
for $90.8million. Long-term revolving credit borrowings were used to repurchase these notes. In
connection with these repurchases, the Company reduced the accreted value of debt by $83.7
million and recorded a gross reduction to stockholders' equity of $34.3million.

The retirement of debt in 2011 did not have a significant impact on the Company's
Consolidated Statement of Operations. As a result of the retirement of debt in 2010 and 2009, the
Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $31.9million and $1.1million, respectively.

Revolving Lines of Credit

At the end of fiscal 2011, the Company had approximately $313.0million in available,
committed, unused credit lines with financial institutions that have investment-grade credit
ratings. As such, the Company expects to have access to this availability based on its assessment
of the viability of the associated financial institutions which are party to these agreements. Long-
term borrowings under the committed credit facilities totaled $120.4million and $145.4million
at December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

In the second quarter of 2011, Anixter Inc. refinanced its senior unsecured revolving credit
facility. At December 30, 2011, long-term borrowings under this agreement, which is guaranteed
by the Company, were $111.0million as compared to $131.1million of outstanding long-term
borrowings at the end of fiscal 2010. The following are the key terms to the revolving credit
agreement:

�� The size of the credit facility is $400million (or the equivalent in Euros) and matures inApril
2016.

�� The pricing grid is a leverage-based pricing grid. Based on Anixter Inc.'s current leverage
ratio, the applicable margin is Libor plus200basis points.

�� As of the end of 2011, the consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio (as defined in the
revolving credit agreement) requires a minimum coverage 2.50 times. As of December30,
2011, the consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio was 4.51.

�� The consolidated leverage ratio (as defined in the revolving credit agreement) limits the
maximum leverage allowed to 3.25. As of December30, 2011, the consolidated leverage ratio
was 1.35.

�� Anixter Inc. will be permitted to direct funds to the Company for payment of dividends and
share repurchases to a maximum of $175million plus50percent of Anixter Inc.'s cumulative
net income from the effective date of the new agreement. As of December30, 2011, Anixter
Inc. has the ability to distribute $152.7million of funds to the Company.
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�� Anixter Inc. will be allowed to prepay, purchase or redeem indebtedness of the Company,
provided that its proforma leverage ratio (as defined in the agreement) is less than or equal to
2.75 to 1.00 and that its unrestricted domestic cash balance plus availability under the
revolving credit agreement and the accounts receivable securitization facility is equal to or
greater than $175million.

The Company is in compliance with all of the covenant ratios and believes that there is
adequate margin between the covenant ratios and the actual ratios given the current trends of the
business. As of December 30, 2011, the total availability of all revolving lines of credit at Anixter
Inc. would be permitted to be borrowed.

Excluding the primary revolving credit facility at December 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010, certain subsidiaries had long-term borrowings under other bank revolving lines of credit
and miscellaneous facilities of $9.4million and $14.3million, respectively, which mature beyond
twelve months of the Company's fiscal year end December 30, 2011.

Senior Notes Due 2014

In March 2009, the Company's primary operating subsidiary, Anixter Inc., issued $200
million in principal of its Notes due 2014 which were priced at a discount to par that resulted in a
yield to maturity of12%. The Notes due 2014 pay interest semiannually at a rate of10% per
annum and mature on March 15, 2014. In addition, before March 15, 2012, Anixter Inc. may
redeem up to35% of the Notes due 2014 at the redemption price of110% of their principal
amount plus accrued interest, using the net cash proceeds from public sales of the Company's
stock. Net proceeds from this offering were approximately $180.4million after deducting
discounts, commissions and expenses of $4.8million which are being amortized through March
2014. At December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Notes due 2014 outstanding were $31.1
million and $30.6million, respectively. The Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the
Notes due 2014, which are unsecured obligations of Anixter Inc.

Convertible Debt

Convertible Senior Notes Due 2013

In February 2007, the Company completed a private placement of $300.0million principal
amount of Notes due 2013. In May 2007, the Company registered the Notes due 2013 and shares
of the Company's common stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes due 2013 for resale by
certain selling security holders. The Notes due 2013 are structurally subordinated to the
indebtedness of Anixter.

The Notes due 2013 pay interest semiannually at a rate of1.00% per annum. The Notes due
2013 are convertible, at the holders' option, at a conversion rate of16.727shares per $1,000
principal amount of Notes due 2013 (for an aggregate of5.0million shares), equivalent to a
conversion price of $59.78per share. The Company has sufficient authorized shares to settle such
conversion.

In periods during which the Notes due 2013 are convertible, any conversion will be settled
in cash up to the principal amount, and any excess conversion value will be delivered, at the
Company's election in cash, common stock or a combination of cash and common stock. Based
on the Company's stock price at the end of fiscal 2011, the Notes due 2013 are not currently
convertible.
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In connection with the issuance of the Notes due 2013, the Company purchased a call
option that covers5.0million shares of its common stock, subject to customary anti-dilution
adjustments. The purchased call option currently has an exercise price of $59.78per share.

Concurrently with purchasing the call option, the Company sold to the counterparty a
warrant to purchase shares of its common stock, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments.
The sold warrant currently has an exercise price of $77.98and may not be exercised prior to the
maturity of the notes. The shares related to the warrant are5.0million shares.

Holders of the Notes due 2013 may convert them prior to the close of business on the
business day before the maturity date based on the applicable conversion rate only under the
following circumstances:

Conversion Based on Common Stock Price

Holders may convert during any fiscal quarter and only during any fiscal quarter, if the
closing price of the Company's common stock for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive
trading days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter is more
than130% of the conversion price per share, or $77.71. The conversion price per share is equal to
$1,000 divided by the then applicable conversion rate (currently16.727shares per $1,000
principal amount).

Conversion Based on Trading Price of Notes

Holders may convert during the five business day period after any period of five
consecutive trading days in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Notes due
2013 for each trading day of that period was less than98% of the product of the closing price of
the Company's common stock for each trading day of that period and the then applicable
conversion rate.

Conversion Upon Certain Distributions

If the Company elects to:

�� distribute, to all holders of the Company's common stock, any rights entitling them
to purchase, for a period expiring within 45 days of distribution, common stock, or
securities convertible into common stock, at less than, or having a conversion price
per share less than, the closing price of the Company's common stock; or

�� distribute, to all holders of the Company's common stock, assets, cash, debt
securities or rights to purchase the Company's securities, which distribution has a per
share value exceeding15% of the closing price of such common stock,

holders may surrender their Notes due 2013 for conversion at any time until the earlier of the
close of business on the business day prior to the ex-dividend date or the Company's
announcement that such distribution will not take place.

Conversion Upon a Fundamental Change

Holders may surrender Notes due 2013 for conversion at any time beginning 15 days before
the anticipated effective date of a fundamental change and until the Company makes any required
purchase of the Notes due 2013 as a result of the fundamental change. A "fundamental change"
means the occurrence of a change of control or a termination of trading of the Company's
common stock. Certain change of control events may give rise to a make whole premium.
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Conversion at Maturity

Holders may surrender their Notes due 2013 for conversion at any time beginning on
January 15, 2013 and ending at the close of business on the business day immediately preceding
the maturity date.

The "conversion rate" is 16.727 shares of the Company's common stock, subject to certain
customary anti-dilution adjustments. These adjustments consist of adjustments for:

�� stock dividends and distributions, share splits and share combinations,

�� the issuance of any rights to all holders of the Company's common stock to purchase
shares of such stock at an issuance price of less than the closing price of such stock,
exercisable within 45 days of issuance,

�� the distribution of stock, debt or other assets, to all holders of the Company's
common stock, other than distributions covered above, and

�� issuer tender offers at a premium to the closing price of the Company's common
stock.

The "conversion value" of the Notes due 2013 means the average of the daily conversion
values, as defined below, for each of the 20 consecutive trading days of the conversion reference
period. The "daily conversion value" means, with respect to any trading day, the product of (1)
the applicable conversion rate and (2) the volume weighted-average price per share of the
Company's common stock on such trading day.

The "conversion reference period" means:

�� for Notes due 2013 that are converted during the one month period prior to maturity
date of the notes, the 20 consecutive trading days preceding and ending on the
maturity date, subject to any extension due to a market disruption event, and

�� in all other instances, the 20 consecutive trading days beginning on the third trading
day following the conversion date.

The "conversion date" with respect to the Notes due 2013 means the date on which the
holder of the Notes due 2013 has complied with all the requirements under the indenture to
convert such Notes due 2013.

Convertible Notes Due 2033

The Company retired its Notes due 2033 in 2011. At the end of 2010, the Notes due 2033
had an aggregate principal amount at maturity of $100.2million and a book value of $48.5
million. Although the Notes due 2033 were convertible at the end of 2010 and the holders could
have required the Company to purchase their notes on July 7, 2011, they were classified as long-
term as the Company had the intent and ability to refinance the accreted value under existing
long-term financing agreements.

Senior Notes Due 2015

Anixter Inc. also has the $200.0million 5.95% Senior Notes due 2015 ("Notes due 2015"),
which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. Interest of5.95% on the Notes
due 2015 ispayable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 of each year.

Other Borr owings
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As of December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company's short-term debt
outstanding was $3.0million and $203.4million, respectively. At December 31, 2010, short-term
debt consisted primarily of the funding related to the Anixter Receivables Corporation ("ARC")
facility which was amended in the second quarter of 2011 by the Anixter Inc. The following key
changes were made to the program:

�� The size of the program increased from $200million to $275million.

�� The liquidity termination date of the program will beMay 2013(formerly
the termination date was duringJuly 2011).

�� The renewed program carries an all-in drawn funding cost of Commercial Paper
("CP") plus90basis points (previously CP plus115basis points).

�� Unused capacity fees decreased from a range of57.5to 60basis points to a range
of 45 to 55basis points depending on utilization.

All other material terms and conditions remain unchanged. As a result of the change in
maturity, the $175.0million outstanding at December 30, 2011 is classified as long-term on the
Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 30, 2011 (formerly short-term debt as of
December 31, 2010).

Under Anixter's accounts receivable securitization program, the Company sells, on an
ongoing basis without recourse, a majority of the accounts receivable originating in the United
States to ARC, which is considered a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote variable interest entity
("VIE"). The Company has the authority to direct the activities of the VIE and, as a result, the
Company has concluded that it maintains control of the VIE and is the primary beneficiary as
defined by accounting guidance and, therefore, consolidates the account balances of ARC. As of
December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, $524.6million and $407.8million of the Company's
receivables were sold to ARC, respectively. ARC in turn sells an interest in these receivables to a
financial institution for proceeds up to $275.0million. The assets of ARC are not available to
Anixter until all obligations of ARC are satisfied in the event of bankruptcy or insolvency
proceedings.

Fair Value of Debt

The fair value of the Company's debt instruments is measured using observable market
information which would be considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy described in
accounting guidance on fair value measurements.

The Company's fixed-rate debt primarily consists of nonconvertible and convertible debt as
follows:

�� Nonconvertible fixed-rate debt consisting of the Notes due 2015 and Notes due
2014.

�� Convertible fixed-rate debt.

At December 30, 2011, the Company's carrying value of its fixed-rate debt was $511.4
million as compared to $543.3million at December 31, 2010. The estimated fair market value of
the Company's fixed-rate debt at December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 was $583.2million
and $672.8million, respectively. The decline in the carrying value and estimated fair market
value is primarily due to the retirement of the Notes due 2033 during 2011. As of December 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company's carrying value of its variable-rate debt was $298.4
million and $348.8million, respectively, which approximates the estimated fair market value.
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12 Months Ended
Discontinued Operations

Dec. 30, 2011
Discontinued Operations
[Abstract]
DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS NOTE 4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

DiscontinuedOperations:In Augustof 2011, theCompany'sboardof directorsapprovedthe
saleof theCompany'sAerospaceHardwarebusiness("Aerospace")andthetransactionclosedon
August26, 2011. Although the Company'shistoricalperformancein Aerospacehasbeenstrong,
customerandsupplierconsolidationhasresultedin a businessmodeldistinctly differentthanthe
Company'soverall strategy. The transactionwill enablethe Companyto focus its attentionand
resourceson its coreoperationsandstrategicinitiatives.Beginningin the third quarterof 2011,
the Companybeganto recordthe resultsof this businessas "DiscontinuedOperations"and all
prior periodshavebeenrevisedto reflect this classification.North AmericaandEuropesegment
informationwhich is presentedin Note 10. "BusinessSegments"hasalsobeenrevisedfrom the
prior year presentation to reflect the discontinued operations.

The salesprice of $155.0million resultedin net proceedsof $143.6million after adjusting
for working capitaladjustmentsandamountspaid by the Companyfor legal andadvisoryfees.
The Companyreporteda net lossfrom discontinuedoperationsin 2011 of $12.5million, which
includeda netlosson thesaleof $21.0million primarily dueto thewrite off of goodwill of $19.0
million.

An additional $30.0 million will be paid to the Companyif certain financial targets are
achievedon or beforeDecember31, 2013. The contingentpaymentof $30.0 million was not
recorded,nor was it includedin the calculationof the losson the saleof Aerospaceas it is the
Company'spolicy to recognizecontingentreceivablesin connectionwith a divestitureon thedate
the contingent receivable is realized.

The following representsthe componentsof the resultsfrom DiscontinuedOperationsas
reflected in the Company's Consolidated Statement of Operations (in millions):

Years Ended

December30,

2011 (a)

December31,

2010

January 1,

2010

Net sales $ 123.2 $ 197.6 $ 202.8
Operating income (loss) 13.4 (1.0 ) 18.6
(Loss) income from discontinued operations before

tax (9.3 ) (0.9 ) 18.8
Income tax expense 3.2 0.1 6.7
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, net of

tax (12.5 ) (1.0 ) 12.1

(a) Includesthe resultsthroughthedateof thedivestitureon August26, 2011, including the
pre-tax loss on sale of business of $22.6million ($21.0million, net of tax).

As reflectedon the Company'sConsolidatedBalanceSheetas of December31, 2010, the
Companyhasreclassifiedthe assetsand liabilities of Aerospaceto discontinuedoperationsas
follows (in millions):
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December31,

2010

Assets of discontinued operations:
Accounts receivable $ 29.4
Inventories 132.4
Goodwill 19.0
Other assets(a) 6.0

Total assets of discontinued operations $186.8

Liabilities of discontinued operations:
Accounts payable $9.4
Accrued expenses(a) 3.4
Other liabilities 1.8

Total liabilities of discontinued operations $14.6

(a) Certainassetsandliabilities, primarily relatedto a legalaccrual,werenot reclassifiedto
discontinuedoperationsasthey wereretainedby the Company. SeeNote 6. "Commitmentsand
Contingencies" for further information.
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